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Financial Highlights

21k
2014 2013 Change
i For the year ﬁfﬁi;g ﬁ,ﬁigg +- %
PEHUB B (AT 2P0 Net operating income before impairment
WA allowances 1,178,718 1,157,875 +1.80
S ginyill Operating profit 775,052 746,736 +3.79
R INEl Profit before taxation 793,072 772,288 +2.69
TEFEF] Profit for the year 639,334 656,676 -2.64
s At yearend WRyoos  tiksoos "
REATO R Capital and reserves 6,290,140 6,130,041 +2.61
CLB T RS A Issued and fully paid share capital 300,000 300,000 -
HREEH Total assets 52,166,252 47,274,716 +10.35
g o Financial ratios % % +- %
PR A R Return on average total assets * 1.27 1.38 -0.11
PR RS R Return on average shareholders’ equity 10.30 10.76 -0.46
BEASEU A R Cost to income ratio 34.73 32.02 +2.71
Sk Loan to deposit ratio ® 61.79 62.04 -0.25
SEHREE SR Average liquidity ratio * 48.16 43.52 +4.64
TP Na Total capital ratio ° 19.63 21.45 -1.82
R

1 RS E R

Profit for the year

Return on average total assets

SHAERETIIE

Daily average balance of total assets

G gl

2. PHIRHHELEER

Return on average shareholders’ equity

3. HFEILRMUELEHEHEANE - SHhELE
SERHEER -

4 EROE SRR THRARZ
AN Y H T B B
BLTA(HEE -

5. HEEALERTIE (RT3 (BA) HAD
REEEeRERR (CSEE ) REER
TEBOK AT Z A iR RO s T4
PRATE EESEER T -

Profit for the year

W ARG # < SR R R BRI P9 E

Average of the beginning and ending balance of capital and reserves

3. Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as at year end. Loan represents gross
advances to customers.

4. Average liquidity ratio is calculated as the simple average of each calendar
month’s average liquidity ratio of local offices of Chiyu Banking Corporation
Limited for the year.

5. Total capital ratio is computed on the combined basis that comprises the
positions of local offices and overseas branches of Chiyu Banking Corporation
Limited specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) for its
regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

The financial information of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”) and
its subsidiaries (together with the Bank hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the last five years
commencing from 1 January 2010 is summarised below:

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
TR EAERT 2 P48 Net operating income before
WA impairment allowances 1,178,718 1,157,875 1,237,803 1,250,602 1,029,105
S ginyill Operating profit 775,052 746,736 844,696 1,131,501 730,938
RNl Profit before taxation 793,072 772,288 945,643 1,165,929 751,957
R F] Profit for the year 639,334 656,676 770,509 972,027 623,612
R A ARTH Advances and other accounts 28,833,972 26,086,460 24,917,959 25,243,795 22,791,839
HREEH Total assets 52,166,252 47,274,716 48,125,873 44,112,208 41,066,624
B Deposits from customers 43,942,837 39,108,485 39,383,682 36,032,369 34,577,588
= Es Total liabilities 45,876,112 41,144,675 42,048,437 38,809,552 36,336,647
EL 31T B 4 R A Issued and fully paid share
capital 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000
REA TR Capital and reserves 6,290,140 6,130,041 6,077,436 5,302,656 4,729,977
WAREER Financial ratios % % % % %
S E E B Return on average total assets 1.27 1.38 1.67 2.28 1.54
PR R R 2 ] R Return on average shareholders’
equity 10.30 10.76 13.54 19.38 14.12
BRASHU AR Cost to income ratio 34.73 32.02 26.92 26.43 29.03
EPEER Loan to deposit ratio 61.79 62.04 57.94 63.63 62.64
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

In 2014, the global economic growth remained modest, but the pace of
recovery was divergent across the major economies. The growth momentum
of the global trade and investment was weak. While the US ended its
guantitative easing programme, the Eurozone and Japan continued to
introduce further monetary easing measures. On the other hand, economic
expansion slowed down in the Mainland hence a series of stimulus measures
were introduced. Hong Kong economic growth was sluggish owing to subdued
external and domestic demand.

Overall liquidity in the Hong Kong banking sector stayed abundant and market
interest rates were kept at a low level. Banks continued to operate in a
challenging environment. Weak demand and keen market competition put
pressure on banks’ operation and profitability, as did a number of new
regulatory requirements placed on banks during the year. In view of the
challenging operating environment, the Group has continued to take proactive
yet prudent business development strategies, together with effort to enhance
the business structure, provide high quality banking services to our customers
and expand our business scale at the same time.

In view of increasing business risk and tighter regulatory requirement, the
Group aims to maintain solid financial strength in order to better withstand
market uncertainties. Moreover, the Group has stepped up to allocate more
resources to enhance the quality of management team, the efficiency of
internal control mechanisms as well as risk management measures in order to
maintain a sustainable growth.

The Group’s core businesses are to provide personal and corporate banking
and other related financial services. In a persistently low interest rate
environment, the Bank consolidated its core customer base with high quality
services and actively introduced various kinds of deposits and wealth
management products to address the needs of different customers. Moreover,
the Bank has also introduced cross-border share-dealing service in response
to the launch of a direct share-dealing scheme between Hong Kong and
Shanghai, namely the “Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect”. In order to cater
for financing needs of individual and corporate customers, the Bank has
offered comprehensive financing products, such as personal loans, mortgage
loans, operating cash flow financing, capital expenditure financing, etc.
Moreover, the Bank has also continued to broaden our offerings in financing
products and cross-border services to better serve SME customers in different
industries.

With an all-rounded Commercial Banking Centre and 24 branches in Hong
Kong, together with 2 branches and 2 sub-branches in the Mainland, the Bank
provides cross-border integrated banking services to our customers for
fulfilling their needs in wealth management and various kinds of financing.
Moreover, the Group has started an enhancement project on our branches in
Hong Kong, to which two branches completed the upgrading work during the
year. It is aimed to improve our corporate image as well as to provide better
services to our customers with enhanced facilities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review

For the year 2014, the Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$639,334,000, decreased by 2.64% from last year. It was mainly due to the
growth of operating income was offset by higher operating expenses incurred.
The return on average shareholders’ equity and the return on average total
assets were 10.30% and 1.27% respectively, decreased by 0.46% and 0.11%
compared with 2013.

Net interest income was HK$900,974,000, increased by 3.84% as compared
with 2013. Net interest margin was 1.86%, which was kept the same as last
year. Net fee and commission income was HK$249,569,000, decreased by
4.47% from last year. Operating expenses increased by 10.42% to
HK$409,367,000 and the cost-to-income ratio increased by 2.71% to 34.73%.

In 2014, the classified loans ratio dropped by 0.13% to 0.25%. The net reversal
of loan impairment allowances was HK$5,700,000, as compared to net charge
of loan impairment allowances of HK$40,430,000 last year.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group recorded an increase in the total
consolidated assets by 10.35% to HK$52,166,252,000. Loans and advances
to customers increased by 11.92% to HK$27,152,398,000. Customer deposits
also rose by 12.36% to HK$43,942,837,000.

Prospect

Going into 2015, the diverging monetary policy paths taken by the US, the
Eurozone and Japan will pose considerable uncertainties in the global
economic outlook. The economic growth in the Mainland is expected to slow
down, while RMB internationalisation as well as the reforms in its interest rate
and exchange rate system will be further push-forward. It is also expected that
the growth momentum of the Hong Kong economy will very much depend on
the economic development in the Mainland and the rest of the world. The
overall operating environment for banking sector in Hong Kong looks mixed as
both opportunities and challenges coexist. Banks will still face intensifying
competition.

The Group will strive to maintain a prudent but growth strategy in conjunction
with sound corporate governance and risk management, as well as optimising
resources allocation, in order to maintain a balance between risk control and
business growth. In terms of business development, the Group aims at
providing flexible and personalised banking services with a convenient and
efficient service platform and presenting a distinctive service image at the
same time. Therefore, we will continue to enhance the professionalism of our
service teams as well as our products and services in response to market
development and customer needs.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management

Overview

The Group believes that sound risk management is crucial to the success of any
organisation. In its daily operation, the Group attaches a high degree of
importance to risk management and emphasises that a balance must be struck
between risk control and business development. The principal types of risk
inherent in the Group’s businesses are credit risk, interest rate risk, market risk,
liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk, legal and compliance risk, and
strategic risk. The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance shareholder
value by maintaining risk exposures within acceptable limits. For details of the
Group’s risk management governance structure, please refer to Note 4 to the
Financial Statements in this Annual Report.

Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or
unwilling to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book
and banking book, as well as from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the
Group. It arises principally from lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.
For details of the Group’s Credit Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.1 to the
Financial Statements in this Annual Report.

Market Risk Management

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commaodity, positions held by the Group due to
the volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity
price, commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to
achieve a balance between risk and return. For details of the Group’s Market Risk
Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to the Financial Statements in this Annual
Report.

The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the Risk
Management Committee (“RC”) and senior management on a periodic basis. The
Group adopts a uniformed VAR calculation model, using a historical simulation
approach and two years of historical market data, to calculate the VAR of the
Group over a 1-day holding period with 99% confidence level, and sets up the
VAR limit of the Group.

The Group adopts back-testing to measure the accuracy of VAR model results.
The back-testing compares the calculated VAR figure of market risk positions of
each business day with the actual and hypothetical revenues arising from those
positions on the next business day. Generally speaking, the number of
back-testing exceptions in a rolling 12-month period will not exceed four times,
given a 99% confidence level. The graph below shows the back-testing result of
the VAR against actual revenues of the Group.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management (continued)

Market Risk Management (continued)
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There were 2 actual losses exceeding the VAR for the Group in 2014 as shown in
the back-testing results. The exceptions of the back-testing mainly resulted from
unanticipated market movement.

Interest Rate Risk Management

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising
from movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and
liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural.
The major types of interest rate risk from structural positions are repricing risk,
basis risk, yield curve risk and option risk. For details of the Group’s Interest Rate
Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to the Financial Statements in this
Annual Report.

Liquidity Risk Management

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow assets or
pay due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The Group maintains
sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of
cash to meet liquidity needs under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios;
and to survive with net positive cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios without
requesting the HKMA to act as the lender of last resort. For details of the Group’s
Liquidity Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.3 to the Financial Statements
in this Annual Report.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
Operational Risk Management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
process, people and system, or from external events. The risk is inherent in
every aspect of business operations and confronted by the Group in its day-to
-day operational activities.

The Group has implemented the “Three Lines of Defence” for its operational
risk management. All departments or functional units as the first line of defence
are the first parties responsible for operational risk management, and carry out
the duties and functions of self risk control in the process of business operation
through self assessment and self enhancement. The Risk Management
Department (“RMD”) together with certain specialist functional units in relation
to operational risk management within the Group are the second line of
defence. They are responsible for assessing and monitoring the operational
risk conditions in the first line of defence, and providing them with guidance.
RMD, being independent from the business units, is responsible for assisting
the Management in managing the Group’s operational risk, including the
establishment and review of the operational risk management policy and
framework, designing the operational risk management tools and reporting
mechanism, and assessing and reporting the overall operational risk position
to the Management and RC. Specialist functional units are required to carry
out their managerial duties of the second line of defence with respect to some
specific aspects of operational risk and its related issues. Besides taking
charge of operational risk management in their own units, these units are also
required to provide other units with professional advice/training in respect of
certain operational risk categories and to lead the group-wide operational risk
management. Audit Division is the third line of defence which provides
independent assessment to the effectiveness and adequacy of the operational
risk management framework and is required to conduct periodic audit of the
operational risk management activities of various departments or functional
units within the Group regarding their compliance and effectiveness and to put
forward recommendations for remedial actions.

The Group has put in place an effective internal control process which requires
the establishment of policies and control procedures for all the key activities.
The Group adheres to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of
duties and authorisation. The Group adopts various operational risk
management tools or methodologies such as key risk indicators,
self-assessment, operational risk events reporting and review to identify,
assess, monitor and control the risks inherent in business activities and
products, as well as purchase of insurance to mitigate unforeseeable
operational risks. Business continuity plans are established to support
business operations in the event of an emergency or disaster. Adequate
backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are conducted.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
Reputation Risk Management

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business
practices, whether genuine or not, will cause a potential decline in the
customer base, or lead to costly litigation or revenue decrease. Reputation risk
is inherent in other types of risk and every aspect of business operation and
covers a wide spectrum of issues. Reputation risk is managed by the
Compliance and Operational Risk Division (“C&0ORD”) under RMD while the
Head of RMD reports to the Deputy General Manager.

In order to mitigate reputation risk, the Group has formulated and duly followed
its Reputation Risk Management Policy. The policy aims to identify and prevent
reputation risk proactively at an early stage when an incident occurs. Since
reputation risk is often caused by various types of operational and strategic
issues that negatively impact the trust and perception of the Group, all
operational and key risks identified are assessed through the established Key
Control Self-Assessment framework, including risk assessment tools, to
evaluate the severity of their impact on the Group, including the damage to
reputation.

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to
continuously monitor reputation risk incidents in the financial industry. This
continuous monitoring enables the Group to effectively manage, control and
mitigate any potential adverse impact from an incident. The Group also adopts
robust disclosure practices to keep our stakeholders informed at all times,
which helps build confidence in the Group and establish a strong public image.

Legal and Compliance Risk Management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse
judgments may disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or
financial conditions of the Group. Compliance risk is the risk of legal or
regulatory sanctions, financial losses or losses in reputation the Group may
suffer as a result of its failure to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations. Legal and compliance risks are managed by the Compliance and
Operational Risk Division (“C&ORD”) under RMD while the Head of RMD
reports to the Deputy General Manager. C&ORD is responsible for legal risk
management of the Group with advisory services rendered by the Legal
Services Centre of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (hereinafter referred as
to “BOCHK”). As part of the Group’s corporate governance framework, the
policy for the management of legal and compliance risk is approved by the RC
as delegated by the Board.

Strategic Risk Management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may cause current or future
negative impacts on the earnings, or capital or reputation or market position of
the Group because of poor business decisions, improper implementation of
strategies and inadequacies in the response to the changing market condition.
The Board reviews and approves the strategic risk management policy. Key
strategic issues have to be fully evaluated and properly endorsed by the senior
management and the Board.

The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest
market situation and developments.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
Capital Management

The major objective of the Bank’s capital management is to maximise total
shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to
the Bank’s overall risk profile. The Asset and Liability Management Committee
(“ALCO”) periodically reviews the Bank’s capital structure and adjusts the
capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk,
return and capital adequacy.

To comply with the HKMA's requirements as stated in the Supervisory Policy
Manual “Supervisory Review Process”, the Bank adopts the internal capital
adequacy assessment process (“ICAAP”) and reviews it annually. Based on
the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra
capital needed to cover the material risks not captured or not adequately
captured under Pillar |, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital
ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are
determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios
have also been established which enable the flexibility for future business
growth and efficiency of capital utilisation.

Stress Testing

The Group supplements the analysis of various types of risks with stress
testing. Stress testing is a risk management tool for estimating risk exposures
under stressed conditions arising from extreme but plausible market or
macroeconomic movements. These tests are conducted on a regular basis by
the Group’s various risk management units in accordance with the principles
stated in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Stress-testing” published by the
HKMA. The ALCO monitors the results against the key risk limits approved by
the RC. The RMD reports the combined stress test results of the Group to the
Board and RC regularly.
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Report of the Directors

The board of directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”) of Chiyu
Banking Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”) are
pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries (together with the Bank
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014
(hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance. The principal activities of the Group are the provision of banking
and related financial services. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the
year by business segments is set out in Note 40 to the Financial Statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 21.

The Board declared the first interim dividend of HK$65 per ordinary share
amounting to HK$195,000,000 in June 2014, which was paid on 29 August
2014.

The Board declared the second interim dividend of HK$37 per ordinary share
amounting to HK$111,000,000 in December 2014. This declared interim
dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in the financial statements, but
will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending
31 December 2015.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
2014.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Bank are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and statement of changes in
equity respectively on pages 26 and 27.

Properties, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in properties, plant and equipment of the Group and the
Bank are set out in Note 27 to the Financial Statements.

Share Capital

Details of the share capital of the Bank are set out in Note 33 to the Financial
Statements.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors

The directors of the Bank (hereinafter referred to as the “Directors”) during
the year and up to date of this report are:

Chairman He Guangbei # (resigned on 6 March 2015)
Vice Chairman Ng Leung Sing #

Tse Siu Ling
Directors Chan Yiu Fai

Chen Zhong Xin #

Cheung Wai Hing *

Chiu Ming Wah # (resigned on 1 February 2014)
Huang Ling #

Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen *

Liu Xin Qun #

Tan Wan Chye #

To Chi Wing #

Woo Chia Wei *

Yu Kwok Chun *

# Non-executive Directors
* Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with Articles 99 and 100 of the Bank’s Articles of Association,
two of the Directors who have been longest in office shall retire from office
at the annual general meeting held each year, but shall be eligible for
re-election. Accordingly, Mr Chen Zhong Xin and Mr To Chi Wing shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Interests

No contracts of significance, in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Bank, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Bank, its subsidiaries, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of the Bank or at any other body corporate.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or
existed during the year.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

This annual report complies with the applicable requirements set out in the
Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Banking Ordinance.

11
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Auditor

The financial statements for the year 2014 have been audited by Ernst &
Young (“EY”) who has been appointed as new auditor of the Bank at the
annual general meeting of the Bank held on 11 April 2013 upon the
retirement of PricewaterhouseCoopers. EY will retire and offer themselves
for re-appointment at the annual general meeting to be held in 2015.

On behalf of the Board

NG Leung Sing
Vice Chairman
Hong Kong, 17 March 2015
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Corporate Governance

During the year, the Bank has complied with almost all guidelines as set out in
the Supervisory Policy Manual CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of
Locally Incorporated Authorised Institutions” issued by The Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (hereinafter referred to as the “HKMA”). The Bank is
committed to maintaining the highest corporate governance standards and
consider such commitment essential in balancing the interests of
shareholders, customers and employees; and in upholding accountability and
transparency.

Board of Directors (“Board”) and the Management

The Board is responsible for setting objectives and formulating long term
strategies as well as managing the Group’s overall business. It currently
comprises thirteen Directors with a variety of different experience and
professionalism. Among them, two are Executive Directors, remaining eleven
are Non-executive Directors. Of the eleven Non-executive Directors, four are
Independent Non-executive Directors whose indispensable function is to
provide independent scrutiny. The Board meets regularly and four board
meetings were held in the year with an attendance rate of 100%. The Board
authorises the Management to implement the strategies as approved by the
Board. The Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Group and reports to the Board. The Chief Executive is responsible for
providing leadership for the whole Management and implementing important
policies and development strategies as adopted by the Board. In order to
focus on the strategic and material issues that have significant impact on the
Group’s operation, financial performance, risk management and long-term
development, four committees have been established under the Board to
oversee the major areas of the Group. Details of the committees are given
below:

Executive Committee (“EC”)

The EC has been delegated with authorities from the Board to handle matters
which require the Board’s review, but arise during the adjournment of the
Board. Its responsibilities include:

+ approving policies, implementation plans and management measures to
effect the group-wide development strategies and business plans approved
by the Board;

+ reviewing the implementation progress of strategies and business plans;

+ recommending strategic proposals to the Board for its consideration and
approval; and

+ approving the Group’s rules and regulations according to the policies
imposed by the supervisory authorities and the holding companies.

The members of EC are Ms Tse Siu Ling (Chairman), Mr Chan Yiu Fai and Mr

To Chi Wing. All are Directors of the Bank. Four EC meetings were held in the
year with an attendance rate of 100%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit Committee (“AC”)

The AC assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the Group in the
following areas:

- integrity of financial statements and financial reporting process;

+ internal control systems;

- effectiveness of internal audit function and performance appraisal of the

Head of Audit Division;

- appointment of external auditor and assessment of its qualification,

independence and performance;

+ periodic review and annual audit of the Group’s financial statements;

- compliance with applicable accounting standards as well as legal and

regulatory requirements on financial disclosures; and

« Corporate governance framework of the Group and implementation thereof.

The members of AC are Mr Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen (Chairman), Mr Cheung Wai
Hing, Mr Tan Wan Chye, Mr Woo Chia Wei and Mr Yu Kwok Chun. All are
Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen,
Mr Cheung Wai Hing, Mr Woo Chia Wei and Mr Yu Kwok Chun are
Independent Non-executive Directors. Four AC meetings were held in the year
with an attendance rate of 100%.

Remarks:

1.

Mr Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen was appointed as the Chairman of AC of the Bank
on 1 February 2014.

Mr Chiu Ming Wah resigned as a Non-executive Director and a member of
AC of the Bank on 1 February 2014.

14
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Risk Management Committee (“RC”)

The RC assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the risk
management of the Group in, among others, the following areas:

- formulation of the risk appetite and risk management strategy of the Group
and determination of the Group’s risk profile;

- identification, assessment and management of material risks faced by
various business units of the Group;

- review and assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management policies, system and internal control;

+ review and monitoring of the Group’s capital management;
+ review and approval of the Group’s target balance sheet;

+ review and monitoring of the Group’s compliance with the risk management
policies, system and internal control;

+ review and approval of high-level risk-related policies of the Group; and
+ review and approval of significant or high risk exposures or transactions.

The members of RC are Mr Liu Xin Qun (Chairman), Mr Ng Leung Sing, Mr To
Chi Wing, Ms Tse Siu Ling and Mr Yu Kwok Chun. All are Directors of the
Bank. Among them, Mr Yu Kwok Chun is Independent Non-executive Director.
Four RC meetings were held in the year with an attendance rate of 100%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)

The NRC assists the Board in performing the main duties in respect of the
Group in the following areas:

- remuneration strategy and incentive framework of the Group;

+ selection and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and
certain senior executives as designated by the Board from time to time;

+ structure, size and composition (including skills, experience and
knowledge) of the Board and Board Committees;

- remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, senior
management and key personnel, and

- effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees.

The members of the NRC are Mr Cheung Wai Hing (Chairman), Mr To Chi
Wing and Mr Woo Chia Wei. All are Non-executive Directors of the Bank.
Among them, Mr Cheung Wai Hing and Mr Woo Chia Wei are Independent
Non-executive Directors. Three NRC meetings were held during the year
with an average attendance rate of 89%.

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the
principles of “effective motivation” and “sound remuneration management”.
It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to
encourage staff to enhance their performance and, at the same time, to
strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration
management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with
the principles set out in the HKMA’s “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration
System” and applicable to the Bank and all of its subsidiaries (including the
branches and institutions in and out of Hong Kong).

1. “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”

The following groups of employees have been identified as the “Senior
Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the HKMA's “Guideline
on a Sound Remuneration System”:

- “Senior Management”: The senior executives designated by the
Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or
material business lines, including Chief Executive and Deputy
General Managers.

+ “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities
involve the assumption of material risk which may have significant
impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are
directly and materially linked to the risk management, or those who
have direct influence to the profit, including heads of material
business lines, Head of Trading, as well as Head of risk control
functions.
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Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)
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To fulfil the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk
management within the framework of the Remuneration Policy of the
Group, Human Resources Division is responsible for proposing the
Remuneration Policy of the Group and will seek consultation from the
risk control units including risk management, financial management and
compliance if necessary, in order to balance the needs for staff
motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. The
proposed Remuneration Policy will be submitted to the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the Board of
Directors for approval. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and the Board of Directors will seek opinions from other Board
Committees (e.g. Risk Management Committee, Audit Committee, etc.)
where they consider necessary under the circumstances.

. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

(1) Performance Management Mechanism

To reflect the “performance-driven” corporate culture, the Group has
put in place a performance management mechanism to formalise the
performance management at the levels of the Group, units and
individuals. The annual targets of the Group will be cascaded down
under the framework of balanced scorecard whereby the
performance of the Senior Management and different units (including
business units, risk control units and other units) would be assessed
from the perspectives of financial, customer, building blocks/key
tasks, human capital, risk management and compliance. For
individual staff at different levels, annual targets of the Group will be
tied to their job requirements through the performance management
mechanism. Performance of individuals will be appraised on their
achievement against targets, their contribution towards performance
of their units and fulflment of risk management duties and
compliance. Not only is target accomplishment taken into account,
but the risk exposure involved during the course of work could also
be evaluated and managed, ensuring security and normal operation
of the Group. Core values are also assessed to facilitate the
attainment of them.

(2) Risk Adjustment of Remuneration

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with
risk into practice, based on “The Risk Adjustment Method for Group
Bonus Funding Mechanics” of BOCHK, the key risk modifiers of the
Bank have been incorporated into the performance management
mechanism of the BOCHK Group. Credit risk, market risk, interest
rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, compliance risk and
reputation risk form the framework of “The Risk Adjustment method
for Group Bonus Funding Mechanics” of BOCHK. The size of the
Variable Remuneration Pool of the Group is calculated according to
the risk adjusted performance results approved by the Board of
BOCHK and is subject to its discretion. This method ensures the
Group to fix the Group’s Variable Remuneration Pool after
considering risk exposures and changes and to maintain effective risk
management through the remuneration mechanism.
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3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)
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(3) Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration
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Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and
“variable remuneration”. The proportion of one to the other for
individual staff members depends on job grades, roles,
responsibilities and functions of the staff with the prerequisite that
balance has to be struck between the fixed and variable portion.
Generally speaking, the higher the job grades and/or the greater the
responsibilities, the higher will be the proportion of variable
remuneration so as to encourage the staff to follow the philosophy of
prudent risk management and sound long-term financial stability.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed
remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and
will determine the remuneration based on the affordability of the
Group as well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals.
As mentioned above, performance assessment criteria include
quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and
non-financial indicators.

According to the Group Bonus Funding Mechanics of BOCHK, the
size of the Variable Remuneration Pool of the Group is determined by
the Board of BOCHK on the basis of the financial performance of the
Group and the achievement of non-financial strategic business
targets under the long-term development of the of BOCHK Group.
Thorough consideration is also made to the risk factors in the
determination process. The size of the Pool is reached based on
pre-defined formulaic calculations but the Board of BOCHK can make
discretionary adjustment to it if deemed appropriate under prevailing
circumstances. When the BOCHK Group’s performance is relatively
weak (e.g. failed to meet the threshold performance level), no
variable remuneration will be paid out that year in principle, however,
the Board of BOCHK reserves the rights to exercise its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation
of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the performance of
the units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is
attaching to, and the assessment of which should include risk
modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk
control personnel are determined by the achievement of their core job
responsibilities, independent from the business they oversee; for
front-line risk controllers, a matrix reporting and performance
management system is applied to ensure the suitability of
performance-based remuneration. Within the acceptable risk level of
the Group, the better the performance of the unit and the individual
staff, the higher will be the variable remuneration for the individual
staff.
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3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
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(4) Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time
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horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value creation of the
Group

To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time
horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to
ascertain the associated risk and its impact before the actual payout,
payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required to be deferred
in cash if such amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The
Group adopts a progressive approach towards deferral. The longer
the time horizon of risk in the activities conducted by the staff, the
higher the job grade or the higher amount of the variable
remuneration, the higher will be the proportion of deferral. Deferral
period lasts for 3 years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the
long term value creation of the Group. The vesting conditions are
linked to the yearly performance (financial and non-financial) of the
BOCHK Group in the next 3 years to the effect that the variable
remuneration could only be vested to such extent as set for the
relevant year in that 3-year period subject to the condition that the
BOCHK Group’s performance has met the threshold requirement in
the corresponding year. In case of material revision of the original
estimates of the performance of the Group or individual units, or if a
staff is found to commit fraud, or found to be of malfeasance or in
violation of internal control policies, the unvested portion of the
deferred variable remuneration of the relevant staff will be clawed
back.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the shareholders of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiyu Banking
Corporation Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 21 to 185, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated and company statements of comprehensive income, the
consolidated and company statements of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622), and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 17 March 2015
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

Net trading gain

Net loss on financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Other operating income

Net operating income before impairment
allowances
Net reversal/(charge) of impairment allowances

Net operating income
Operating expenses

Operating profit

Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties

Net loss from disposal of properties, plant and
equipment

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Dividends

The notes on pages 29 to 185 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes 2014 2013
AT ARTIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
1,325,599 1,174,064
(424,625) (306,376)
6 900,974 867,688
270,919 282,626
(21,350) (21,370)
7 249,569 261,256
8 22,150 23,799
(10,550) (11,089)
9 16,575 16,221
1,178,718 1,157,875
10 5,701 (40,417)
1,184,419 1,117,458
11 (409,367) (370,722)
775,052 746,736
12 18,020 25,554
13 - @)
793,072 772,288
14 (153,738) (115,612)
639,334 656,676
16 306,000 621,000
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Ff&E:
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2014 2013
BT AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Profit for the year 639,334 656,676
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to income statement:
Premises:
Revaluation of premises 84,445 173,645
Deferred tax 32 (11,903) (26,806)
72,542 146,839
Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement:
Available-for-sale securities:
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities 75,152 (50,870)
Deferred tax 32 (10,707) 9,684
64,445 (41,186)
Change in fair value of hedging instruments
under net investment hedge 10,960 (13,073)
Currency translation difference (36,182) 38,349
39,223 (15,910)
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 111,765 130,929
Total comprehensive income for the year 751,099 787,605
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 751,099 787,605

The notes on pages 29 to 185 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December

Profit for the year

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to income statement:

Premises:
Revaluation of premises
Deferred tax

Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement:

Available-for-sale securities:
Change in fair value of available-for-sale

securities
Deferred tax

Change in fair value of hedging instruments
under net investment hedge

Currency translation difference

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

iz
Notes 2014 2013
AT AEETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
632,607 650,469
82,929 171,389
32 (11,727) (26,497)
71,202 144,892
63,814 (58,179)
32 (10,707) 9,684
53,107 (48,495)
10,960 (13,073)
(36,182) 38,349
27,885 (23,219)
99,087 121,673
731,694 772,142

The notes on pages 29 to 185 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

FisE
As at 31 December Notes 2014 2013
AT HETT
HK$°000 HK$°000

ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks and other

financial institutions 19 6,001,040 5,647,651
Placements with banks and other financial

institutions maturing between one and

twelve months 3,844,837 5,050,404
Financial assets designated at fair value

through profit or loss 20 1,100,931 1,339,098
Derivative financial instruments 21 201,033 177,101
Advances and other accounts 22 28,833,972 26,086,460
Investment in securities 24 10,216,240 6,945,953
Investment properties 26 230,120 257,400
Properties, plant and equipment 27 1,417,082 1,274,950
Deferred tax assets 32 7,877 8,488
Other assets 28 313,120 487,211
Total assets 52,166,252 47,274,716
LIABILITIES
Deposits and balances from banks and

other financial institutions 641,436 948,211
Derivative financial instruments 21 138,067 106,737
Deposits from customers 29 43,942,837 39,108,485
Other accounts and provisions 30 921,590 816,825
Current tax liabilities 44,238 7,259
Deferred tax liabilities 32 187,944 157,158
Total liabilities 45,876,112 41,144,675
EQUITY
Share capital 33 300,000 300,000
Reserves 34 5,990,140 5,830,041
Total equity 6,290,140 6,130,041
Total liabilities and equity 52,166,252 47,274,716

The notes on pages 29 to 185 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 17 March 2015 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

NG Leung Sing TSE Siu Ling
Director Director

24



A A w &y
- C3
Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd

FIREB MM R A member of BOCHK Group

BEARAR

HN12H31H

HE

JEE 7 B 4 B AT TBURAT e At <22
TRAAVASER

FESRAT R HAM B R — 2+
{8 A EI Z E I

FUE R AUA BB LT AR 2
BRNE A

PR T A

R M ARTE

HRE

& EAE

¢/

LR Y dd ]

IRIERG T

HAthEEE

LR

&
SRAT R A RS < R
i

PrEERMT R
K

JEAF BT a8 2 =1k
HAIRTE s A
FERITR I
TRIERIHE

AN

-ZN

A

i

HAKEE

A A AN

% 29 £ 185 H [tk AN
TZAHRERSY -

KERGH 20054 3 A 17 Hid
HIZAEN LT AL REHEE

RSEE BN
- HH

pi

4

Balance Sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments
Advances and other accounts
Investment in securities
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

The notes on pages 29 to 185 are an integral part of these financial statements.

(NS
Notes 2014 2013
BT ARTIT
HK$°000 HK$000
19 6,001,040 5,647,651
3,844,837 5,050,404
20 1,100,931 1,339,098
21 201,033 177,101
22 28,833,972 26,086,460
24 10,144,370 6,885,422
25 3,913 3,913
26 230,120 257,400
27 1,399,282 1,258,150
32 7,877 8,488
28 313,445 487,536
52,080,820 47,201,623
641,436 948,211
21 138,067 106,737
29 43,964,571 39,130,708
25 32,700 25,287
30 921,590 816,425
44,238 7,259
32 185,351 154,823
45,927,953 41,189,450
33 300,000 300,000
34 5,852,867 5,712,173
6,152,867 6,012,173
52,080,820 47,201,623

Approved by the Board of Directors on 17 March 2015 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

NG Leung Sing
Director

TSE Siu Ling
Director
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At 1 January 2013

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Premises
Available-for-sale securities
Change in fair value of
hedging instruments
under net investment
hedge
Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive income

Transfer to retained
earnings
Dividend

At 31 December 2013

At 1 January 2014

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Premises
Available-for-sale securities
Change in fair value of
hedging instruments
under net investment
hedge
Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive income
Transfer to retained
earnings

Dividend

At 31 December 2014

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BB AR TR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

\

A

SEEEN  EHRATE
[EZN =4 EENEE ERERE R el Wt
Reserve for
fair value
changes of
Premises available-
Share revaluation for-sale Regulatory  Translation Retained
capital reserve securities reserve* reserve earnings Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
300,000 852,213 51,804 228,319 63,328 4,581,772 6,077,436
- - - - - 656,676 656,676
- 146,839 - - - - 146,839
- - (41,186) - - - (41,186)
- - - - (13,073) - (13,073)
- - - - 38,349 - 38,349
- 146,839 (41,186) - 25,276 656,676 787,605
- - - (9,447) - 9,447 -
- - - - - (735,000) (735,000)
300,000 999,052 10,618 218,872 88,604 4,512,895 6,130,041
300,000 999,052 10,618 218,872 88,604 4,512,895 6,130,041
- - - - - 639,334 639,334
B 72,542 - - - - 72,542
- - 64,445 - - - 64,445
- - - - 10,960 - 10,960
- - 1,450 - (37,632) - (36,182)
- 72,542 65,895 - (26,672) 639,334 751,099
- - - 35,327 - (35,327) -
- - - - - (591,000) (591,000)
300,000 1,071,594 76,513 254,199 61,932 4,525,902 6,290,140

* i g AT RIEE 39 5RH L * In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses or
other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKAS 39.

TERURE RSN - BB REK
R oy S A B R R R R
AT bRz (BREARE

SR B A T TR ) o

529 % 185 H sk @ AR #Hi# The notes on pages 29 to 185 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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R
A ERE S
TFEE T TR Z A

#2014 412 5 31 H

At 1 January 2013

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Premises
Available-for-sale securities
Change in fair value of
hedging instruments
under net investment
hedge
Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive income
Transfer to retained
earnings

Dividend

At 31 December 2013

Statement of Changes in Equity

At 1 January 2014

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:

Premises

Available-for-sale securities

Change in fair value of
hedging instruments
under net investment
hedge

Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive income
Transfer to retained
earnings

Dividend

At 31 December 2014

A EHE
FEE  EAAPE
[N (et BB TR R B wast
Reserve for
fair value
changes of
Premises available-
Share  revaluation for-sale Regulatory  Translation Retained
capital reserve securities reserve* reserve earnings Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
300,000 841,092 9,521 228,319 63,328 4,532,771 5,975,031
- - - - - 650,469 650,469
- 144,892 - - - - 144,892
- - (48,495) - - - (48,495)
- - - - (13,073) - (13,073)
- - - - 38,349 - 38,349
- 144,892 (48,495) - 25,276 650,469 772,142
- - - (9,447) - 9,447 -
- - - - - (735,000) (735,000)
300,000 985,984 (38,974) 218,872 88,604 4,457,687 6,012,173
300,000 985,984 (38,974) 218,872 88,604 4,457,687 6,012,173
- - - - - 632,607 632,607
- 71,202 - - - - 71,202
- - 53,107 - - - 53,107
- - - - 10,960 - 10,960
- - 1,450 - (37,632) - (36,182)
- 71,202 54,557 - (26,672) 632,607 731,694
- - - 35,327 - (35,327) -
R R R - - (591,000) (591,000)
300,000 1,057,186 15,583 254,199 61,932 4,463,967 6,152,867

* BrEE BT AENIEE 39 SR EGK
FEHURK
S
HRT—

EAERS  HEEEREXK
HEFRAEEE
B\ 2 A (EFE AR

SR B A T TR ) o

2529 £ 185 H 7 [ffsE @AM #%H# The notes on pages 29 to 185 are an integral part of these financial statements.
ZEHRE Y -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating cash inflow before taxation
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas profits tax paid

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of properties, plant and
equipment
Purchase of investment properties

Net cash outflow from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to the equity holders of the
Bank

Net cash outflow from financing
activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalents

BFEE
Notes 2014 2013
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
35(a) 133,391 512,833
(68,165) (139,393)
(40,175) (32,275)
25,051 341,165
(35,851) (7,971)
- (356)
(35,851) (8,327)
(591,000) (735,000)
(591,000) (735,000)
(601,800) (402,162)
7,567,132 7,977,262
(156,121) (7,968)
6,809,211 7,567,132

12 B 31 HZH& REFEHSIEE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 35(b)

% 29 £ 185 H Z[MeEf@ AN Bk
ZEARHER ST o

The notes on pages 29 to 185 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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REMH Y G AWM RE T IEES
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Al (BB RS EN H—45HE
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A TR ) il
WFEaEA (AR ZHE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Principal activities

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of banking and related financial
services in Hong Kong.

The Bank is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of
its registered office is No.78 Des Vouex Road Central, Hong Kong.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a
collective term which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, HKASs and Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which for this
financial year and the comparative period continue to be those of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32), in accordance
with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the newly enacted
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
securities, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, investment properties
which are carried at fair value and premises which are carried at fair value or
revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
Management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. TESHPEREE (&) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
21 EEEE (8 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(@) BR20144£1F 1 0B EET (@) Amendments and interpretation that are already mandatorily effective for
FRERIEEN T BT ke accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2014
JAAE B
1&51,/ [E AR ] Z AEEEAER
Currently
Applicable for financial relevant to
Amendments/ Interpretation Content years beginning on the Group
EAGETHEAS 32 5% (&(25]) SRMTE IR - SMEE e Hi 201471 H1H &
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Presentation — 1 January 2014 Yes
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities
FARGEHERGE 36 5f (KMEFT)  HERE @ IR nrln e R 20144F1H1H &
HKAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of Assets: Recoverable Amount 1 January 2014 Yes

Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

AR 3998 (&M&3]) SRITH MRHtsE - TETHNEE R 201441 H1H =
e R YRS

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Recognition and 1 January 2014 Yes
Measurement - Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

EARMBEEEASE 10 128 Eue 201417 1H &

AT 27 5 (&3]
HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 27 Investment Entities 1 January 2014 No
(Amendments)
TRV BERE AR 21 98 B 20144 1H1H =
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies 1 January 2014 Yes
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. TESHPEREE (&) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
21 wEEE (8

(a) BR 201441 R 1 DB Est
EEREIEES BT R ()

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Amendments and interpretation that are already mandatorily effective for
accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2014 (continued)

- HAGEHERIEI29E (KEET)

PR THE R - SRlEER
EREE AR ) - BT
7 E F 1 s 2 8 Y R — Bt
I S EEE T B ATC A AR
MRS SRR TT
¥ E ¥ B 4 B A RE T
DU DU — SR S R A0

(B RS AT DB AT R 5
[EITAIF A AR S A - BRANRZ
ERTHAREENMHERECAE
Ris -

- BBG I EAIE36HE (BT

PSR * IR B E UL el
BPEE | o ZEETREAERIRE B
RN —E0 AR BR 4 L
ZEIZABEAVBEET BT - it
G TRERE B & FERT TR
B Ry TR ATRR B Ay - 75t
HAVHE B IFEI MRS - SR
EETH R LR B ERILH
.

- EBGEEAE30E (KEET)

FeRTH : REE - 74
T EAVEER RS & AL | -
ZEET R E T T RS E R
P LE - M RA R E ORI
A RA S T R4S TR > B
GBI - R EET AR
ElNpupEa S A SS VN Z

- EORN S A AR R 2158

M o IR T FEEL
R A A 55 S i P FH U B0y
Fref LA My & - W EE R (R
FREFCRE A S AL I ECE  (ERUE R
RACREZEF AT MR TR (LM &
151 - FRANRZ R TR R A SR AV A 5
RKIGHERGE -

+ HKAS 32 (Amendment), “Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”. The amendment addresses
inconsistencies in current practice when applying the offsetting criteria and
clarifies the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off”
including the circumstances of default event or insolvency for any one of all
the parties; and the application of offsetting criteria to some gross settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) that may be considered
equivalent to net settlement. The adoption of this amendment does not have
a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

+ HKAS 36 (Amendment), “Impairment of Assets: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets”. The amendment aligns the disclosure
requirements with its original intention which does not intend to disclose at
level of cash generating unit if it is not impaired. It also requires additional
disclosure about the fair value measurement when the recoverable amount
of impaired assets is based on fair value less costs of disposal. The adoption
of this amendment does not affect the disclosure of the Group’s financial
statements.

+ HKAS 39 (Amendment), “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting”. The amendment introduces a relief to allow hedge accounting
to continue in a situation where a derivative, which has been designated as a
hedging instrument, is novated to effect clearing with a central counterparty
as a result of laws or regulation. The adoption of this amendment does not
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

+ HK (IFRIC) — Int 21, “Levies”. The interpretation addresses how an entity
should account for liabilities to pay levies imposed by governments, other
than income taxes, in its financial statements. For a levy that is triggered
upon reaching a minimum threshold, no liability should be anticipated before
the specified minimum threshold is reached. The adoption of this
interpretation does not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2. TRETBCREE (&)

21 AR (J)

(b) EHRME R AR B R AA
SEEF 2014 SRR BRI K&
&1

DU il 2 2B Al B AE T 7 20144
7H 1HE S LUR FARAY G5t 4 4h

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2014

The following standards and amendments have been issued and are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014:

SRHIPEARY -
JAA R B
A 5T W& AEIBE N AEEHHR
Currently
Applicable for financial  relevant to
Standards/ Amendments Content years beginning on/after the Group
EAEGETEA16 - 4157 R AEEMEEY) 2016 1 H1H &
(&7
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016 No
(Amendments)
EHEGETAERIFE16 - 385% TEEYTES MmN T A 20164E1H1H s
(#&1E5T)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 1 January 2016 No
(Amendments) Depreciation and Amortisation
EHEGETAERISE 19 5% (2011) fREEH : BCEEFETE] 20144E7TH1H s
(#&1E5T)
HKAS 19 (2011) (Amendment) Employee Benefits: Defined Benefit Plans 1 July 2014 No
EEGETAERIS 27 5% (2011) B B BRI RRE 20164E1H1H &
(#&1E5T)
HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendment) Equity Method in Separate Financial 1 January 2016 Yes
Statements
EAGEHERS 28 5F (2011) - EFEEAREREERCE I MVEENE 201641 H1H S
ERY ISR 10 R(KLEET)  B0EA
HKAS 28 (2011) and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 1 January 2016 No
HKFRS 10 (Amendment) Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
BB 9 97 (2014)  £RE TR 20181 H1H e
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 Yes
I AR 11 5 aEZH e ERHER s EE 2016421 1H S
(fE5T)
HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Joint Arrangements: Accounting for 1 January 2016 No
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations
I AR 14 5 SRR H 2016 1 H1H S
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016 No
A S RS 15 5f TR P EERIA 2017 1H1H &
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2017 Yes
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. TRETBCREE (&)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

21 AR (J)

(b) EHRME R AR B R AA
SEEF 2014 SRR BRI R &
5] @)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2014 (continued)

© EEGEERIF2757(2011) (&fE

51D BRI BRI A |
FZIREET M oAt 2R AL R
BEERPEHETAE  BEAE
BEME AR RIES
I - RSB ATEERTERANZ ERT - BT
PSR AR 3 FE AL BB B R
RPFHEEMINEERT - AR TH
AEEM BRI ATE -

© OB s R RIS 958 (2014)

PRl TH o BRRI B
95957 (2014) SRl T HAVSETSERL
TEEE AR B HERE
T2 T [ E - B s A s i e e
5957(2014) » BIFE S L
R T E B s i s 2 HI 9
FR(2014) AT EsTEH > fE H R
M54 R T AR > B — H ELiHE
PERY T TEHETR | RESA » R
JEB o R R A R T
T35k o BIE B ERAS HEREE95E
AEETERARI A T

+ HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendment), “Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements”. The amendment restores the option to allow an entity to apply
the equity method to account for its investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates in its separate financial statements. Early
application is permitted. Entities electing to change to the equity method in
its separate financial statements will have to apply that change
retrospectively. This amendment will not have any impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

+ HKFRS 9 (2014), “Financial Instruments”. The issuance of IFRS 9 (2014)
Financial Instruments completes the International Accounting Standards
Board's comprehensive response to the financial crisis. HKFRS 9 (2014),
the equivalent standard of IFRS 9 (2014) under HKFRS, includes a logical
model for classification and measurement, a single, forward-looking
“expected loss” impairment model and a tighter linkage of risk management
to hedge accounting. The changes introduced in HKFRS 9 are highlighted
as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. TRETBCREE (&)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

21 EEEE (8 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) EEMMEMREEMER I AEAE (b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily
E 2014 FERATRGIZ AR AEET effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2014
(&) (continued)

() ¥ RET R

(i) Classification and Measurement

BRI E ORI R A Hefr
TRt EIA] ¢ (D)LABEEREA
TEREGETE > (QLAA-PEZ T
AHA =z F RS R (bR
THE YRR - KIRE
Sh > FTA A EED) EEE A A
EELEE) > B B)LAAPEEE(L
SPABRIFRET R - SMEE
YR REEBEREREE » 2 &A1
FEVIEHESIRF TR © 3% 7 JHHAUA
B 15 8 B < T EL AV SE R
B DU TR G EIE S
e

WPABRER A —IH Rl TR
frigiastE > HoHR AR
TH - RAeERSEBHIZRA
% B DAL & 4B 00 R B
Y > DUz B e & 4R B R
BARKZAEER A AR
SR o AR TS LR SE
B SRR YO A SR R
ESMAE  MZ LEASNEG
GHFEERRE IZAB LA
G LU EE bRt AR A 2 E
sHETRAETR - FrA HALEH
THEBAFEE LET ARt

= e

Rtz TR — MR PLATEIFER
FETE - BRIFEFAIEIL TR
RIEE@mIfhEt e - FA
1B 5 i 2 By 2 T HFE LA
OPEELE AR - #Y
P HALAYRERR PR - T
JATERDIRFF LA e H Ay 43
FEAREEL R CEBH A P EGE
SR RHERS I LA S WS 1T
HRBENEE B RE - A PEIE
BRI T Ezs kA - '
W BRI REFITERT. - BRE IR
Waa TS, ©

Financial assets

Financial assets are required to be classified into one of the following
measurement categories: (1) measured subsequently at amortised
cost, (2) measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (all fair value changes other than interest
accrual, amortisation and impairment will be recognised in other
comprehensive income) or (3) measured subsequently at fair value
through profit or loss. Classification is to be made on transition, and
subsequently on initial recognition. The classification depends on the
entity’s business model for managing its financial instruments and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments.

A financial instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost
only if it is a debt instrument, and the objective of the entity’s business
model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual cash flows, and
the asset’s contractual cash flows characteristics represent only
unleveraged payments of principal and interest. A debt instrument is
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if it is held in a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
the instrument fulfils the contractual cash flows characteristics. All
other debt instruments are to be measured at fair value through profit
or loss.

Equity instruments are generally measured subsequently at fair value
with limited circumstances that cost may be an appropriate estimate of
fair value. Equity instruments that are held for trading will be
measured at fair value through profit or loss. For all other equity
investments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial recognition
to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses in
other comprehensive income without subsequent reclassification of
fair value gains and losses to the income statement even upon
disposal. Dividend income is recognised in the income statement
when the right to receive payment is established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2014
(continued)

@

(i)

Classification and Measurement (continued)
Financial Liabilities

Except for the two substantial changes described below, the
classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities
have been basically carried forward with minimal amendments from
HKAS 39.

The fair value option for financial liabilities were changed to address
own credit risk. The amount of change in fair value attributable to
changes in the credit risk of the financial liabilities will be presented in
other comprehensive income. The remaining amount of the total gain
or loss is included in the income statement. If this creates or enlarges
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, then the whole fair value
change is presented in the income statement. The determination of
whether there will be a mismatch will need to be made at initial
recognition of individual liabilities and will not be re-assessed.
Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not
subsequently reclassified to the income statement but may be
transferred within equity. This removes the volatility in profit or loss
that was caused by changes in the credit risk of liabilities elected to be
measured at fair value. It also means that gains caused by the
deterioration of an entity's own credit risk on such liabilities will no
longer be recognised in profit or loss.

The standard also eliminates the exception from fair value
measurement contained in HKAS 39 for derivative financial
instruments that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of an
unquoted equity instrument.

Impairment

The standard introduces a new, expected-loss impairment model that
will require more timely recognition of expected credit losses.
Specifically, it requires entities to account for 12 months expected
credit losses from inception when financial instruments are first
recognised and to recognise full lifetime expected credit losses on a
more timely basis when there have been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition. The impairment for financial instruments
that are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (debt instruments), loan commitments
and financial guarantees will be governed by this standard.
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2. TRETBCREE (&)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

21 AR (J)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) CEHMEMREEIMER PR AE (b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily
EY 2014 FERATRGIZ AR ASET effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2014
(& (continued)
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(iii) Hedge accounting

The requirements related to hedge accounting would better align the
accounting treatments with risk management activities and enable
entities to better reflect these activities in their financial statements. It
relaxes the requirements for assessing hedge effectiveness which
more risk management strategies may be eligible for hedge
accounting. It also relaxes the rules on using non-derivative financial
instruments as hedging instruments and allows greater flexibility on
hedged items. Users of the financial statements will be provided with
more relevant information about risk management and the effect of
hedge accounting on the financial statements.

Early application of HKFRS 9 in its entirety at the same time is permitted,
only the part related to own credit risk can be elected to be early applied in
isolation. The Group is considering the financial impact of the standard
and the timing of its application.

+ HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. HKFRS 15 applies

a single model and specifies the accounting treatment for all revenue
arising from contracts with customers. The new standard is based on the
core principle that revenue is recognised to reflect the consideration
expected to be entitled when control of promised good or service transfers
to customer. It is also applicable to the recognition and measurement of
gains or losses on the sale of some non-financial assets such as
properties or equipments that are not an output of ordinary activities.
HKFRS 15 also includes a set of disclosure requirements about revenue
from customer contracts. The new standard will replace the separate
models for goods, services and construction contracts stipulated in
different standards under the current HKFRS. Early application is
permitted. The Group is considering the financial impact of the standard
and the timing of its application.
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2. FEESSTECREE (&) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
21 EEEE (8 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(c) EEFBMEREEN (c) Improvements to HKFRSs
MSES RIS ER] | A& IEY “Improvements to HKFRSs” contains numerous amendments to HKFRSs
HEgHEAER IR SEAETEE which the HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary. It comprises
HIEET - & EES [BUES IR ~ HETE amendments that result in accounting changes for presentation, recognition
FrEEHIR G EENERT > IR S or measurement purpose as well as terminology or editorial amendments
TE B B0 & AR A 1S a5 HE R AE B related to a variety of individual HKFRSs. The amendments are either
flisBEei4miE FMEET - ZEEITER effective and adopted for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 or
201447 H1HEEHECE 72201641 H 1 will be effective on or after 1 January 2016. The adoption of these
HACBHAEA s HEE 45 - BRANA R E improvements does not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
STHAEE BRI EEAE - statements.

PEoh > BB EE (ARG In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit’ of the newly enacted
(56622%) M TIRE KF:t ) FrETf®E Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622) will be applied from the Bank’s
Ko AR EE 358 1% A AER{TE  first financial year commencing after 3 March 2014 in accordance with section
20144 FE3H3H BV E M B EE## 358 of that Ordinance, which will be the year ending 31 December 2015. The
A B20154F12 H31HAEH 2 4F/E - AKE  Group is still assessing the expected impact of the changes in the period of initial
B ESE{h LS FE A MAFE FHHl > 7E5t 82  application. So far assessed, the impact is unlikely to be significant and will
2o B E HAETRTEE - S AEN REA > 1 primarily affect the presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
FEEOEEG M BERNERNTIT  financial statements.

B -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Bank and all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(1) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

@

Business combinations not under common control

Acquisitions of businesses not under common control are
accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is the fair values at the
acquisition date of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
(including contingent consideration arrangement) and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are expensed the in income
statement as incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. If after assessment, the fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in the income statement as a bargain
purchase gain. Subsequently, goodwill is subject to impairment
testing.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Business combinations not under common control (continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
contingent  consideration  arrangement, the  contingent
consideration is measured at fair value at the acquisition date and
considered as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being
made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the measurement period about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

(ii) Business combinations under common control

For a combination with a company under common control, the
merger accounting method will be applied. The principle of merger
accounting is a way to combine companies under common control
as though the business of the acquiree had always been carried
out by the acquirer. The Group’s consolidated financial statements
represent the consolidated results, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated financial position of the Group as if any such
combination had occurred from the date when the Bank and the
acquiree first came under common control (i.e. no fair value
adjustment on the date of combination is required). The difference
between the consideration and carrying amount at the time of
combination is recognised in equity. The effects of all transactions
between the Group and the acquiree, whether occurring before or
after the combination, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Comparative amounts are
presented as if the acquiree had been combined at the end of the
previous reporting period. The transaction costs for the
combination will be expensed in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated; unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary, accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends received and
receivable. Dividend income from subsidiaries is recognised in the
income statement when the right to receive payment is established.

2.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the Management, which is the chief
operating decision maker of the Group, that allocates resources and
assesses the performance of operating segments. Income and expenses
directly associated with each segment are included in determining business
segment performance.
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2. TRETBCREE (&)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.4 Foreign currency translation
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Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional
and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency
transactions using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period
are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying net investment hedge.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value through profit
or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair
value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the
carrying amount of the securities. Translation differences related to changes in
the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement, and other changes
in the carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available-for-sale are included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a

functional currency different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong

Kong dollars as follows:

» assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of the
reporting period;

* income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency translation
reserve in equity through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign entity is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income statement, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair
values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and through the use of valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as
appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated as
separate derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value
are recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are
designated as hedges and are effective hedging instruments, then they are
subject to measurement under the hedge accounting requirements.

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at the hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be
accounted for under hedge accounting.

The Group designated certain foreign currency deposits from customers for
hedging of net investments in foreign operations (net investment hedge).

Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.
Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign
operation as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

2.7

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Interest income and expense and fee and commission income

and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all
financial assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(e.g. prepayment options or incentives relating to residential mortgage
loans) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes
fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid or received between
parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and costs
which represent an integral part of the effective yield.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written
down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised on the
written down value using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent
unwinding of the discount allowance is recognised as interest income.

Fee and commission income and expenses that are not an integral part of
the effective yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably over the period
when the related service is provided, such as administrative fee, asset
management fee and custody services fee. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the related syndication arrangement has been
completed and the Group has retained no part of the loan package for itself
or has retained a part at the same effective interest rate as that of other
participants.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following four categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity securities and available-for-sale financial assets. The
Management determines the classification of investments at initial
recognition. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets are held. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair
value. Except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss,
all transaction costs of financial assets are included in their initial carrying
amounts.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading,
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking is
classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedges.

A financial asset, other than one held for trading, will be designated as
a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, if it meets one of the
criteria set out below, and is so designated by the Management:

+ eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”)
that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

« applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on that
basis to the key management; or

» relates to financial assets containing one or more embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from those
financial assets.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction costs
taken directly to the income statement, and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets
(excluding the interest component) are reported in net trading gain/loss
or net gain/loss on financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss. The interest component is reported as part of
interest income.

(2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market,
including placements with and advances to banks and other financial
institutions, investment debt securities without an active market and
loans and advances to customers. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading
the receivable. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowances for
impairment losses.

(3) Held-to-maturity

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded in active
markets, with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s Management has both the positive intention and the ability
to hold to maturity. Where the Group sold held-to-maturity assets (i)
other than due to an isolated event beyond the Group’s control,
non-recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated by the
Group, such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness, significant change in statutory or regulatory
requirement or (ii) other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
assets, the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as
available-for-sale. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowances
for impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(4) Available-for-sale

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that are either
designated as such or are not classified in any of the other categories.
They are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time but may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates,
exchange rates or equity prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investments are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, until the financial asset is derecognised or
impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be transferred to the income statement.
However, interest income which includes the amortisation of premium
and discount is calculated using the effective interest method and is
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other operating
income when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its
new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has
been recognised in other comprehensive income is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest method. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the
financial asset using the effective interest method. If the financial asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, the amount recorded in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
immediately.

The treatment of translation differences on available-for-sale securities
is dealt with in Note 2.4.

2.9 Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following categories:
trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss, deposits and other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at
inception and recognised initially at fair value.

(1) Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. Derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedges. It is measured at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)

(2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or

loss

A financial liability can be designated at fair value through profit or
loss if it is so designated at inception. Financial liabilities so
designated include certain certificates of deposit in issue and certain
deposits received from customers that are embedded with
derivatives. A financial liability is so designated if it meets one of the
following criteria:

« eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”)
that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

« applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on
that basis to the key management; or

« relates to financial liabilities containing one or more embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from
those financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement.

(3) Deposits and other liabilities

Deposits and other liabilities, other than those classified as trading
liabilities or designated at fair value through profit or loss, are carried
at amortised cost. Any difference (if available) between proceeds net
of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period using the effective interest
method.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a contract between the holder and the
debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial
liabilities and reported under “Other accounts and provisions” in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, accumulated amortisation recognised over the life of the
guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any changes in the liability relating
to financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income statement.
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Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities are recognised on the
trade date, the date on which the Group purchases or sells the assets.
Loans and receivables (except investment securities without an active
market) are recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. When the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the Group either continues to recognise the
transferred financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement if
control remains or derecognise it if there is no retained control.

Trading liabilities and financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised on the trade date. Deposits that are not
trading liabilities are recognised when money is received from customers,
other liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise. Financial
liabilities are derecognised from the balance sheet when and only when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the balance sheet,
and the difference between the carrying amount of a liability and the
consideration paid is included in net trading gain/loss.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase
at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase
agreement are referred to as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a
counterparty with an obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a
pre-determined price on a specified future date under a resale agreement
are referred to as reverse repos.

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as due to banks,
placements from banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at
the actual amount of cash received from the counterparty. Financial
assets given as collateral for repurchase agreements are not
derecognised and are recorded as investment in securities or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Reverse repos or securities
borrowing are initially recorded in the balance sheet as cash and due
from banks or placements with banks and other financial institutions, as
appropriate, at the actual amount of cash paid to the counterparty.
Financial assets received as collateral under reverse repurchase
agreements are not recognised on the balance sheet. The difference
between sale and repurchase price is recognised as interest income or
interest expense over the life of the agreements using the effective
interest method.
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212 AEERE 2.12 Fair value measurement

KEEPGEGETEEH LA FER The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious

B EMCEYE - BB Em metals and certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each

TH - A PERIETEMEH & BT reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an

FERBY T2 5 TS B A Fl 2 T asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

ARG » B2 HEETAF LA E market participants in its principal market or the most advantageous

E RS S B - market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

FHEEE A BN EE AR R The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions

1452 BB AE HR AR R 28 Y15 I that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,

T PR HVEE A EETHE - assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

IEERNE E 2 N EETE AR A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a

//\%ﬁ%& & FTE A N = Ko market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the

EEEALS > B TS —S2EE asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
T a% £ B3 ] AR Y e v R B (R 4075 participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Fllzs

HRENE BT TSN ERE A If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation

EEHGESHEITA EHBENER techniques, including the use of recent arm’s length transactions,

T FRAMEREEEEAYE  ais discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation
B ER AN EHEA S - IR techniques commonly used by market participants, that are appropriate in

BT BAREE (EA U&Eﬁﬂﬁibﬁ//\ the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure

HiBA 2 AE A W REE T fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

% FTEEAER 2 80 iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁf minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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(i)

v

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets may be
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about the following probable loss events:

0)
(ii)
(iii)

(iv)
v

(vi)

@

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payment;

the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

the disappearance of an active market or downgrading below
investment grade level for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the
initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet
be identified with the individual financial assets in the group,
including:

« adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group;
or

« national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant. If
the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment together with all other
financial assets that are not individually significant or for which
impairment has not yet been identified. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity securities has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred),
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity security has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis
of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows
of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may
result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar and relevant credit risk
characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of
future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the
debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual
cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and
to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
exist currently.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowance for impairment losses. Such loans are written off after all
the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the
income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment
losses decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial
difference in the terms are no longer considered to be past due but are
treated as new loans.

(2) Assets classified as available-for-sale

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the accumulated losses, measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost or amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the
income statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the
assets are impaired. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss to
the extent of its decrease is reversed through the income statement.
With respect to equity instruments, further fair value changes are
recognised in the reserve for fair value change of available-for-sale
securities through other comprehensive income, impairment losses
are not reversed through the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Potential indications of impairment may include significant adverse
changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in
which the assets operate or whether there has been a significant or

prolonged decline in value below their cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash
generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for

possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s financial statements, impairment testing of the investment in
a subsidiary is also required upon receiving dividend from that entity if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of that entity concerned
in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that entity
in the Bank's balance sheet exceeds the carrying amount of that entity's

net assets including goodwill in its consolidated balance sheet.

2.15 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in the
Group, are classified as investment properties. Properties leased out
within Group companies are classified as investment properties in

individual companies’ financial statements and as premises

consolidated financial statements. Land held under operating lease is
classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted

for as if it is a finance lease.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are

measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Investment properties (continued)

2.16

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The item is stated at cost less impairment and is included in the carrying
amount of investment properties. Once the item begins to generate
economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of premises
under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value
gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the income statement up to the amount previously debited.

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are shown
at fair value based on periodic, at least annual, valuations by external
independent valuers less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Any accumulated
depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the
revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening periods, the directors
review the carrying amount of premises, by reference to the open market
value of similar properties, and adjustments are made when there has
been a material change.

All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditures that
are directly attributable to the acquisition and installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is
stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the
measurement basis of its respective assets class. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are
credited to the premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive
income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same individual
asset are charged against premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income; all other decreases are expensed in the income
statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the income
statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises
revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the
premises revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released and transferred from the premises revaluation reserve to retained
earnings.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the
cost or revalued amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

* Properties
* Plant and equipment

Over the life of government land leases
3to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at
the end of each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of
information are considered to determine whether there is any indication
that properties, plant and equipment, are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the
impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same
asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are recognised
in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Leases
(1) Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The total payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
Contingent rental payable is recognised as expense in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has
expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of
penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination
takes place. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

(2) Finance leases
Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Government land leases in Hong Kong are classified as finance
leases as the present value of the minimum lease payments (i.e.
transaction price) of the land amounted to substantially all of the fair
value of the land as if it were freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on
the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities.
Investment properties acquired under finance leases are carried at
their fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value
of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. Lease income is
recognised over the term of the lease using net investment method,
which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with original maturity less than three
months from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, short-term bills and notes classified as
investment securities and certificates of deposit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made.

2.20 Employee benefits
(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are
available to the Group’s employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme
costs are charged to the income statement as incurred and represent
contributions payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions
made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave
the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitlement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions or to meet its expenses under the trust deed of the
ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered
funds separate from those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for unused annual leave and the amount of sick leave
expected to be paid as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved
annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s
entitlement is not used in full. Except for unexpired annual leaves,
they do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused
entitlement on leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are
expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted if
the amounts are significant.
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2.21 Current and deferred income taxes
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Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised directly in other comprehensive income. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction
where the Bank and the subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income, is recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in
which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment
provisions, depreciation of premises and equipment, revaluation of certain
assets including available-for-sale securities and premises, and tax losses
carried forward. However, the deferred income tax is not recognised if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary
differences and deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except
for deferred income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of
available-for-sale securities and revaluation of premises which are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income, in which case the
deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other comprehensive
income and is subsequently recognised in the income statement together
with the realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property
is determined based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of
such investment property will be recovered through sale with the relevant
tax rate applied.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value
less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans
on the date of repossession, and the related loans and advances together
with the related impairment allowances are derecognised from the balance
sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are measured at the lower of
their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are reported as
“non-current assets held for sale” included in “Other assets”.

2.23 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities,
that result in its holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts
and other institutions. These assets and any gains or losses arising
thereon are excluded from these financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

2.24 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confimed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as an asset.

2.25 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if (i) that party controls, jointly controls or has
significant influence over the Group; (ii) is a member of the same financial
reporting group, such as parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries; (iii)
is an associate or a joint venture of the Group or parent reporting group;
(iv) is a key management personnel of the Group or parents; (v) the party
is subject to common control with the Group; and (vi) an entity in which a
person identified in (iv) controls. Related parties may be individuals or
entities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. EResTBCRIEZBEA®EHMEET R 3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying

accounting policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements
are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Areas susceptible to changes in essential
estimates and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, are set out below. The effect of changes to either the key
assumptions or other estimation uncertainties will be presented below if it is
practicable to determine. It is possible that actual results may require material
adjustments to the estimates referred to below.

3.1

3.2

Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least on a
quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should be
recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans and
advances before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in
that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a
group (e.g. payment delinquency or default), or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on assets in the group. The Management uses
estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future
cash flows are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of loans and advances as at 31 December 2014 are
shown in Note 22.

Impairment of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities

The Group reviews its held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investment
portfolios to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In
determining whether any of these investments is impaired, risk
characteristics and performance such as external credit rating, market
price etc. will be assessed. The Group makes estimates on the default rate
and loss severity of each investment with reference to market performance
of the portfolios, current payment status of the issuers or performance of
the underlying assets, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the collateralised assets. The methodology and assumptions used for
impairment assessments are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of investment in securities as at 31 December 2014 are
shown in Note 24.
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accounting policies (continued)

3.3 Fair values of derivative financial instruments

3.4

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are not quoted in
active markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques used include discounted cash flows analysis and models with
built-in functions available in externally acquired financial analysis or risk
management systems widely used by the industry such as option pricing
models. To the extent practical, the models use observable data. In
addition, valuation adjustments may be adopted if factors such as credit
risk are not considered in the valuation models. Management judgement
and estimates are required for the selection of appropriate valuation
parameters, assumptions and modelling techniques. Further details will be
discussed in Note 5.

Carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments as at 31 December
2014 are shown in Note 21.

Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in classifying certain
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as held-to-maturity securities. This classification requires
significant management judgement to evaluate the Group’s intention and
ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to hold these
investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances defined in
HKAS 39, such as selling an insignificant amount, selling close to maturity
or due to significant credit deterioration of such investments, it will be
required to reclassify the entire portfolio of financial assets as
available-for-sale securities. The investments would then be measured at
fair value and not amortised cost.

Carrying amounts of held-to-maturity securities as at 31 December 2014
are shown in Note 24.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of
business activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk
(including currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group’s exposures to these risks, as well as its objectives, risk
management governance structure, policies and processes for managing and the
methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all
business processes and ensures various risks are properly managed and
controlled in the course of conducting business. The Group has a robust risk
management organisational structure with a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control various risks that may arise.
These risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and
updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups of
risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that
the Group has an effective risk management system to implement these
strategies.

The Risk Management Committee (“RC”), a standing committee established by
the Board of Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of
risks, approving high-level risk-related policies and monitoring their
implementation, reviewing significant or high risk exposures or transactions and
exercising its power of approval. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling
its role in overseeing the internal control system.

The Chief Executive (“CE”) is responsible for managing the Group’s various types
of risks, approving risk management policies, and material risk exposures or
transactions within her authority delegated by the Board of Directors. With the
support from Risk Management Department (“RMD”) and Financial Management
Department (“FMD”), the Deputy General Manager assists the CE in fulfilling her
responsibilities for the day-to-day management of risks and initiating new risk
management strategies, projects and measures that will enable the Group to
better monitor and manage new risk issues or areas that may arise from time to
time from new businesses, products and changes in the operating environment.
He will also take appropriate initiatives in response to regulatory changes. The
Deputy General Manager and the Head of RMD are also responsible for reviewing
material risk exposures or transactions within their delegated authority.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which
are independent from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day
management of different kinds of risks. Risk management units have the primary
responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and updating various risk management
policies and procedures.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk management framework (continued)

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including
establishment of an organisation structure that sets clear lines of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient independence of the control functions
from the business areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties throughout the
organisation which helps to promote an appropriate internal control environment.

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence
processes on product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management,
respective product management units are responsible for formulating business
and product development plans, and proceeding to specific product development
activities. The department of strategic development shall ensure the plans are
aligned with the Group’s overall strategies. Departments that are responsible for
risk management, legal, compliance and finance etc. are accountable for risk
assessment and review.

Apart from product development, respective product management units shall work
closely with relevant risk evaluating departments to identify and assess the risks of
new products. Risk evaluating departments shall conduct independent review on
the risk assessment results and the corresponding risk management measures.
Products can only be launched upon completion of the product due diligence
process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating departments and approval from
designated unit heads/the Management.

4.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or
unwilling to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading
book and banking book, as well as from on- and off-balance sheet
transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending, trade finance and
treasury businesses.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management
policies and procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and
control credit risk that may arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk
limits are regularly reviewed and updated to cope with changes in market
conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisation structure establishes a clear set of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.

63



4 & 4 Ay

Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd
FIREB MM R A member of BOCHK Group

BRI (8D

4. GRERREE (&)

4.1

EERE (8
EERREEERE (8

TEEE R E SRR B EHEE £
EERERSREERBER LI A8
e [ B (i A FAR R (5 B b
BB B R E Ry s —E
& T b B AT SRS AL - &
EisEm bR HEEHE - H(E SR
Al - B BRI O L Y R
& ORI HILEL P > DU EBE -
IREFE S SR EHBOREER -

MBAEERGR T 2R E R
TRAE TR TR - AEEEIREE
FEBME ~ BHO K BRRIVEE « (58
JEBgARIE R/ - BB (S BB I R
R -

Rl R BT
NIRRT T ASEE e
RS SRS M BB AVAE & R
HfEEER -

B

RIEE S F o G AR b
TR FIR (S S it R B e e - 3
NERIRE > HEHPER ARG
o\ e - F R B T\ B 12 (5 PR R
e B B AT E - BT 0 3
HEE (75 A SPAR CREIREAORERIERE ) A
RAGFFR (FEIBIBRIRIRE) DU
EEF THERELHEETE/ R
Bk (TSR KA AEEIRAL
RN SSETEE RS - A
S T SRR (R AR
FASHFHPAHRRTHMEER (R 152
FHEEEI -

AT e F SR AR (AR
SRAHRETFOHIGE R (LA SR EE
Bt~ (EER RS ot - BINIEEE
JeR\ B A I » S o S s B 2 P R
HUE S AR P AR i S S DR e s 3
HEERERIENGEE S BEERE
F R B RN R AR SR TR 45 AT
BR%2 0 B R EURAERIE S ST
e HilgE -

R EE B 5 F A P R0 AR 4 R R 3% R EALAEE
#IEEH (Standard & Poor's)yh = FEE
ERFHETIE - Z R A R S R &
B (BT T T (ST (B
AT BESK

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Head of RMD is responsible for credit risk management with
assistance from Credit Risk Management Division. Various units of the
Group have their respective credit risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defence. The RMD, which is
independent from the business units, is responsible for the day-to-day
management of credit risks and has the primary responsibility for providing
an independent due diligence through identifying, measuring, monitoring
and controlling credit risk to ensure an effective checks and balances, as
well as drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk management policies
and procedures.

The Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the CE. The
CE can further delegate to the subordinates within her limit authorised by
the Board of Directors. The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority
according to the business nature, rating, the level of transaction risk, and
the extent of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been
continuously revisiting its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews
on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to
the level of risk associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction.
The Credit Risk Assessment Committee is responsible for making an
independent assessment of material credit. Credit applications for
non-retail exposures are independently reviewed and objectively assessed
by risk management units. Obligor ratings (in terms of probability of default)
and facility ratings (in terms of loss given default) are assigned to these
portfolios to support credit approval. Retail internal rating systems are
deployed in the risk assessment of retail credit transactions, including small
business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans and personal loans.
Loan grades, obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if
applicable) are used to support credit approval.

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if
applicable) to support credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk
information. For non-retail exposures, more frequent rating review and
closer monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For retail
exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are used
for credit monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is
required for obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

The Group employs an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to
Standard & Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure of internal master
rating scale is in compliance with the requirement of the Banking (Capital)
Rules under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

Credit Risk Management Division provides regular credit management
information reports and ad hoc reports to the RC and Board of Directors to
facilitate their continuous monitoring of credit risk.

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry,
geography, customer and counterparty. The Group monitors changes to
counterparties credit risk, quality of the credit portfolio and risk concentrations,
and reports regularly to the Group’s Management.

In the year of 2014, the Group continues to adopt loan grading criteria which
divide credit assets into 5 categories with reference to HKMA’s guidelines, as
below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its
repayment obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in
doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing
difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not
expected at this stage but could occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable
weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the
Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into
account the net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection
options (such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal
proceedings) have been exhausted.
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For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit
ratings, assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on
customer/security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated
with the investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to
manage the credit risk involved and follows the same approval and control
processes as applied for advances. On-going monitoring and stop-loss
procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with
counterparties and also from derivatives transactions in any situation where a
payment in cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits
are established for each counterparty or customer to cover all settlement risk
arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the
credit risk management policies and procedures which cover acceptance
criteria, validity of collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and
insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a regular basis, though the
frequency and the method used varies with the type of collateral involved and
the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group has established a
mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. Collateral is
insured with the Group as the beneficiary. In the personal sector, the main
types of collateral are real estate properties, cash deposits and securities. In
the commercial and industrial sector, the main types of collateral are real
estate properties, securities, receivables, cash deposits and machinery.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s

financial condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not hold any collateral that it was
permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower (2013:
Nil).
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The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the
Group without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit
risk equals their carrying amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount that the Group could be required
to pay if the guarantees are called upon. For loan commitment and other credit
related liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the
committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their
financial effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as
follows.

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc., (ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual
framework under which dealing activities of OTC transactions are conducted, and
sets out close-out netting provisions upon termination following the occurrence of
an event of default or a termination event. In addition, if deemed necessary,
Credit Support Annex ("CSA") will be included to form part of the Schedule to the
ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA, collateral is passed from one
counterparty to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 66. Advances and other
accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are collateralised to the extent
considered appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk assessment of
individual exposures. The collateral coverage of advances to customers is
analysed on pages 77 to 78. The components and nature of contingent liabilities
and commitments are disclosed in Note 36. Regarding the commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and commitments, 40.73% (2013: 36.50%)
is covered by collateral as at 31 December 2014.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before
summarised by product type as follows:

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

Trade bills

Total
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impairment allowances are

2014 2013
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
2,663,726 2,731,941
2,777,586 2,540,498
20,754,794 18,024,793
956,292 963,928
27,152,398 24,261,160
1,789,926 1,972,798
28,942,324 26,233,958
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the
principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
remained continuously outside the approved limit that was advised to the borrower.

Advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
and that loss event(s) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
advances that can be reliably estimated.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on advances has been
incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows generated by the
advances. Objective evidence that advances are impaired includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about the loss events.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an
impairment loss include:

- Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in principal or interest
payment;

- For economic or legal reasons related to the borrower’s financial difficulty, the
Group has granted to the borrower a concession that it would not otherwise
consider;

- Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or undergo other financial
reorganisation; or

- Other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from such advances.
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4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Advances that were neither overdue nor impaired are analysed by internal credit

grades as follows:

2014
= RERE REFEHAT T
Special Substandard
Pass mention or below Total
AT BT BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 2,640,338 9,128 74 2,649,540
- Others 2,741,747 3,639 14,845 2,760,231
Corporate
- Commercial loans 20,411,440 95,608 13,620 20,520,668
- Trade finance 916,442 19,097 - 935,539
26,709,967 127,472 28,539 26,865,978
Trade bills 1,789,926 - - 1,789,926
Total 28,499,893 127,472 28,539 28,655,904
2013
= TRERE REFELAT HaEt
Special Substandard
Pass mention or below Total
HEETT HEETT AHTIT BT
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 2,703,199 10,722 104 2,714,025
- Others 2,429,428 102,998 - 2,532,426
Corporate
- Commercial loans 17,648,558 253,427 - 17,901,985
- Trade finance 919,576 19,808 - 939,384
23,700,761 386,955 104 24,087,820
Trade bills 1,972,798 - - 1,972,798
Total 25,673,559 386,955 104 26,060,618

The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in impairment loss
where the advances are fully collateralised. While such advances are of
“substandard” or lower grades, they are regarded as not being impaired and have
been included in the above tables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

Trade bills

Total

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

Trade bills

Total

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue but not impaired is analysed as follows:

2014
B B
ARl 3 A 3EAE 6 fEHE #H
BUT  TE#6MEA FEBLE 1 E T
Overdue for Overdue
Overdue 6 months for 1 year
for or less or less Overdue
3 months but over but over for
or less 3 months 6 months  over 1 year Total
AT BT BT BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
10,717 - 3,469 - 14,186
16,670 - - 685 17,355
212,737 - 8,271 8,653 229,661
6,368 - - - 6,368
246,492 - 11,740 9,338 267,570
246,492 - 11,740 9,338 267,570
2013
pind iy ey pind iy ey
A 3 {EHH 3{EAME 6 i H1H EEA
LN FMEmeEH AHEME1F i 1A HaEt
Overdue for Overdue
Overdue 6 months for 1 year
for or less or less Overdue
3 months or but over but over for
less 3 months 6 months  over 1 year Total
EHST T BETT BB BWTr W
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5,561 - 12,355 - 17,916
6,734 - - 1,338 8,072
69,316 14,335 - 5,058 88,709
81,611 14,335 12,355 6,396 114,697
81,611 14,335 12,355 6,396 114,697
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4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(c) Impaired advances

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product type as
follows:

2014 2013
WEGK TR WER mE
Market Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BT BT BRIt ERTL
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages - - - -
- Others - - - -
Corporate
- Commercial loans 4,465 15,329 34,099 32,024
- Trade finance 14,385 - 24,544 -
Total 18,850 15,329 58,643 32,024
Impairment allowances
made in respect of such
advances 16,093 52,005
2014 2013
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 15,329 32,024
Covered portion of such advances to
customers 4,465 20,397
Uncovered portion of such advances to
customers 14,385 38,246

The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of
collateral in respect of impaired advances.

As at 31 December 2014, there were no impaired trade bills (2013: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(c) Impaired advances (continued)

Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:

2014 2013
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Gross classified or impaired advances to
customers 68,470 91,833
Gross classified or impaired advances to
customers as a percentage of gross
advances to customers 0.25% 0.38%
Individually assessed impairment allowances
made in respect of such advances 16,093 52,005

Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which are
either classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s
classification of loan quality, or individually assessed to be impaired.
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MeEEE (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4, SHUEFGEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.1 EEEE (8) 4.1 Credit Risk (continued)
B. ST R HAMMRE (&) B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(d) #HA#EIE 3EHE &% (d) Advances overdue for more than three months
AR 3 H 2 SRk The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed as
FEba g an I follows:
2014 2013
fe-a=y=¢ 4 fli% K
x| S EILL &FE EEESL
% of gross % of gross
advances to advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
TSR > Bl Gross advances to
customers which have
been overdue for:
- il 3 (E B EREE - six months or less but
6 fE H over three months - 0.00% 15,849 0.06%
- i 6 {E H B~ - one year or less but
14 over six months 11,740 0.05% 20,666 0.09%
- i 1A - over one year 28,188 0.10% 55,214 0.23%
AR 3 {E H 2 &K Advances overdue for over
three months 39,928 0.15% 91,729 0.38%
gt bt > S EE B RS Individually assessed
> Yk impairment allowances
made in respect of such
advances 16,093 52,005
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MeEEE (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. &REREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.1 EEEE (8) 4.1 Credit Risk (continued)
B. ST R HAMMRE (&) B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(d) #HA#EIE 3EHE &% (d) Advances overdue for more than three months (continued)
(&
2014 2013
AT HERETT
HK$°000 HK$’000
AR S E SR Current market value of collateral held
FES S T{E against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 66,278 102,318
PR SEE R Covered portion of such advances to
B customers 25,543 53,483
G AR EE & Uncovered portion of such advances to
BEEE customers 14,385 38,246
A HH S SR E B R AT HE Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
ST HEEATRER charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
TH NP & EE A0 P 5 S corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.
T EAREFHET
HIEEHARYZE
J* 2014412 H 31 H)ZH As at 31 December 2014, there were no trade bills overdue for more than three
wiftEE 3 MHZH 55 months (2013: Nil).

1% (2013 4 @ 4) -
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4. &REREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERERE (&) 4.1 Credit Risk (continued)
B. ST R HAMMRE (&) B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(e) KEIAHER (e) Rescheduled advances
2014 2013
1 FERK [(EE-ge= e
S8 YEREE S &HH WEESEE
% of gross % of gross
advances to advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
ARTIT HERETTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
MEHE R EH P Rescheduled advances
(BEHREESR T to customers net of
HRE 3 EH e amounts included in
;B P e “Advances overdue
H for more than three
months” 13,620 0.05% - 0.00%
KEMAEHTIHEEFH Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
Ty FF I R e B RE 7 4 renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or of the
B & B Ty (R B inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule. Rescheduled
RERERTEH & advances, which have been overdue for more than three months under the revised
Koo BETBHGETEIR repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than three months”.
KB AH SR A

B 3{EF - AIEEE &
Wik 3 fEHZ &R
7 e
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4. &REREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 E8RE (8
B. SRR FMIRE (8

() EFEEHETE
(i) ETEIBZEFE

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

FRUBER
PUTR BN % = Bk 4E The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
BLZATHRTIT based on the categories with reference to the Completion Instructions for the
BTSSR SBE HKMA return of loans and advances.
ERXRBRZ 2E
IGEESINpERE =N
2014
BRALEREZ YESE fEREME  EHERHMEZ
& PR Btk BORE b1l BUERER B
Gross % Covered Individually Collectively
advances by collateral Classified assessed assessed
to or other or impairment impairment
customers security impaired Overdue allowances allowances
AT BT BT BT BETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERABEHZ &5 Loans for use in Hong Kong
TREeRisE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Vst - Property development 1,849,513 11.41% - - - 7,107
- VBRI - Property investment 4,876,588 88.38% - 180,160 - 19,731
- BRSE - Financial concerns 441,046 98.19% - 9,070 - 1,480
- BEEERAD - Stockbrokers 17,383 99.72% B _ ; 70
- it - Wholesale and retail
trade 2,821,022 81.63% - 13,645 - 10,986
- ke - Manufacturing 1,583,079 41.85% - - - 6,416
- A R - Transport and transport
equipment 1,433,059 52.44% - - - 5,515
- R EED - Recreational activities 6,068 100.00% _ _ _ 27
- R - Information technology 205,374 2.58% - - - 792
- Ffth - Others 2,216,507 51.99% - 869 - 7,693
{EA Individuals
- M EE A RS - Loans for the purchase of
TSR flats in Home
PG S aene=a e Ownership Scheme,
PSS Private Sector
T EER o
B2 Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 45,824 99.82% 960 886 - 47
- EHMEEYRE - Loans for purchase of
R other residential
properties 2,580,442 99.77% 2,586 13,301 - 2,383
- Fiftlr - Others 1,587,712 94.11% - 8,116 - 1,452
TEEB{IE 2 SR Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 19,663,617 71.03% 3,546 226,047 - 63,699
H Tl Trade finance 956,292 56.13% 14,385 20,753 15,848 3,738
AEEHELYME Z 653K Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 6,532,489 54.95% 50,539 39,620 245 24,822
B e Gross advances to
customers 27,152,398 66.64% 68,470 286,420 16,093 92,259

7



A A w &y
- C3
Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd

FIREB MM R A member of BOCHK Group

BRI (8D

4. GRRREE (&)

41 E8RE (8
B. SRR FMIRE (8

() EFEEFETE (8
(i) ETEIFZEFE

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)
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BRI

Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Property development
- Property investment
- Financial concerns
- Stockbrokers
- Wholesale and retail
trade
- Manufacturing
- Transport and transport
equipment
- Recreational activities
- Information technology
- Others

Individuals

- Loans for the purchase of
flats in Home
Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector
Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme

- Loans for purchase of
other residential
properties

- Others

Total loans for use in Hong
Kong

Trade finance

Loans for use outside Hong
Kong

Gross advances to
customers

4. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2013
A mEEZ e ERIFHEZ  HEHEZ
PR ookt BORE igt] A ERIER S
Gross Individually  Collectively
advances % Covered by Classified assessed assessed
to collateral or or impairment  impairment
customers other security impaired Overdue allowances  allowances
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,685,543 24.51% - - - 12,354
4,915,011 89.08% - 40,092 - 20,942
74,725 86.57% - - - 306
19,051 100.00% R _ B 88
2,604,279 87.17% - 3,401 - 10,713
1,135,925 59.54% - 4,011 - 4,832
1,368,333 63.32% - - - 5,732
7,052 100.00% - - - 21
306,841 2.04% - - - 1,397
1,235,074 81.49% - 2,498 - 4,021
54,218 99.96% 104 153 - 59
2,630,201 100.00% 12,355 17,763 - 2,466
1,399,771 96.47% - 4,976 - 1,307
17,436,024 78.82% 12,459 72,894 - 64,238
963,928 52.69% 24,544 24,544 25,513 4,265
5,861,208 62.36% 54,830 75,902 26,492 26,990
24,261,160 73.80% 91,833 173,340 52,005 95,493
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

The amount of new impairment allowances charged to the income statement, and
classified or impaired loans written off during the year are shown below:

BT
2014 2013
WeR E LS H ST E o3I
PrigpEEE HRRESRK TR BUREERK
New Classified or New Classified or
impairment impaired loans impairment impaired loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BT AT BT S ARE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RS E Loans for use in Hong Kong
TraemsE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- YRR - Property development - - 3,071 -
- VYA - Property investment - - 5,205 -
- Rl - Financial concerns - - 76 -
- RS - Stockbrokers - - 22 -
- SR - Wholesale and retail trade - - 2,663 -
- Bligse - Manufacturing - - 1,201 -
- A SRR - Transport and transport
equipment - - 1,425 -
- PREDESED - Recreational activities - - 5 _
- HRlRHE - Information technology - - 347 N
- Hyth - Others - - 999 -
{EA Individuals
- EEEA RS - Loans for the purchase of flats
A EER in Home Ownership Scheme,
SHEINHEEHR Private Sector Participation
FHEIE T &K Scheme and Tenants
Purchase Scheme - - 15 -
- EEHM e & - Loans for purchase of other
= residential properties - R 613 R
- Hyth - Others - - 325 -
TEE (T 2 SR Total loans for use in Hong Kong - - 15,967 R
E SR Trade finance 322 9,823 13,036 14,834
TERABLIMER Z &K Loans for use outside Hong
Kong - 23,990 13,080 -
AR Gross advances to customers 322 33,813 42,083 14,834
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers

The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
location of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For an
advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the

customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.

Gross advances to customers

2014 2013

AT AT

HK$°000 HK$'000

Hong Kong 22,231,830 19,808,998
Mainland of China 3,922,474 3,387,187
Others 998,094 1,064,975
27,152,398 24,261,160

Collectively assessed impairment allowances in respect of the gross

advances to customers
2014 2013
BT AT IT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Hong Kong 73,935 75,259
Mainland of China 14,290 14,964
Others 4,034 5,270
92,259 95,493
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

Overdue advances

2014 2013

BT AT IT

HK$’000 HK$’000

Hong Kong 226,046 90,034
Mainland of China 58,573 81,585
Others 1,801 1,721
286,420 173,340

Individually assessed impairment allowances in respect of the overdue

advances
2014 2013
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Hong Kong - 9,825
Mainland of China 16,093 42,180
Others - -
16,093 52,005

Collectively assessed impairment allowances in respect of the overdue

advances
2014 2013
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Hong Kong 786 356
Mainland of China 401 453
Others 13 14
1,200 823
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MEEERE: (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. &REREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERERE (&) 4.1 Credit Risk (continued)
B. ST R HAMMRE (&) B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(f) BEESHETE (8) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(i) HEERSEZE (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
PESREER (8D
HESTERRESER Classified or impaired advances
2014 2013
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
&y Hong Kong 8,086 22,284
i ER AT i Mainland of China 58,583 67,828
Fipth Others 1,801 1,721
68,470 91,833
R ESERBES Individually assessed impairment allowances in respect of the classified or
AR B A 2 K impaired advances
B
2014 2013
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
&Y Hong Kong - 9,825
R P Mainland of China 16,093 42,180
HoAth Others B ]
16,093 52,005
R ETERBES Collectively assessed impairment allowances in respect of the classified or
RAE4E &AL 2 K impaired advances
(B2
2014 2013
AT ATIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
A Hong Kong 24 12
R b Mainland of China 126 79
HoAth Others 13 14
163 105
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MEEERE: (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. &REREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERERE (&) 4.1 Credit Risk (continued)
C. lgE&E C. Repossessed assets
ALEEA 2014 47 12 H There were no repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
31 HmRA U e E Nil). Repossessed assets represent properties in respect of which the Group has
(2013 &+ ) - UYg[E[ & acquired access or control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the
JEEHE A £ [ 0 v R proprietors concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.

HUAS e B R T ME Y 4]
(s AR P
FHBER MR TR
TS ) I AR
TEHET IS 7 iR

& U [E] & Y S A When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the Group may
ZRILERS  NEEEHE consider the following alternatives:

TERLA AR

- PR EER - adjusting the selling prices
- EHERHEE O - selling the loans together with the assets
- ZHHEREN - arranging loan restructuring
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

D. Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

The following tables represent an analysis of balances and placements with banks and
other financial institutions that are neither overdue nor impaired as at 31 December by
rating agency designation.

2014
Aaa & A3 A3 BT fEREER dEET
Lower than
Aaato A3 A3 Unrated Total

BT B%TT BT T BRTIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Central banks 483,642 - - 483,642
Banks and other

financial institutions 7,162,770 1,028,681 990,338 9,181,789

7,646,412 1,028,681 990,338 9,665,431

2013
Aaa F A3 A3 DI SR HEET
Lower than

Aaa to A3 A3 Unrated Total

AT BT BT AT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

Central banks 471,324 - - 471,324
Banks and other

financial institutions 8,400,737 1,106,676 490,972 9,998,385

8,872,061 1,106,676 490,972 10,469,709

As at 31 December 2014, there were no overdue or impaired balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions (2013: Nil).
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4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41E8RE (8
E. BEEHRGE

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

E. Debt securities and certificates of deposit

TR B IR TR
Z s 7R M ARG IR
HfE - STV
HWT > AIEHETA

The following tables present an analysis of the carrying value of debt securities and
certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings
designated for the issuers are reported.

YRR
2014
Aaa Aal & Aa3 Al Z A3 A3 DIF SESTLR 4EET
Lower
Aaa AaltoAa3 AltoA3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BT BETT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
LRSS Available-for-sale
securities 349,925 3,744,079 3,155,935 319,417 1,893,938 9,463,294
FEZEFIHHES Held-to-maturity
securities - 599,674 - 77,188 - 676,862
FUE B LAV ESE R Financial assets
MBS eRgE designated at fair
value through profit
or loss - 85,299 350,346 623,789 41,497 1,100,931
HEEt Total 349,925 4,429,052 3,506,281 1,020,394 1,935,435 11,241,087
2013
Aaa  Aal % Aa3 AL £A3 A3 LT TEETLR St
Lower
Aaa AaltoAa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT AT AT ANBToT BT ABTT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Ak S Available-for-sale
securities 399,991 3,355,880 1,366,484 354,848 698,331 6,175,534
FrAEZIHES Held-to-maturity
securities - 626,596 2,356 77,184 - 706,136
AE BN EEE( ST Financial assets
AIBE T Rt E designated at fair
value through profit
or loss - 151,822 513,062 631,806 42,408 1,339,098
Haat Total 399,991 4,134,298 1,881,902 1,063,838 740,739 8,220,768

A 2014 12 H 31 H>
AR (.2 (7
% R {7 (2013
) -

As at 31 December 2014, there were no overdue or impaired debt securities and
certificates of deposit (2013: Nil).
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4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market Risk

4.2 SR

735 B\ 2 15 R Rl i 55 (H A%
(B ~ FIR ~ PR EE{EAS ~ L
B8 ) BB HEERRIISNE - F]
- ISR E E L
M AT REA AT AT AR EHER - A
B2 8 B HL 2 69 35 R R
4 TR B AR o T
G B F A - EREALE
I A J e e 47 P S TS 3 T
TR RS YRR B R
FIHBAE R T - ARCE A LE
] 56 5 o A BE A Y T 5 R
b o (EHEE SRS R R -

AR E IR e B R E A
JFRE S - R R
EEZRY - mEEEASM
TRERD, BEfr - BEIHE > &8
HiT - MEEHEEATTISR
WEEEERN - BHEEE
B BJETH B - BT
B 2% A SR [ R T 55 L s tR O DA
FEEBORAIRAERI T - Ak
T O B B AL 51 FY 7 325 e B 39
PEHIE AT HEZ AR KA -

A B s A T 5 e e A R PR
B PG - BTE - BN
AT o £ S fE AR AR
HEBER RN EREE - 18
B~ R ~ BRI T LR SR
AT o E SR B AR A

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to
the volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity
price, commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to
achieve a balance between risk and return. The Group's objective in managing
market risk is to secure healthy growth of the treasury business, by effective
management of potential market risk in the Group's business, according to the
Group's overall risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on the basis of a well
established risk management regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board of Directors and RC, senior management and functional
departments/units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s
market risk. Financial Management Department (“FMD”) is mainly responsible for
managing market risk, assisting senior management to perform their day-to-day
duties, independently monitoring the market risk profile and compliance of
management policies and limits of the Group, and ensuring that the aggregate and
individual market risks are within acceptable levels.

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to VAR,
Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis etc. To meet
management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified into three
levels, and are approved by RC, ALCO and the Head of FMD respectively. Business
units are required to conduct their business within approved market risk indicators

G ELERZEH Ry =(EE 4 - 7> and limits.
FHEREEZESE BEAMR

EHZEE G R BERSEE
HEAE - SEBEALLAERVZAT T
S5 e\ g 5 SRR PR 5 o [ 1 o J
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4. &REREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.2 WEEk (&) 4.2 Market Risk (continued)
A RE A. VAR
REEE ARG E ST % The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the RC and
THELE b » 6 = HE A B S B senior management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR
EE @R %E%ﬁ)\% e calculation model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical

market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group over a 1-day holding period with a
99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR limit of the Group.

& AEERR A —HE R E
SRR R S L
L% 2 SRS EE R
28 55 99% EE/KFET
Ko 1 REFH PSR e
B > s o A S A

{EFRAEH -
TR AL TS E The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure® of the
WeRrEnEkRE ' - Group.
i i Z24F Z24F
Fr 12A31H BEEE SERE PERE
Minimum  Maximum
At 31 for for Average for
Year December the year the year the year
BT BT BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
SR G 2 R VAR for all market risk 2014 144 140 253 205
2013 133 133 518 337
PRESR e R (L VAR for foreign exchange risk 2014 144 140 253 205
2013 130 127 527 332
IESE ol VAR for interest rate risk 2014 - - - .
2013 15 15 31 27
e Note:
1B 4 O 45 4 P e 1 7 e e 1. Structural FX positions have been excluded.
g -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market Risk (continued)

A. VAR (continued)

HENE b (B B TS R R —
THE IR - HFHERME -
B -

- PRFHEE ST S Al AT R 2K
BYRERAERR K AT AT AE B
HITE I > ST — b
D

- —HFEEHREET AR
FrAEES T UE—HNE
TR - EIRRECAR L RESE
SR  THAEHS
A P AR - TRER B AE—
HEFaMAER S ATH
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- RIBESR > B 99% EE
KPR BIERAH AL E RS
KLU N HER A TE  BL
K

- BB B2 LB SR IR [ 46l BRI
HIFR AR (Fat AL (R
—TERIRAL G B A -

AREE S T R E RS
PR - DRI - fE T BRI TR
1R e PRAEALA S RO R R g (5 A
REE TS E R o TS E R
T tAE A E R bR N R e
N A S P (YRR S
LU EE SRS R 5034 > 40
1987 fi K ~ 1994 (i3 i 51t -
1997 TEjHEREES - 2001 3
911 ZE{FLLK 2008 Rl

B. SMNEMEER

KEHENEERARETHEE
TC FERARBEEHEWE - K
Tl PR 471 L i 7 98 DRy 7 ] 252
Ko AER EH R (14
BRHE R SR B PR F Ry B
B 8 AEEBI IR E—
BlH R E S AR W E A
FISNEESY (FIAnSPERLE]) &R
EE SIS o B (P 2 A ) S

b -

Although a valuable guide to market risk, VAR should always be viewed in
the context of its limitations. For example:

- the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events
may not encompass all potential events, particularly those which are
extreme in nature;

- the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be
liquidated or hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk
arising at times of severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may
be insufficient to liquidate or hedge all positions fully;

- the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into
account losses that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

- VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of
business and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators
and limits to assess and manage the market risk uncovered by VAR. The
stress testing programme of the market risk includes sensitivity testing on
changes in risk factors with various degrees of severity, as well as scenario
analysis on historical events including the 1987 Equity Market Crash, 1994
Bond Market Crash, 1997 Asian Financial Crisis, 2001 9-11 event and 2008
Financial Tsunami, etc.

B. Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies,
particularly the HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the
currency risk exposure of the Group is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits
(e.g. Position and VAR limit) are used to serve as a monitoring tool.
Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap between assets and
liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g. FX swaps)
are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.
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4. &REREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 MRk (&) 4.2 Market Risk (continued)
B. sMEEEE (&) B. Currency risk (continued)
R T AR 12 The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate
A 31 H oMb risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
IS - RN B A A amounts in HK dollars equivalent, categorised by the original currency.
D& A R mE 51
N MR -
2014
T e BT BXZE HE 3 HA gt
us HK Japanese Pound
Renminbi Dollars Dollars Euro Yen Sterling Others Total

BT BWTL BWTR BWTx AT B8Ta B%TT B%Trx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BE Assets
[EEFER S RAFIERA T R Cash and balances with
HA SRt 4565 banks and other financial
institutions 4,912,833 369,482 278,611 148,140 12,046 64,277 215,651 6,001,040

TESRIT R HoAth B R b%E Placements with banks and
—Z+ @\ AR other financial institutions

A maturing between one and
twelve months 38013 2,522,473 153715 89,574 - 96,631 944,431 3,844,837
FLE B LLAPEEE{EET A Financial assets designated
B GRlEE at fair value through profit
or loss - 1,100,931 - - - - - 1,100,931
ST AR Derivative financial
instruments - 312 200,721 - - - - 201,033
R H AR TR Advances and other accounts 3,061,638 6,164,137 19,579,152 15,935 9,237 1,012 2,861 28,833,972
A Investment in securities ; .
- A ER S - Available-for-sale securities 2,868,480 3,202,369 2,947,584 208 - - 520,737 9,539,378
- A EFIHH R - Held-to-maturity securities - - 676,862 - - - - 676,862
&EYE Investment properties - - 230,120 - - - - 230,120
WS ~ B R R Properties, plant and
equipment 8,237 - 1,408,845 - - - - 1,417,082
Hitr&rE (BIEEERIE  Other assets (including
BHE) deferred tax assets) 10,578 16,937 288,670 2 3,232 13 1,565 320,997
REGH Total assets 10,899,779 13,376,641 25,764,280 253,859 24515 161,933 1685245 52,166,252
j=Ui= Liabilities
SRIT R H M S Rt > Deposits and balances from
T B 4 banks and other financial
institutions (350,122)  (221,549)  (13,476) (9,425) (9.962) (6,260)  (30,642)  (641,436)
TTESRTHE Derivative financial
instruments - (20,794)  (117,273) - - - - (138,067)
HEFK Deposits from customers (9,685,946) (4,995,138) (27,189,704)  (294,062)  (39,724)  (147,183) (1,591,080) (43,942,837)
HoAthHRIE R (BFERER]  Other accounts and
FRE R IR e T A (S ) provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (21,519)  (130,690)  (949,410) (19,469) (541) (299) (31,844) (1,153,772)
AR Total liabilities (10,057,587) (5,368,171) (28,269,863)  (322,956)  (50,227)  (153,742) (1,653,566) (45,876,112)
HEARRETHE Net on-balance sheet position 842,192 8,008,470 (2,505583)  (69,097) (25712 8,191 31,679 6,290,140
FRINEEAMIEFE  Off-balance sheet net notional
position* (4,913) (7,722,667) 7,746,262 70,270 25,962 (8.150)  (22,327) 84,437
HARE (8 B IE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 660,183 2,549,989 3,521,249 35,789 47,798 369 22,565 6,837,942
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4.2 Market Risk (continued)

B. Currency risk (continued)

Assets

Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions

Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit
or loss

Derivative financial
instruments

Advances and other accounts

Investment in securities

- Available-for-sale securities

- Held-to-maturity securities

Investment properties

Properties, plant and
equipment

Other assets (including
deferred tax assets)

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Derivative financial
instruments

Deposits from customers

Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities)

Total liabilities
Net on-balance sheet position

Off-balance sheet net notional
position*

Contingent liabilities and
commitments

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2013

NS FEIT AT ERZE HIEl g FHoAtlr dat

us HK Japanese Pound
Renminbi Dollars Dollars Euro Yen  Sterling Others Total
BT BT T BT BT BNTIT BT BBTT BNTT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000
2,111,045 2,715,020 232,280 172,905 13,302 778 402,321 5,647,651
920,966 3,256,272 361,240 106,740 405,186 5,050,404
1,339,098 - 1,339,098
- 478 176,623 - - - 177,101
2,839,489 5,926,498 17,280,559 13,847 21,803 1,148 3,116 26,086,460
2,089,154 1,065,710 2,091,254 208 179,026 814,465 6,239,817
29,271 676,865 706,136
257,400 257,400
8,854 1,266,096 1,274,950
12,420 483,144 11 3 121 495,699
7,981,928 14,332,347 22,825,461 293,700 35,116 180,955 1,625,209 47,274,716
(74,333)  (529,534)  (219,097) (40,066) (18,446) (33,011) (33,724)  (948,211)
(32,960) (73,777) - - - (106,737)
(7,236,060) (4,738,824) (25,004,876)  (264,051) (37,738)  (173,107) (1,653,829) (39,108,485)
(19,528)  (237,476)  (651,256) (21,020) (907) (692) (50,363)  (981,242)
(7,329,921) (5,538,794) (25,949,006)  (325,137) (57,091)  (206,810) (1,737,916) (41,144,675)
652,007 8,793,553 (3,123,545) (31,437) (21,975) (25,855)  (112,707) 6,130,041
96,233 (8,531,100) 8,339,548 31,600 22,321 25,518 116,043 100,163
266,067 2,571,675 4,057,911 24,106 11,330 295 24,558 6,955,942

* Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the net notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 iR (&) 4.2 Market Risk (continued)

C. Fl==mkx

C. Interest rate risk
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Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value
arising from movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s
asset and liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are
mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk from structural
positions are:

- Repricing risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing periods of assets
and liabilities that may affect net interest income;

- Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that
the yield on assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts
within the same repricing period;

- Yield curve risk: non-parallel shifts in the yield curve that may have an
adverse impact on net interest income or economic value; and

- Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in assets, liabilities or
off-balance sheet items that can cause a change in the cash flows of
assets and liabilities.

The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk
management. The ALCO exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in
accordance with the “Interest Rate Risk Management Policy” approved by
the RC. FMD is responsible for interest rate risk management. With the
cooperation of Treasury Division, FMD assists the ALCO to perform
day-to-day interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but are not
limited to, the formulation of management policies, selection of
methodologies, setting of risk indicators and limits, assessment of target
balance sheet, monitoring of the compliance with policies and limits, and
submission of interest rate risk management reports to the senior
management and RC, etc.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 iR (&) 4.2 Market Risk (continued)

C. FlZmkx (&)

C. Interest rate risk (continued)
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The Group set out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control interest rate risk. The indicators and limits include, but
are not limited to, repricing gap limits, basis risk, net interest income
sensitivity ratio (“NII”), economic value sensitivity ratio (‘EV”) (including
sub-limit for AFS securities), etc. The indicators and limits are classified into
three levels, which are approved by the RC, ALCO and the Head of FMD
respectively. Risk-taking business units are required to conduct their
business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits. Before launching
a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the
assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the
adequacy of current risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact on
interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment process will be submitted
to the RC for approval.

NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net
interest income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk
indicators. The former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net
interest income as a percentage to the projected net interest income for the
year. The latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic
value (i.e. the net present value of cash-flows of assets, liabilities and
off-balance sheet items discounted using market interest rate) as a
percentage to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the RC on these two
indicators to monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analysis and stress tests to assess the banking
book interest rate risk that the Group would face under adverse
circumstances. Scenario analysis and stress tests are also used to assess
the impact on net interest income and economic value arising from the
optionality of savings deposits and the prepayment of mortgage loans.
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4.2 Market Risk (continued)

C. Interest rate risk (continued)
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Assets

Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions

Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit
or loss

Derivative financial
instruments

Advances and other accounts

Investment in securities

- Available-for-sale securities

- Held-to-maturity securities

Investment properties

Properties, plant and
equipment

Other assets (including
deferred tax assets)

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Derivative financial
instruments

Deposits from customers

Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities)

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate
risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

2014
—Z ==

—EAN =@A = —BHE HEME FEtE §ast

Non-

Upto1l 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total
EWTIT HEETT BT B¥Te B¥Te B¥Tt BWTa
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
5,628,451 - - - - 372,589 6,001,040
- 1,513,610 2,331,227 - - 3,844,837
- - 85,299 1,015,632 - 1,100,931
- - - - - 201,033 201,033
21,482,470 5,798,832 1,542,007 10,663 - - 28,833,972
1,260,891 2,762,968 2,743,612 2,695,823 - 76,084 9,539,378
501,462 175,400 - - - - 676,862
- - - - - 230,120 230,120
- - - - - 1,417,082 1,417,082
2,124 - - - - 318,873 320,997
28,875,398 10,250,810 6,702,145 3,722,118 - 2,615781 52,166,252
(550,889) (18,007) - - - (72,540)  (641,436)
- - - - - (138,067)  (138,067)
(26,260,113) (8,777,607) (6,169,528)  (377,580) - (2,358,009) (43,942,837)
(193,723) - - - - (960,049) (1,153,772)
(27,004,725) (8,795,614) (6,169,528) (377,580) - (3,528,665) (45,876,112)
1,870,673 1,455,196 532,617 3,344,538 - (912,884) 6,290,140
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4.2 Market Risk (continued)

C. Interest rate risk (continued)

Assets

Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions

Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit
or loss

Derivative financial
instruments

Advances and other accounts

Investment in securities

- Available-for-sale securities

- Held-to-maturity securities

Investment properties

Properties, plant and
equipment

Other assets (including
deferred tax assets)

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Derivative financial
instruments

Deposits from customers

Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities)

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2013
—= ==

—MEAAN =f&H +=ME A ERE HEME TR dEst

Non-

Uptol 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total
BT BETT BT BN TIT BNETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5,236,865 - - - - 410,786 5,647,651
- 3,831,618 1,218,786 - - - 5,050,404
- - 215,725 1,123,373 - - 1,339,098
- - - - - 177,101 177,101
20,660,815 3,730,303 1,323,986 371,356 - - 26,086,460
916,278 1,749,954 1,231,673 2,277,630 - 64,282 6,239,817
501,472 175,392 29,272 - - - 706,136
- - - - - 257,400 257,400
- - - - - 1,274,950 1,274,950
- - - - - 495,699 495,699
27,315,430 9,487,267 4,019,442 3,772,359 - 2,680,218 47,274,716
(798,843) (25,492) - - - (123,876)  (948,211)
- - - - - (106,737)  (106,737)
(25,183,306) (6,529,830) (5,176,570) (382,925) - (1,835,854) (39,108,485)
(354,715) - - - - (626,527)  (981,242)
(26,336,864) (6,555,322)  (5,176,570)  (382,925) - (2,692,994) (41,144,675)
978,566 2,931,945  (1,157,128) 3,389,434 - (12,776) 6,130,041
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market Risk (continued)

D. Sensitivity analysis to market risk exposure of the Group

The Group is principally exposed to HK dollar, US dollar and Renminbi in
terms of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2014, if HK dollar, US dollar and
Renminbi market interest rates had a 100 basis point parallel upward shift of
the yield curve in relevant currency with other variables held constant, profit
before tax for the year would have been HK$41,500,000 (2013:
HK$47,000,000) higher. The impact on reserves would be insignificant. The
sensitivity analysis set out above is for illustration only.

Interest rate exposures in banking book

The following is a summary of possible effects of market interest rates shocks
on the Group’s interest rate exposure for major currencies in its banking book.
Subsidiaries are excluded from the analysis below:

12 F 31 Hg®
Impact on positions
at 31 December

ATTEERHhAR-T 1 100 £

SEITE R HhaR-T L% 100 £

NERHZERHh4-TAT_EFS 100 Hokh

b R R A i O
@ B ERE (EAREY) T3
TR QAR BH B S LI AR BRI
b~ FIRPATIEE) - Rat By
JRRABC R L ] BEBRHUAY 4R F
JRETTE) ~ E AR -
FTAREEEt 25 H Rk 7
BEIIEAEENEITEAA
ARG HEIMIE Z
Mt balRK P S AL
E R AR ey — o -

2014 2013
Earnings perspective BT ATIT
Scenarios HK$’000 HK$°000

Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
HK dollar yield curves 49,000 48,500

Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
US dollar yield curves (18,000) (5,500)

Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
Renminbi yield curves 10,500 4,000

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several
assumptions, including (but not limited to) the change in the correlation
between interest rates of relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest
rates, the absence of actions that would be taken to mitigate the impact of
interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedging accounting, all positions being
assumed to run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of products in which
actual repricing date differs from contractual repricing date or products without
contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the Group’s
overall interest rate risk exposures.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

A3 mEESERE 4.3 Liquidity Risk
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Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow
assets or pay due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The
Group maintains sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and
adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under normal
circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting HKMA to act
as the lender of last resort.

The Group's liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the
liquidity of on- and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on
the liquidity risk appetite to achieve sound operation and sustainable
profitability. Customer deposits are the Group’s primary source of funds. To
ensure stable and sufficient source of funds are in place, the Group actively
attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains supplementary
funding from the interbank market. According to different term maturities
and the results of funding needs estimated from stressed scenarios, the
Group adjusts its asset structure (including loans, bonds investment,
interbank placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets which provides
adequate funds in support of normal business needs and ensure its ability to
raise funds at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in case of
emergency. The Group is committed to diversify the source of funds and the
use of funds to avoid excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and
prevent triggering liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand when
problem occurred in one concentrated funding source. The Group has
established intra-group liquidity risk management guideline to manage the
liquidity funding among different entities within the Group, and to restrict their
reliance of funding on each other. The Group also pays attention to manage
liquidity risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such as loan
commitments, derivatives, options and other complex structured products.
The Group has an overall liquidity risk management strategy to cover the
liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities, collateral,
intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other
risks, etc., and has formulated corresponding contingency plan.

The RC is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk management, and
assumes the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by RC, ALCO exercises its oversight of liquidity risk and ensures
the daily operations of the Group are in accordance with risk appetite and
policies as set by RC. FMD is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
liquidity risk. It cooperates with Treasury Division to assist the ALCO to
perform liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.
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4. &REREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
A3 GEEESEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)
AEEREREE &R The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to identify,
[REH - B H A - 518 - B measure, monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These indicators and
HIFIERDR B E SR - EiEE limits include, but are not limited to liquidity ratio, loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum
AR REILER ~ EFFLE% -~ & Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCO”) and liquidity buffer asset portfolio. The Group
REFEER - DUEREIESE applies cash flow analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under normal
HEREMHESE - AEERARS conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test (including institution specific,
TRE T LAEHE AL EN IEE general market crisis and combined crisis) and other methods at least on monthly
WCTHIREIE AR - Wi/ Vi basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand various severe liquidity crises.
H 1T 7 8 & <5 e i B ) R Also, the Assets and Liabilities Management System is developed to provide data
(HIEE B e - S EEEL and the preparation for regular management reports to facilitate liquidity risk

JeEfffat%) fEAM DA - shE management duties.

REERE S ERR RS E S
PAYRES] - ALSEEIREIL T &
FEEH ARG - fEBtEEE R Bh
B e HER - DUEBEIPR
g -

AEERBSERR 2011 F4H In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2 “Sound
iz BEEBCR T LM-2( f& {2y Systems and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in
TRENE & R A 2011, the Group has implemented in 2013 the refinement on the behaviour model
i) tRAVEESK o By 2013 FEISE and assumptions of cash flow analysis and stress test to enhance the Group’s
SRR B BB T I E P cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions. In cash flow
PRA OV MR R BB AL analysis under normal circumstances, refinements have been made to
DU LA HE KRR assumptions relating to on-balance sheet items (such as customer deposits) and
THERER T - TEHEE T off-balance sheet items (such as loan commitments). According to various
YRR G » AREE R IEE characteristics of the assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items, the Group
BANEN (NEBEER) MFEIN forecasts the future cash flow based on contractual maturity date and the
(WEFoRH) HEEERES assumptions of customer behaviour and balance sheet changes. The Group
Bk - HIERFEEE - AfENER establishes MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 days maximum
ANIE H B EE 0 RIS LY EHY cumulative net cash outflow in normal situations based on the above
H - ZEE M SR EEAER assumptions, to assess if the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the
LS » ATE IR SEERY R cash flow gap in order to achieve the objective of continuing operation. As at 31
RIRG R ER  AEEN T & December 2014, before taking the cash inflow through the sale of outstanding
KEFHEES R | 51 RIELL marketable securities into consideration, the Bank’s 30 day cumulative cash flow
TR B E S ARk was a net cash inflow, amounting to HK$4,653,328,000 (2013:
30 HZ R Eat e R DL HK$2,121,933,000) and was in compliant with the internal limit requirements.

FHE AR BRI E R TR R B
FERFZIRERER 0 > DUZEIRSE
KOS HY- A 2014 £ 12 H 31
H o {E9FZEHERIIAAE
HRIRESRAZERT - AR
72 30 HEFHEESMEFN
A ke 4,653,328,000 ¢
(2013 ££ : i 2,121,933,000
T FFENEIREAREK -
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4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

A3 mEhEEEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)
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In the liquidity stress test, a new combined scenario which is a combination of
institution specific and general market crisis has been set up in 2013 to assess
the Group’s capability to withstand a more severe liquidity crisis, with a more
stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test assumptions include the
run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown rate of loan
commitments and trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and
rollover rate of customer loans; and haircut of interbank placement and
marketable securities. As at 31 December 2014, the Group was able to maintain a
positive cash flow under the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has
the ability to meet financing needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the
Group has a policy in place to maintain a liquidity cushion which includes high
quality or comparable quality marketable securities issued or guaranteed by
sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities or multilateral development banks
with 0% or 20% risk weight or non-financial corporate issued or guaranteed
marketable securities with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or above
(adopt corresponding internal rating if external credit rating is unavailable) to
ensure funding needs even under stressed scenarios, as at 31 December 2014,
the liquidity cushion (before haircut) was HK$4,404,764,000. A contingency plan
is being established which details the conditions to trigger the plan based on
stress test results and early warning indicators, the action plans and relevant
procedures and responsibility of various departments.

In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have the right to request from
the Group for additional collateral if they have concerns about the Group’s
creditworthiness.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant
departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the
adequacy of the current risk management mechanism. Any material impact on
liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process will be reported to RC for
approval.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)
A. Liquidity ratio

2014 2013

Average liquidity ratio 48.16% 43.52%

The average liquidity ratio is calculated as the simple average of each calendar
month’s average liquidity ratio of local offices of the Bank for the year.

The liquidity ratio is computed on the solo basis (the Hong Kong offices only)
and is in accordance with the Fourth Schedule to the Banking Ordinance.

99



4 & 4 Ay

Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd
FIREB MM R A member of BOCHK Group

BRI (8D

4. GRRREE (&)

43 REEeRE (8

B. 4T

TRBAEERN 12 A
3l HZEEKAM
HY (39 H o7 25
RO BEMSA
S4B H /Y

4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)

B. Maturity analysis

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to

the contractual maturity date.

FleR IR 85 -
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2014
—& =z
B —EAN =@ERE +=EA —&HEF HEEME FEEAH St
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5
On demand 1 month months months years years Indefinite Total
BYTT BT BT B¥TIT BETT B¥T  B¥TT  B¥T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Assets
Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions 4,836,652 819,773 - - - - 344,615 6,001,040
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months - - 1,513,610 2,331,227 - - - 3,844,837
Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit
or loss
— debt securities - 9,193 10,014 83,877 997,847 - - 1,100,931
Derivative financial
instruments 185,005 15,431 288 - 309 - - 201,033
Advances and other accounts
— advances to customers 4,356,027 805,666 1,502,578 3,259,345 10,603,764 6,438,982 77,684 27,044,046
— trade bills - 555181 868,579 366,166 - - - 1,789,926
Investment in securities
— available-for-sale
— debt securities - 207,909 881,179 1,416,370 2,834,802 - - 5,340,260
— certificates of deposit - 3,659 482,469 2,980,887 656,019 - - 4,123,034
— held-to-maturity
— debt securities - 1,462 98,212 500,000 - - - 599,674
— certificates of deposit - - 77,188 - - - - 77,188
— equity securities - - - - - - 76,084 76,084
Investment properties - - - - - - 230,120 230,120
Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - - 1,417,082 1,417,082
deferred tax assets) 7,652 302,938 98 2,189 7,878 - 242 320,997
Total assets 9,385,336 2,721,212 5,434,215 10,940,061 15,100,619 6,438,982 2,145,827 52,166,252
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions (238,490)  (384,939) (18,007) - - - - (641,436)
Derivative financial
instruments (115,119) (1,778) (379) (2,168) (18,623) - - (138,067)
Deposits from customers (20,887,412) (7,730,710) (8,777,607) (6,169,528) (377,580) - -(43,942,837)
Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (311,136)  (575,146) (34,008) (43,286)  (190,196) - - (1,153,772)
Total liabilities (21,552,157) (8,692,573) (8,830,001) (6,214,982)  (586,399) - - (45,876,112)
Net liquidity gap (12,166,821) (5,971,361) (3,395,786) 4,725,079 14,514,220 6,438,982 2,145,827 6,290,140
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Assets
Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions

Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss
— debt securities

Derivative financial instruments

Advances and other accounts
— advances to customers
— trade bills

Investment in securities
— available-for-sale

— debt securities
— certificates of deposit
— held-to-maturity
— debt securities
— certificates of deposit
— equity securities
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment

Hit&E (RiEIEEIEEE ) Other assets (including deferred

HERH

Sl
SRIT R EAM R A 2 Ak
Foitibh

IThEMTE

EPEK

HARIA R At (RIEER
MR R A )

tax assets)
Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities)

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap

4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)

B. Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

—%

BIHH —EAAN =fEA —ZEAF AEDLE FHEEHB Hst

Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5
On demand 1 month months months years years Indefinite Total
AT AT BN BNTOT BT BN TT BN T AT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
1,919,314 3,338,444 - - - - 389,893 5,647,651
- - 3,831,618 1,218,786 - - - 5,050,404
- 9,945 10,013 215,017 1,104,123 - - 1,339,098
174,857 1,773 - - 471 - - 177,101
3,214,005 876,865 1,519,789 2,914,633 9,093,632 6,453,332 41,406 24,113,662
- 544,763 1,067,900 360,135 - - - 1,972,798
- 405,429 479,070 652,765 1,971,524 - - 3,508,788
- 156,037 735,374 863,041 912,294 - - 2,666,746
- 1,472 208 29,271 598,001 - - 628,952
B B 184 B 77,000 - - 77,184
- - - - - - 64,283 64,283
- - R - - - 257,400 257,400
- - - - - - 1,274,950 1,274,950
6,354 478,418 - 1,999 8,488 - 440 495,699
5,314,530 5,813,146 7,644,156 6,255,647 13,765,533 6,453,332 2,028,372 47,274,716
(167,721) (754,997)  (25,493) - - - - (948,211)
(71,099) (1,751) (934) (2,510)  (30,443) - - (106,737)
(19,291,609)  (7,727,553) (6,529,828) (5,176,570) (382,925) - - (39,108,485)
(474,540) (276,658) (7,880)  (52,093) (170,071) - - (981,242)
(20,004,969)  (8,760,959) (6,564,135) (5,231,173) (583,439) - - (41,144,675)
(14,690,439)  (2,947,813) 1,080,021 1,024,474 13,182,094 6,453,332 2,028,372 6,130,041
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MBEERMEE (&)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. &REREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELSEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)
B. #JHIR /347 (&) B. Maturity analysis (continued)

RHEEA H % The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance with relevant
W (eRITE (PER) provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets
FART) Z ARSI such as advances and debt securities which have been overdue for not more than
YR o AEEER A one month as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different
s 1 {EAZE payments or instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is
> BInERE L E reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to the
Hosslh THIHE ) & residual maturity unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case the
EE o BN EIEE amount is reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after deduction of
sy EEE Z HE provisions, if any.

REZERE P EE

A B0 3 % 1A 2

A o HAARFH
S5 AR R BRI
o8 ERECEH
BEZEEFAR
[E - A2 ZE RS
B TAMEERS - B
AR Z BECHIR
B S (2
A)e

Y eR 2 H B HE RS The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is disclosed in order

FE5 7 i B g to comply with relevant provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The
CER1TE (PFE) # disclosure does not imply that the securities will be held to maturity.

AT Z MH B SCIf#2

1Y o FTEB AR

RILFEFHEFRAZE

FEAE -
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43 REEEEE (&)

C. HEQIH B 2 RITH

R

(a) IFTETRZEER

ML T AR 12
A 31 HZITEEmeE
AT R & 4RI H SR

BT -

SRR

S R S 4 A
e tER RS

FEER

Sftr RS

SRhE (R

SRR
SRAT e Hopth < A
T2 (KB AR

R
sttt R

SRhE (R

Financial liabilities
Deposits and balances
from banks and other
financial institutions
Deposits from customers
Other financial
liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Financial liabilities
Deposits and balances
from banks and other
financial institutions
Deposits from customers
Other financial
liabilities

Total financial liabilities

4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31
December for non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual

maturities.

2014

—= ==
—EAN =MEA +=@ —BHE  AHEME #st

Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5

1 month months months years years Total
BT BT BT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
(623,476) (18,007) - - (641,483)
(28,622,324) (8,803,442) (6,265,965) (402,874) - (44,094,605)
(882,118) (4,618) (5,361) (892,097)
(30,127,918)  (8,826,067) (6,271,326) (402,874) - (45,628,185)

2013

—% =%
—fEAA =fEA +{EA —ERF HEDLE “Eat

Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5

1 month months months years years Total
AT AT BT BT BT BEETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
(922,783) (25,492) - - (948,275)
(27,023,168) (6,546,999) (5,249,493) (405,242) - (39,224,902)
(724,879) (62,016) (611) (787,506)
(28,670,830)  (6,572,491) (5,311,509) (405,853) - (40,960,683)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

A3 mEhEEEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)

C. HEQIH B 2 RITH
e (8

C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(continued)

b) STETEZRER (b) Derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
contractual maturities as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities
that will be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial
instruments that will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the
contract is in an asset or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the
tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, except for certain
derivatives which are disclosed at fair value.

TR T A 12 H
31 HEFHER&4IEBHE S
IRZ BB 0 AR
BEEERZ T ESMA
{5 - R A B AR AR SS
RZirtEsf T H (R
A GO EEENA
5 BREOTAET RS
SPESIRSL > N RBERRY
FLAl S AHE Ry AR AL HTER Y
EEBRER -

REEH PR
TS TR EEEFEF]
i IR

The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net
basis mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial
instruments that will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency

forwards and currency swaps.

RZrAEef TR E%E
maERE R G -
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(b) FIETREZHER ()

HOFHEERER Y
(s =l

HHRERARER Y
PTAEZMTAE

HORH

HOFHA SR 2
(A =i

PR RER
TAESMITE
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e

E -

Fay

It
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)

(continued)

Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis

Derivative financial
instruments settled on a
gross basis

Total inflow
Total outflow

Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis

Derivative financial
instruments settled on a
gross basis

Total inflow
Total outflow

(b) Derivative cash flows (continued)

C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

2014
—Z =z
—EAN =ZEA  +=ER —=ZEIf HAHEMUE #st
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BETL  E¥TRT  B¥TR BETT BBTT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
(119,444) (8,163) 156 (8,496) (135,947)
5,827,181 3,073,564 8,900,745
(5,812,944) (3,073,093) (8,886,037)
2013
—F =%
—EAN =@R +=EA —ZE0fF HFME Hst
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
ARTIT BWTOT BETOT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(75,219) (7,980) (3,025) (18,450) (104,674)
6,733,519 2,945,520 9,679,039
(6,733,127) (2,946,520) (9,679,647)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

A3 mEhEEEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)

C. &R STz RITH C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
R (8 (continued)

(c) BKE&FRINER

(c) Off-balance sheet items

BROKIE

ARIAEE 2014 £ 12
H 31 Him# PRI RS
B R A BRIl
TH > HEQEEEEYE
5,752,835,000 7T (2013

Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial
instruments as at 31 December 2014 that the Group commits to extend
credit to customers and other facilities amounted to HK$5,752,835,000
(2013: HK$5,743,830,000). Those loan commitments can be drawn within
one year.

4 HEWE 5,743,830,000
TC)  MEEEHURIE T —
FEPFEHL

AT O S HLAL T A5 R

AEEE 2014 £ 12 A 31 Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31
H 2 J 8 O s FLAth A 75 December 2014 amounting to  HK$1,085,107,000  (2013:
mLE & O B HK$1,212,112,000) are maturing no later than one year.

1,085,107,000 . (2013

4o 1,212,112,000

7)) HEEAHDHR—4F -

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREH 4.4 Capital Management

AT EANEEN EE HER
A B SR AT B S I e IR DU AE
HYEARTT KN - [EIlE R AR
K el - BEAREHZ R
GE Wt AT EALERE - I
1 75 B0 o 17 M B DL R B R
b ~ [l B AT e M R T
fhy -

KETEHETL -EBANNE
AREHPERAIF ] - 3 H
TTEAF - ILERHIOREEIRI TS
FesEsamnER - AT A
ARFERFRHVER - BEAREH
ZEEARGEARTHER
etk - ASRATER e Bt
SITEB T B S HEE BIYA
TERARE > T -

ASRAIT PR BT A Bl S aR 2
fEEt EA R ARM IR R
L B K 4 B (5 B LB AR 2
3K e NE G (E B R B R e I
e (FEERE) stEAS
F o RETERAIRAE S B (E A
5% st R A EE MG {EREE
JRRAYAE 2 T A AEK -

ASRAT R N A
EEH ELANE R F A — e
JEBRE ALK » WEEE A
R 00 BT AL G A DR e 1 7 A
SR E AR - AIRTE
SR (R stEE
SRR SRR EAZDK -

AT R I CEBHRE
Jfz ) EHEESH RARIE R A

The major objective of the Bank’s capital management is to maximise total
shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to
the Bank’s overall risk profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Bank’s capital
structure and adjusts the capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal
balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

The Bank has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and
controls on capital management to support the development of the Bank’s
business and to meet the statutory capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the
Bank’s capital adequacy. The Bank has complied with all the statutory capital
requirements of the HKMA for the reported periods in respect of banking operation
as further elaborated below:

The Bank has adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB”) approach to
calculate the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-securitisation
exposures. A small residual credit exposures are remained under the standardised
(credit risk) (“STC”) approach. The Bank has adopted the standardised credit
valuation adjustment (CVA) method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk
of the counterparty.

The Bank continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM”) approach to calculate the
general market risk capital charge for foreign exchange and interest rate
exposures and, with the approvals from HKMA, exclude its structural FX positions
in the calculation of the market risk capital charge. The Bank continues to adopt
the standardised (market risk) (“STM”) approach to calculate the market risk
capital charge for the remaining exposures.

The Bank continues to adopt standardised (operational risk) (“STO”) approach to
calculate the operational risk capital charge.
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4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 HREHE (8

4.4 Capital Management (continued)

AIRATIY 2014 AN
AR ERHEREFUFEEE
REEBERTM T EEEERE
FP o REIEDR - B REE
SORERVEES | > NERE AT R TG
TR E B LIPS S — i
TARAMBHIC T MENEKR
[ERFr R EEINEA - fEEk
AIRIT R AR A e FE — S A
B2 ~ B —SRE AR FRE
HEEAREETR - [Fl > AERITIRER
A ALY B A EE R E T AE &
] > DASCRESES SR R AR R e
BEARNARCER - REATRRA
AT R SRR P 2 — ([ FF
FRyEAEHEE > WERES
B By B Ra R IR O 1T E S B
R g AL -

BEST - RIS TREHIEEEER
R HAERAEHEEEEE
IR EEREHAE - AANEIR
SEF RS ~ B [E e b
W~ (SRR - BRfERORE 4
FERHEEEA TR MR8 > e
M FHRIAR R E AT K LB
o AR AR TREAERF RLATFHY
BARREE REAAGER i
BRI ORRTE - [l
BT R R AR  -

The Bank has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment
process (“ICAAP”) to comply with the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory
Policy Manual “Supervisory Review Process” in 2014. Based on the HKMA's
guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed
to cover the material risks not captured or not adequately captured under Pillar |,
and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital
ratio and the minimum Total capital ratio are determined. Meanwhile, operating
ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been established which
enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital utilisation.
The Bank considers this ICAAP process as an on-going process for capital
management and periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure where
appropriate in relation to the overall risk profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Bank is drawn up annually and then submitted to
the Board of Directors for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is
built up by assessing the implications of various factors upon capital adequacy
such as the business strategies, return on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as
well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future capital requirement is
determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to ensure the Bank
maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align with its
business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk,
return and capital adequacy.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital Management (continued)

A. Basis of regulatory combination

The combined basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the
Bank’s local offices and overseas branches specified by the HKMA in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes,
subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with HKFRSs.

The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of
consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of combination are as
follows:

2014 2013

HERH BAGRE AN BEALEE

Name Total assets Total equity Total assets  Total equity

BT WETL BETIT BNTT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

#EET (RELA) AFE/AT  Chiyu Banking Corporation

WMIEEFEARAT

FEATRAE]

#2014 412 A 31 B
LTI B S =] L B IELE
EEEHE A OFEIE - AR
ARG EHGEEHmE
(2013 4 : ff) -

#2014 4£ 12 A 31 H 7R
s e mN AN E SR ok S
TEg T AERIGE & E A
EHLE S HFEE - EHEH
RE&ETTE (2013 4 ¢

fie) -

DL 8 2 SR 2 2R
B 7 A i o o s R I
FE 25

(Nominees) Limited 114,683 114,683 96,053 96,053
Seng Sun Development

Company Limited 40,400 40,004 39,773 36,705
Grace Charter Limited - (10,978) - (10,978)

There are no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of
combination but not included within the accounting scope of consolidation as at
31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

There are also no subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting
scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of combination but the methods
of consolidation differ as at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in Note 25 to the
Financial Statements in this Annual Report.
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4, SHUEFGEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.4 BERE®E (&) 4.4 Capital Management (continued)
B. HEALLE B. Capital ratio
2014 2013
R — A E A LR CET1 capital ratio 16.99% 18.76%
— B AREER Tier 1 capital ratio 16.99% 18.76%
SRR Total capital ratio 19.63% 21.45%
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital Management (continued)

C. Components of capital base after deductions

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The combined capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above
capital ratios as at 31 December and reported to the HKMA is analysed as

follows:

2014 2013
BT ATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
instruments 300,000 300,000
Retained earnings 4,463,967 4,457,687
Disclosed reserves 1,388,900 1,254,486
CET1 capital before regulatory
deductions 6,152,867 6,012,173
CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
Valuation adjustments - -
Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax
liabilities (7,877) (8,488)
Gains and losses due to changes in
own credit risk on fair valued liabilities
(44) (96)
Cumulative fair value gains arising from
the revaluation of land and buildings
(own-use and investment properties)
(1,247,831) (1,158,609)
Regulatory reserve for general banking
risks (254,199) (218,872)
Total regulatory deductions to
CET1 capital (1,509,951) (1,386,065)
CET1 capital 4,642,916 4,626,108
AT1 capital - -
Tier 1 capital 4,642,916 4,626,108
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4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 HREHE (8
C. IRBHRAERAS

4.4 Capital Management (continued)

C. Components of capital base after deductions (continued)

Bt (8
2014 2013
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER BB REHE Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
EEEE A LB RN Collective impairment allowances and
R TR R — R regulatory reserve for general banking
ST R £ risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
BITRREE R capital 159,181 141,276
BRI AR &R Tier 2 capital before regulatory
deductions 159,181 141,276
THEAR BB Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
el &&ERET A ZRE Add back of cumulative fair value gains
AR 4y R e sR arising from the revaluation of land
Y1 (E RIS R) and buildings (own-use and
g, S investment properties) eligible for
ﬁﬁ@j{%%gﬂﬁ@é inclusion in Tier 2 capital
HI BB A HEERE 561,524 521,374
B OGEANEE Total regulatory deductions to
R A% Tier 2 capital 561,524 521,374
—HEAR Tier 2 capital 720,705 662,650
NV Total capital 5,363,621 5,288,758

Brre (BRIT3E (&)
AL ) » RRITHEE
www.chiyubank.com %75
PESEWEE —EEhEE
DL

To comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules, a section “Regulatory
Disclosures” is available on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com and

includes the following information:

- RHESERTRZERE - A detailed breakdown of the capital base and regulatory deductions, using the
A B A AL R B standard template as specified by the HKMA.
BT

- RHSERER A
AR R EEARRE
BEARMEERD ZHIE -

- BETEARTEBNTEE
B R 4 IR R IR
{f: -

- Areconciliation of capital components to the balance sheet, using the standard

template as specified by the HKMA.

- A description of the main features and the full terms and conditions of the

issued capital instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”. The categorisation are determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
methods and based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

— Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. This category includes certain exchange-traded derivative
contracts.

— Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly. This category includes majority of the over-the-counter (“OTC”)
derivative contracts, debt securities and certificates of deposit with quote from
pricing services vendors. It also includes properties with insignificant
adjustments made to observable market inputs.

— Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category
includes equity investment and debt instruments with significant unobservable
components. It also includes properties with significant adjustments made to
observable market inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework
to ensure that fair values are either determined or validated by control units
independent of the front offices. Control units have overall responsibility for
independent verification of valuation results from front line businesses and all
other significant fair value measurements. Specific controls include
verification of observable pricing inputs; review and approval for new models
and changes to models; calibration and back-testing of models against
observed market transactions; analysis and investigation of significant daily
valuation movements; review of significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. Significant valuation issues are reported to senior management,
RC and AC.

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to
determine the fair value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the
open market quotation in active markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments
held by the Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity and stock prices, volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others,
which are mostly observable and obtainable from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial
instruments is as below:

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market
prices from exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using
discounted cash flow technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation
technique that measures present value using estimated expected future cash
flows from the instruments and then discounts these flows using a discount
rate or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads required by the market
for instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or can be
corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.
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5. KEMKENAHE (&)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 DAPERENSHM TR (8D

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
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Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity or commodity. The fair values of these contracts
are mainly measured using valuation technigues such as discounted cash flow
models and option pricing models. The inputs can be observable or
unobservable market data. Observable inputs include interest rate, foreign
exchange rates, equity and stock prices, commodity prices and volatilities.
Unobservable inputs such as volatility surface may be used for less commonly
traded option products which are embedded in structured deposits. For certain
complex derivatives contracts, the fair values are determined based on
broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”)
are applied to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect interest
rates, expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit
spread respectively. They are determined for each counterparty and are
dependent on expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and
recovery rates.
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A. Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets
Financial assets
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 20)
- Debt securities
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21)
Available-for-sale
securities (Note 24)
- Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
- Equity securities

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21)

Financial assets
Financial assets
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 20)
- Debt securities
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21)
Available-for-sale
securities (Note 24)
- Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
- Equity securities

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2014

BEBE FRE% F=ER st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BETIT EEToT AT
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000
- 1,100,931 - 1,100,931
185,005 16,028 - 201,033
- 5,340,260 - 5,340,260

- 4,123,034 - 4,123,034

- - 76,084 76,084
185,005 10,580,253 76,084 10,841,342
(115,120)  (22,947) - (138,067)

2013

s BTREM E=EEH Hast
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BiETor BETIT ABETIT BT
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 1,339,098 - 1,339,098
174,857 2,244 - 177,101
- 3,308,125 200,663 3,508,788

- 550,688 2,116,058 2,666,746

. - 64,283 64,283
174,857 5,200,155 2,381,004 7,756,016
(71,098) (35,639) - (106,737)

There were no financial asset and liability transfers between Level 1 and Level

2 for the Group during the year (2013: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items

2014
SREE
Financial assets
AR HEESR
Available-for-sale
securities
lise; e ks dnEeea §ast
Debt Certificates Equity
securities of deposit securities Total
EHTT AT EHTT A¥TT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
At 1 January 2014 200,663 2,116,058 64,283 2,381,004
(Losses)/Gains
— Other comprehensive income
— Change in fair value of
available-for-sale
securities ) 1,648 11,801 13,447
Sales - (1,352,261) - (1,352,261)
Transfer out of Level 3 (200,661) (765,445) - (966,106)
At 31 December 2014 - - 76,084 76,084
2013
BRIEE
Financial assets
At &R
Available-for-sale
securities
BEES 1Eies [Edlapiceas “EEt
Debt Certificates of Equity
securities deposit securities Total
AHTIT AHTIT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2013 200,694 867,008 56,462 1,124,164
Gains
— Other comprehensive income
— Change in fair value of
available-for-sale
securities - 20 7,821 7,841
Purchases - 1,755,375 - 1,755,375
Sales (31) (506,345) - (506,376)
At 31 December 2013 200,663 2,116,058 64,283 2,381,004

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, financial instruments categorised as Level 3 are
mainly comprised of debt securities, certificates of deposit and unlisted equity

shares.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

Debt securities and certificates of deposit were transferred out of level 3
in 2014 due to change of valuation observability. For certain illiquid debt
securities and certificates of deposit, the Group obtains valuation
quotations from counterparties which may be based on unobservable
inputs with significant impact on the valuation. Therefore, these

instruments have been classified by the Group as level 3.

The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity shares are
determined with reference to multiples of comparable listed companies,
such as average of the price/earning ratios of comparables or net asset
value, if appropriate comparables are not available. The fair value is
ratios of appropriate
comparables or net asset values. Had the net asset value of the
underlying equity investments increased/decreased by 5%, the Group’s
other comprehensive income would have increased/decreased by

positively correlated to the price/earning

HK$3,804,000 (2013: HK$3,214,000).

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant
market information and information about various financial instruments. The
following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value

of each class of financial instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from

the balance sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms, bear
carrying value

interest at prevailing market interest rates and their

approximates fair value.

Held-to-maturity securities

The fair value of held-to-maturity securities is determined by using the same
approach as those debt securities and certificates of deposit measured at fair

value as described in Note 5.1.

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the

balance sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.
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5. BEENMEENATE () 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.2 JEIA R ESTBRESMTE (&) 5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial
instruments not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying

values being approximation of fair values.

PR HR B E S Y
F RSN - NRBIELIAPERE
HY B LR R E A PHE -

2014
FREME NEE
Carrying value Fair value
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
SREE Financial assets
FAEZFIHHES Held-to-maturity securities
(MfzE 24) (Note 24)
- [EBEF — Debt securities 599,674 600,832
— R — Certificates of deposit 77,188 77,186
676,862 678,018
2013
WRHIE AE
Carrying value Fair value
AT T AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
FrEZEHES Held-to-maturity securities
(Wi 24) (Note 24)
- [EBEF — Debt securities 628,952 630,283
— FEEE — Certificates of deposit 77,184 77,276
706,136 707,559
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5. BEMBENARZE (8) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.2 JEIA R ESTBRESMTE (&) 5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

NRITREBEE A A SR T The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with
HZ AN EER - fair values disclosed.
2014
£-REE FR% F=EH et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

AETL BRTIT BBTIT ARTT
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000  HK$000

SHEE Financial assets
FAEZFIHHES Held-to-maturity securities
- (B — Debt securities - 600,832 - 600,832
— FEGEE — Certificates of deposit - 77,186 - 77,186
- 678,018 - 678,018
2013
BB FEIRES EERER HEET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
FAEZFIHHES Held-to-maturity securities
- (B — Debt securities - 478,975 151,308 630,283
— R — Certificates of deposit - - 77,276 77,276

- 478,975 228,584 707,559
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market
to determine the fair value of non-financial instruments.

Investment properties and premises

The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises.
All of the Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year
end. The valuations were carried out by an independent firm of chartered
surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, who have
among their staff Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the locations and categories of properties being
valued. The Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors on the
valuation methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at each interim and annual reporting date. There has
been no change in valuation methods during the year.

Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either the
market comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties or the income capitalisation approach by reference to market rent and
capitalisation rate, with appropriate adjustments to reflect the differences
between the comparable properties and the subject properties. These
adjustments are considered as insignificant to the entire measurement.

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC
where the property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales price,
market rent and capitalisation rate of comparable properties are generally
observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is determined
using either the market comparison approach or the income capitalisation
approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the features of the
Group’s properties compared to the comparable properties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Investment properties and premises (continued)

The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as follows:

WAEAE bz E D
Market comparison Premium/(discount) on
approach or income features of the property
capitalisation compared to comparable
approach properties

(2013: - 20.6 %)

fh{E 7% BN ATEZEANR pllit-S ] A AT ZE N R B E AR (4
Valuation method Significant unobservable Weighted Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair
inputs average value.

MGtbEoA | YIS AR R e E -135% T ERE A HERE -

The higher the premium, the higher the fair
value.

PrEs A PEBE -
The higher the discount, the lower the fair
value.

VAR AT LR A M B
(EVERCN=DIEE il m it7/E S
HEARFERNZE EATER - FIOEELTE
ZHSEE) ~ (E - N - HHR
SRS~ 1EIE -~ EE -~ R
=

Premium/(discount) on features of the property are determined after taken into
account various factors, such as time for market movement, location,
accessibility, building age/condition, floor level, size, layout etc., with reference
to their differences in features with comparable properties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

A. Fair value hierarchy

Non-financial assets

Investment properties
(Note 26)

Properties, plant and
equipment
(Note 27)
— Premises

Non-financial assets

Investment properties
(Note 26)

Properties, plant and
equipment
(Note 27)
— Premises

2014
BEEk SRE% F=RES% st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BEToL  BETT  BETT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
- 6,320 223,800 230,120
- 17,800 1,356,200 1,374,000
- 24,120 1,580,000 1,604,120

2013

EE BTER BERER HE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 5,770 251,630 257,400
- 209,800 1,037,898 1,247,698
- 215,570 1,289,528 1,505,098

There were no non-financial asset transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for
the Group during the year (2013: Nil).
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5. BEENMEENATE () 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 DA ESERGESERTE (8) 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. FB=|B4HTEE &%) B. Reconciliation of level 3 items
2014
JEeREE
Non-financial assets
Yk - bRt
Properties, plant
and equipment
EH BE
Investment )
properties Premises
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
H2014FE1H1H At 1 January 2014 251,630 1,037,898
e Gains
- WamE — Income statement
- BEVEAFEFE — Net gain from fair
2T AR value adjustments
on investment
properties 17,470 -
- HAtrmes — Other comprehensive
income
- JREEEA — Revaluation of
premises - 74,896
e Depreciation - (13,567)
HE Additions - 12,373
A S =g Transfers into Level 3 - 199,300
ECvan| Reclassification (45,300) 45,300
#2014 F£ 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2014 223,800 1,356,200
A 2014 55 12 A 31 HEFFAM Total unrealised gain for the
JEBRE ENENGT AU year included in income
I AT IR T 4aEH statement for non-financial
assets held as at 31
December 2014
— BN — Net gain from fair value
e adjustments on
investment properties 17,470 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

At 1 January 2013
Gains
— Income statement
— Net gain from fair
value adjustments
on investment
properties
— Other comprehensive
income
— Revaluation of
premises
Depreciation
Additions
At 31 December 2013

Total unrealised gain for the
year included in income
statement for non-financial
assets held as at 31
December 2013
— Net gain from fair value

adjustments on
investment properties

2013

JESRE

Non-flnanmal assets

Y3k ~ et heastt
Properties, plant
and equipment

ReEYE B
Investment

properties Premises
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
226,170 891,138
25,104 -

- 156,849

- (12,297)

356 2,208
251,630 1,037,898
25,104 -

The transfer of properties into level 3 is due to change in the premium on

features applied between the subject and comparable properties during the

year. Premium on features is determined with reference to differences in

features between the subject properties and the comparable properties

recently transacted in the market. As comparable properties that come

from recent market transactions may be different in each year, the premium

on features applied between the subject and comparable properties would

change from year to year accordingly. As a result, the significance of

adjustments made to observable market inputs may vary and lead to the

transfer of properties into level 3.
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6. JRFEUA 6. Net interest income
2014 2013
BT AEETIT
HK$’000 HK$000
FIEMA Interest income
1707 [B] 2 e HoAth 4 ph i A 1Y Due from banks and other financial institutions
FRIHE 331,654 234,871
= EEER Advances to customers 737,867 729,464
TR SE Listed investments 66,241 78,951
JEEHEEHE Unlisted investments 183,198 124,078
HAth Others 6,639 6,700
1,325,599 1,174,064
FIEZH Interest expense
[EI2E R HAth 4 R REfZ 092 Due to banks and other financial institutions
H (3,375) (5,293)
FEERK Deposits from customers (418,057) (298,134)
FoAth Others (3,193) (2,949)
(424,625) (306,376)
FRIEWA Net interest income 900,974 867,688
B E 2014 £ 12 H 31 HIkF There was no interest with respect to income accrued on advances classified as impaired
F&E N SR L E By R E B RK for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$197,000).
HIFESTFIRUZA (2013 4F : &
197,000 7¢) ©
FELLA P EE LG ARG 2 & Included within interest income and interest expense are HK$1,283,283,000 (2013:

Rl 2 B < il 2 3R P P AR Y R HK$1,128,312,000) and HK$424,625,000 (2013: HK$306,376,000) for financial assets and
B A F B S H 45 7 B s s financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through profit or loss respectively.
1,283,283,000 jT. (2013 4 :

&% 1,128,312,000 T ) f s

424,625,000 jr (2013 & : #

% 306,376,000 7T ) °
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- MREsE R E

- (SRR HEAMZEEED)
- PRBsE R HERA
- MREsE R E

7. Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income
Securities brokerage
Insurance

Bills commissions

Payment services

Loan commissions

Safe deposit box

Funds distribution

Others

Fee and commission expenses
Securities brokerage
Others

Net fee and commission income

Of which arise from
- financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss

- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense

- trust and other fiduciary activities
- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense
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2014 2013
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
105,757 110,857
55,113 43511
30,984 31,714
20,828 24,608
19,619 32,921
13,860 11,491
11,908 13,712
12,850 13,812
270,919 282,626
(14,037) (14,437)
(7,313) (6,933)
(21,350) (21,370)
249,569 261,256
25,202 38,027

- 2

25,202 38,025
7,187 7,391
(2,579) (2,491)
4,608 4,900
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8. B G 8. Net trading gain
2014 2013
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000
s (E5tE) JRA ¢ Net gain/(loss) from:
- INEERZ B R NERT S - foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products 26,721 26,042
- FRTH - interest rate instruments (4,571) (2,243)
22,150 23,799
9. HAmLKLBUA 9. Other operating income
2014 2013
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
AR S A Dividend income from investment in securities
- FE TR IEE - unlisted investments 9,360 7,988
B Y 2 S HRA Gross rental income from investment properties 7,132 8,153
W BB S Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties (16) @
At Others 99 87
16,575 16,221
2014 SN T H R EYIE There are no direct operating expenses included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment

2 PR B AR properties” related to investment properties that were not let during 2014 (2013: Nil).

REYHE 2 HESE T
(2013 : 4/ ) »
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BRCRE A R[]
(HHA)

HAth

BEEGPEE S (B

10. Net reversal/(charge) of impairment allowances

Advances to customers
Individually assessed
- new allowances
- releases
- recoveries

Net reversal/(charge) of individually assessed loan

impairment allowances (Note 23)

Collectively assessed
- new allowances
- releases

Net reversal/(charge) of collectively assessed loan
impairment allowances (Note 23)

Net reversal/(charge) of loan impairment
allowances

Others

Net reversal/(charge) of impairment allowances

129

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2014 2013
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(322) (18,348)
2,252 196
1,013 1,457
2,943 (16,695)

- (23,735)

2,757 -
2,757 (23,735)
5,700 (40,430)

1 13

5,701 (40,417)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

11. Operating expenses

2014 2013
BT AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- salaries and other costs 209,619 183,467
- pension cost 18,768 16,490
228,387 199,957
Premises and equipment expenses
(excluding depreciation)
- rental of premises 30,595 31,088
- information technology 27,971 27,109
- others 10,173 6,501
68,739 64,698
Depreciation (Note 27) 23,251 20,580
Auditor’s remuneration
- audit services 2,125 2,023
- non-audit services 156 87
Other operating expenses 86,709 83,377
409,367 370,722
12. Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment properties
2014 2013
AT ATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment
properties (Note 26) 18,020 25,554
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13. HEYE - B K%t 13. Net loss from disposal of properties, plant and equipment

ZFR5R

VS R
LB ELAth ] TR

14. #3738

SRR N Z AR R
T

EN T
A
- FENFEARIE
- (AR

M
- FENEARIE

RIERTIE
R 2R 2 A R A ]
(fff5E 320

TSI T Z IR A
STTERRIL A (IR 16.5%
(2013 4 : 16.5% ) f2f# -
BN Z AR IR A
it FERR i A AR A S 4L
BB R S TR

S -

2014 2013
BT T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Net gain from disposal of premises - -
Net loss from disposal of other fixed assets - (2)
- (2)
14. Taxation
Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
2014 2013
BT AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- current year taxation 96,700 103,485
- over-provision in prior years (2,000) (5,900)
94,700 97,585
Overseas taxation
- current year taxation 50,619 35,700
145,319 133,285
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
(Note 32) 8,419 (17,673)
153,738 115,612

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

14. Taxation (continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

Profit before taxation

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in another country

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes

Over-provision in prior years

Foreign withholding tax

Taxation charge

Effective tax rate

2014 2013
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
793,072 772,288
130,857 127,428
11,781 (12,062)
(6,138) (9,314)
9,718 2,030
(2,000) (5,900)
9,520 13,430
153,738 115,612
19.39% 14.97%

15. Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Bank

The consolidated profit attributable to the equity holders of the Bank for the year ended 31
December 2014 includes a profit of HK$632,607,000 (2013: HK$650,469,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Bank.

16. Dividends

First Interim dividend
Second Interim dividend

132

2014 2013
ES2id L (52 “arg
Per share Total Per share Total
BE BETT AR AT
HK$ HK$°000 HK$ HK$'000
65.00 195,000 75.00 225,000
37.00 111,000 132.00 396,000
102.00 306,000 207.00 621,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

16. Dividends (continued)

The Board declared an interim dividend of HK$65 per ordinary share amounting to
HK$195,000,000 in June 2014, which was paid on 29 August 2014.

The Board declared an interim dividend of HK$37 per ordinary share amounting to
HK$111,000,000 in December 2014. This declared interim dividend is not reflected as
a dividend payable in the financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation
of retained earnings for the year ending 31 December 2015.

17. Retirement benefit costs

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes
exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice
MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to
the ORSO schemes equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes
monthly contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries,
depending on years of service. The employees are entitled to receive 100% of the
employer’s contributions upon retirement, early retirement or termination of
employment after completing 10 years of service. Employees with 3 to 10 years of
service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions at a scale ranging from
30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons other than summary
dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by employee are subjected to MPF
Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the
Group also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which
the trustee is BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is
BOCI-Prudential Manager, which are related parties of the Bank.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2014 amounted to approximately HK$12,039,000 (2013: approximately
HK$10,983,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately
HK$405,000 (2013: approximately HK$393,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributed approximately HK$2,705,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013: approximately HK$2,178,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s
emolument

(a) Directors’ emoluments
Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in

respect of their services rendered for the Bank and managing the subsidiaries
within the Group during the year are as follows:

2014 2013

AT BT

HK$’000 HK$’000

Directors’ fees 1,900 1,850
Other emoluments

- basic salaries and allowances 3,776 3,583

- discretionary bonuses 2,386 2,043

- others (including pension contributions) 1,003 1,019

9,065 8,495

Fees of HK$750,000 (2013: HK$591,000) were paid to the Independent
Non-executive Directors during the year.
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18. ¥ ~ 5EEH AEKTEE 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s

ABHis (8) emolument (continued)
(b) CGS5TEHEHMAERT (b) Remuneration for the Senior Management and Key Personnel under
E:YN = ENEa| CG-5
HeEREBENZCG-5 (TE{EH Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued by the
HINFEIESES]) - AIEEARSEE HKMA, details of the remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel of
ZEBEEAB R TEANEN the Group during the year are as follows:
HrEEEa R
(i) WEARETHIEB (i) Remuneration awarded during the year
2014
EHEE AR FEAR
Senior Management Key Personnel
JHETE ) . JHEE X .
Non- BT et Non- RIE T
deferred  Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total

AETIT BYTT BYTT AETIT BT BT
HK$000  HK$000  HK$°000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$’000

(&1 7 S Fixed remuneration
e Cash 7,029 - 7,029 7,616 - 7,616
R jE Variable remuneration
4 Cash 2,818 473 3,291 1,504 - 1,504
HEEt Total 9,847 473 10,320 9,120 - 9,120
2013
EAEEAE TEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
JEIRIE JRIRIE
Non- IEIE 4T Non- JEIE 45T
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BT BETT BETT AT BT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(&1 7 S Fixed remuneration
s Cash 6,383 - 6,383 3,296 - 3,296
e B Variable remuneration
b o Cash 2,167 505 2,672 950 - 950
HeEt Total 8,550 505 9,055 4,246 - 4,246
DA E#BEsE34 (20134 ¢ 3 The remuneration above includes 3 (2013: 3) members of Senior Management
#) EEREH AR K64 (2013 and 6 (2013: 4) members of Key Personnel.

Fr4%) EEAR -
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18. ¥ - EEEEABREE 18.
AE#iE (&)

(b) CC5TEEEEARRE

Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s
emolument (continued)

(b) Remuneration for the Senior Management and Key Personnel under

EABWEM (&)
(i) MERERHBH

pidueg il

B
EN T

R1IA1H

ExT

B

R SR EHE TR 7y

K12 H31H

HLPLEE IR - A EE KA AR
EE AR KREEANAIRER
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HFEB AR AL EE - KL
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CG-5 (continued)

(i) Deferred remuneration

2014 2013
EHREEAR FEAR EHEEAE FEAE
Senior Key Senior Key
Management  Personnel Management Personnel
BETIT AR BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Deferred
remuneration
Vested 351 - 182 -
Unvested 992 - 870 -
1,343 - 1,052 -
At 1 January 870 - 547 -
Awarded 473 - 505 -
Paid out (217) - (182) -
Reduced through
performance
adjustments (134) - - -
At 31 December 992 - 870 -

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel
mentioned in this section are defined according to the HKMA's Guideline on a
Sound Remuneration System.

Senior Management: The senior executives designated by the Board who are
responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business lines,
including Chief Executive and Deputy General Manager.

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve the
assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk exposure,
or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of
material business lines, Head of Trading, as well as heads of risk control
functions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions

M R AT
The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
AT AT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
Cash 180,446 228,346
Balances with central banks 483,642 471,324
Balances with banks and other financial
institutions 4,517,179 1,609,537
Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing within one month 819,773 3,338,444
6,001,040 5,647,651
FAERUANFESEE 20. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
I R AR T
The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
At fair value
Debt securities
- Listed in Hong Kong 485,653 498,015
- Listed outside Hong Kong 615,278 841,083
1,100,931 1,339,098

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are analysed by type of issuer
as follows:

AR AT

The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Banks and other financial institutions 85,299 151,822
Corporate entities 1,015,632 1,187,276
1,100,931 1,339,098
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group enters into the following exchange rate, interest rate, commodity and
equity related derivative financial instrument contracts for trading and risk
management purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency
on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash
flows for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies or interest rates (for
example, fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination of all these. Except for
certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency and equity options are contractual agreements under which the
seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either
to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a set
period, a specific amount of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the
seller receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated
over-the-counter (“OTC”) between the Group and its counterparty or traded
through the stock exchange (for example, exchange-traded stock option).

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments
held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The contract/notional
amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at
the balance sheet dates and certain of them provide a basis for comparison with
fair value instruments recognised on the balance sheet. However, they do not
necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair
values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure
to credit or market risks. The derivative financial instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates, market interest rates or equity prices relative to their terms. The
aggregate fair values of derivative financial instruments can fluctuate
significantly from time to time.

(a) Derivative financial instruments

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC) mainly
for customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies
and requirement in providing derivative products to our customers and in
trading of derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking
book. A derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list
before any transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to
control the notional amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions,
and the maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative transaction must
be input into the relevant system for settlement, mark to market revaluation,
reporting and control.
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21.

TSR T EE¥H 21 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

&5t (&)

() rEERTH (8

TR LTS
BT HERI2HA31IHZ

EESEZE - il

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts of each class of
derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

REE R AT
The Group and the Bank

RG]
BI1HA R ]
{50
SNBSS S

- HAHIE
- EHIIE

Haat

TrRERHEPEE
T R E TSR (K
#2) A 20K - B
UHBEBATEHRMY
HEEAE o B
TE LA P (E & g
RARNEZMTE—
BHEHMNITAETRS
4 -

2014
TRERA
BH HHEEE =t
Not qualified
for hedge
Trading accounting Total
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards 1,890,092 - 1,890,092
Swaps 8,416,753 - 8,416,753
Foreign currency options
- Options purchased 715 - 715
- Options written 715 - 715
10,308,275 - 10,308,275
Interest rate contracts
Swaps - 1,031,462 1,031,462
Commodity contracts 32,468 - 32,468
Total 10,340,743 1,031,462 11,372,205

Not qualified for hedge accounting: derivative contracts which do not qualify as hedges
for accounting purposes but are managed in conjunction with the financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss are separately disclosed in compliance
with the requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
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21. TTEER T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
&=t (8

() rEERTH (8

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

HEEE R AR T
The Group and the Bank
2013
ARG
HE HEEhA HEst
Not qualified
for hedge
Trading accounting Total
AT T AT T AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
IEREY Exchange rate contracts
FIVHH Je 2 R Spot and forwards 2,322,165 - 2,322,165
it Swaps 9,571,082 - 9,571,082
SNEERT Fh iR Foreign currency options
- HARARE - Options purchased 1,231 - 1,231
- H AR - Options written 1,231 - 1,231
11,895,709 - 11,895,709
FIREH Interest rate contracts
P Swaps - 1,240,818 1,240,818
[y Commodity contracts 117,771 - 117,771
Hat Total 12,013,480 1,240,818 13,254,298
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21. TTEER T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

g5t (8#)
(a) 1L TH (&) (a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)
TRBMEEHTTAE S The following tables summarise the fair values of each class of derivative financial
FETEHM®N12H31H > instrument as at 31 December :
A
AR AT
The Group and the Bank
2014
NHEEE NHEER
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
ARERA ARERA
BE YAestk et BHE HHEE dEET
Not Not
qualified qualified
for hedge for hedge
Trading accounting Total Trading accounting Total
AT AT BTt BT BAETT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PERELY Exchange rate contracts
BITHA R 2 8H Spot and forwards 184,733 - 184,733  (114,977) - (114,977)
LA Swaps 15,691 - 15,691 (2,132) - (2132
Foreign currency
SINPEERE S options
- HAMRE - Options purchased 3 - 3 - - -
- E AR - Options written - - - (4) - (4)
200,427 - 200,427 (117,113) - (117,113)
IES=Y Interest rate contracts
el Swaps - 309 309 - (20,790) (20,790)
EEE=E) Commodity contracts 297 - 297 (164) - (164)
gzt Total 200,724 309 201,033 (117,277)  (20,790) (138,067)
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21. TSR T EESH 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
g5t (8#)

(a) 1L TH (&) (a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)
REEH AT
The Group and the Bank
2013
NHEEE NHEAER
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities

FEFEERA FEFEERA
HE  HrhEstk dEst HE  HrhEstk dEst

Not Not

qualified qualified

for hedge for hedge
Trading accounting Total Trading accounting Total

BT B%RTIT BETIT BETIT BT B%TT
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000

PERELY Exchange rate contracts
BHA R A Spot and forwards 171,515 - 171,515  (70,588) - (70,588)
L Swaps 1,243 - 1,243 (2,188) - (2,188)
Foreign currency
GNEAT ZHIRE options
- EHASARE - Options purchased 7 - 7 - - -
- B HIEARE - Options written - - - ) - )
172,765 - 172,765  (72,783) - (72,783)
IESEES| Interest rate contracts
il Swaps - 471 471 - (32,953) (32,953)
EEE=ED) Commodity contracts 3,865 - 3,865 (1,001) - (1,001)
HEEt Total 176,630 471 177,101  (73,784) (32,953) (106,737)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

(@) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The table below gives the credit risk-weighted amounts of the above derivatives
financial instruments and is prepared with reference to the Completion Instructions
for the HKMA return of capital adequacy ratio.

KEE AT
The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards 35 248
Swaps 11,060 26,343
11,095 26,591
Interest rate contracts
Swaps 1,221 1,998
Total 12,316 28,589

The credit risk-weighted amounts are calculated in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules. The amounts are dependent upon the status of the counterparty
and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The total fair values of derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting agreements for
the Group amounted to HK$15,808,000 (2013: Nil) and the effect of valid bilateral
netting agreements amounted to HK$15,808,000 (2013: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

(b) Hedge accounting

Hedges of net investments in foreign operation

As at 31 December 2014, a proportion of the Group’s RMB-denominated deposits
from customers of HK$372,698,000 (2013: HK$455,974,000) were designated as a
hedging instrument to hedge against the net investments in foreign operations.

There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the income
statement during the year (2013: Nil).

22. Advances and other accounts

A AR T

The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
AT T IT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Personal loans and advances 5,441,312 5,272,439
Corporate loans and advances 21,711,086 18,988,721
Advances to customers* 27,152,398 24,261,160

Loan impairment allowances

- Individually assessed (Note 23) (16,093) (52,005)
- Collectively assessed (Note 23) (92,259) (95,493)
27,044,046 24,113,662
Trade bills 1,789,926 1,972,798
Total 28,833,972 26,086,460

As at 31 December 2014, advances to customers included accrued interest of
HK$51,481,000 (2013: HK$45,384,000).

As at 31 December 2014, no impairment allowance was made in respect of trade bills
(2013: Nil).

* Included advances to customers denominated in HK dollars of HK$19,667,150,000
(2013: HK$17,366,127,000) and US dollars equivalent to HK$5,198,902,000 (2013:
HK$4,880,331,000).
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23. ERB{EAER 23. Loan impairment allowances
AR AT
The Group and the Bank
2014
H{E AL
Individual assessment
BA AH et
Personal Corporate Total
AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
20141 H1H At 1 January 2014 - 52,005 52,005
ULz R (FfEE 10) Credited to income statement (Note 10) - (2,943) (2,943)
TR AU E] B Loans written off during the year as
uncollectible - (33,813) (33,813)
Y [o] 2 BRI Recoveries - 1,013 1,013
PTELRE XE S [l Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances - - -
VE SR Exchange difference - (169) (169)
22014 412 [ 31 H At 31 December 2014 - 16,093 16,093
HEEE R ARG T
The Group and the Bank
2014
HUHE RS
Collective assessment
A AH T
Personal Corporate Total
BT AT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
201441 H1H At 1 January 2014 5,296 90,197 95,493
g R (FEE 10) Credited to income statement (Note 10) (314) (2,443) (2,757)
PEE £ 755 Exchange difference - (477) (477)
22014 F- 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2014 4,982 87,277 92,259
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23. BKRERE (&)

23. Loan impairment allowances (continued)

AEE AT
The Group and the Bank
2013
F(E RIRAL
Individual assessment
fEA NH] HEEt
Personal Corporate Total
B B BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
201341 H1H At 1 January 2013 - 47,747 47,747
PG ZREEH (FiEE 10) Charged to income statement (Note 10) - 16,695 16,695
TR AU E] B Loans written off during the year as
uncollectible - (14,834) (14,834)
W B R Recoveries - 1,457 1,457
PTELRE XE S [l Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances - (197) (297)
VE SR Exchange difference - 1,137 1,137
2013412 A 31 H At 31 December 2013 - 52,005 52,005
AR AR T
The Group and the Bank
2013
FEAH AT
Collective assessment
fELA A HEEt
Personal Corporate Total
AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
201341 H 1 H At 1 January 2013 4,136 67,472 71,608
PG ZREEH (MiEE 10) Charged to income statement (Note 10) 1,160 22,575 23,735
PR S 7= %H Exchange difference - 150 150
2013412 A 31 H At 31 December 2013 5,296 90,197 95,493
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities

(a) Available-for-sale securities
Debt securities, at fair value
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Certificates of deposit, at fair value
- Unlisted

Equity securities, at fair value
- Unlisted

(b) Held-to-maturity securities
Debt securities, at amortised cost

- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Certificates of deposit, at amortised cost
- Unlisted

Total

Market value of listed held-to-maturity
securities
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HEE

The Group
2014 2013
AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
191,458 -
514,144 506,391
4,634,658 3,002,397
5,340,260 3,508,788
4,123,034 2,666,746
76,084 64,283
9,539,378 6,239,817
- 29,271
599,674 599,681
599,674 628,952
77,188 77,184
676,862 706,136
10,216,240 6,945,953
- 29,594
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities (continued)

(a) Available-for-sale securities
Debt securities, at fair value
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Certificates of deposit, at fair value
- Unlisted

Equity securities, at fair value
- Unlisted

(b) Held-to-maturity securities
Debt securities, at amortised cost

- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Certificates of deposit, at amortised cost
- Unlisted

Total

Market value of listed held-to-maturity
securities

148

AT

The Bank
2014 2013
AT T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
191,458 -
514,144 506,391
4,634,658 3,002,397
5,340,260 3,508,788
4,123,034 2,666,746
4,214 3,752
9,467,508 6,179,286
- 29,271
599,674 599,681
599,674 628,952
77,188 77,184
676,862 706,136
10,144,370 6,885,422
- 29,594
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24. /s () 24. Investment in securities (continued)
S RIEE I S T Investment in securities is analysed by type of issuer as follows:
wr:
The Group
2014
BEZE
T EES PHHH Qe
Available-for- Held-to-
sale maturity
securities securities Total
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EHEE Sovereigns 1,299,624 - 1,299,624
SRAT e EuAth = Fildsers Banks and other financial institutions 5,803,723 676,862 6,480,585
NEREE Corporate entities 2,436,031 - 2,436,031
9,539,378 676,862 10,216,240
REHE
The Group
2013
FEE
]t RS I FIHH 7 HEET
Available-for- Held-to-
sale maturity
securities securities Total
AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EHER Sovereigns 799,930 - 799,930
SRIT R Hofth Rl Banks and other financial institutions 3,591,587 703,780 4,295,367
INEIBFE Corporate entities 1,848,300 2,356 1,850,656
6,239,817 706,136 6,945,953
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24. /s () 24. Investment in securities (continued)
S RIEE I S T Investment in securities is analysed by type of issuer as follows:
wr:
AT
The Bank
2014
BEZE
T EES FHARES Qe
Available-for- Held-to-
sale maturity
securities securities Total
HEMETIT HEMETT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EHEE Sovereigns 1,299,624 - 1,299,624
SRAT e EuAth = Fildsers Banks and other financial institutions 5,803,723 676,862 6,480,585
AEikive S Corporate entities 2,364,161 - 2,364,161
9,467,508 676,862 10,144,370
AT
The Bank
2013
FEE
]t RS I FIHH 7 HEET
Available-for- Held-to-
sale maturity
securities securities Total
AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EHER Sovereigns 799,930 - 799,930
SRIT R Hofth Rl Banks and other financial institutions 3,591,587 703,780 4,295,367
NE{EE Corporate entities 1,787,769 2,356 1,790,125
6,179,286 706,136 6,885,422
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24. Investment in securities (continued)

24. BHIEE (HE)

The movements in investment in securities are summarised as follows:

AR 2 B T -

F
The Group

2014
BEZ
TR Z(HIHZF
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity
securities securities
BT T AT
HK$°000 HK$°000
20141 H1H At 1 January 2014 6,239,817 706,136
I Additions 10,476,290 -

EE -~ IEE R EHE Disposals, redemptions and

maturity (7,191,639) (28,686)
5] Amortisation 32,897 (584)
ANHEEL Change in fair value 75,152 -
PR 7 72 5 Exchange differences (93,139) (4)
*2014 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2014 9,539,378 676,862

KEEH

The Group

2013
FaE=z
Ak R FIHIHEZ
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity
securities securities
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
201341 H1H At 1 January 2013 3,963,170 1,508,754
BN Additions 14,472,419 -

JRE ~ JEE R EH Disposals, redemptions and

maturity (12,106,495) (795,309)
BgH Amortisation 15,647 (7,561)
ANHEEL Change in fair value (50,870) -
PRS2 5 Exchange differences (54,054) 252
20134 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2013 6,239,817 706,136
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities (continued)

24. BHIEE (HE)

The movements in investment in securities are summarised as follows:

AR 2 B T -

AT
The Bank
2014

BEZ

TRt L= e

Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity

securities securities

BT AT

HK$’000 HK$°000

20141 H1H At 1 January 2014 6,179,286 706,136

B Additions 10,476,290 -
EE -~ IEE R EHE Disposals, redemptions and

maturity (7,191,639) (28,686)

5] Amortisation 32,897 (584)

ANHEEL Change in fair value 63,814 -

PR 7 72 5 Exchange differences (93,140) 4)

/*2014 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2014 9,467,508 676,862

RERAT
The Bank
2013

FEE

Ak R FIHIHEZ

Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity

securities securities

BT AETIT

HK$’000 HK$'000

20131 H1H At 1 January 2013 3,909,948 1,508,754

BN Additions 14,472,419 -
FRE ~ EE R FIEA Disposals, redemptions and

maturity (12,106,495) (795,309)

55 Amortisation 15,647 (7,561)

AN FEEE Change in fair value (58,179) -

P 7 72 5 Exchange differences (54,054) 252

22013412 H 31 H At 31 December 2013 6,179,286 706,136
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities (continued)

Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities are analysed as follows:

Treasury bills

Certificates of
deposit

Others

Treasury bills

Certificates of
deposit

Others

KEH
The Group
A R R FrAEFIHHE S
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity
Securities Securities
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT BT T BRI AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,299,624 799,930 - -
4,123,034 2,666,746 77,188 77,184
4,116,720 2,773,141 599,674 628,952
9,539,378 6,239,817 676,862 706,136
RERAT
The Bank
A R 2R FrAEZEEIH
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity
Securities Securities
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,299,624 799,930 - -
4,123,034 2,666,746 77,188 77,184
4,044,850 2,712,610 599,674 628,952
9,467,508 6,179,286 676,862 706,136
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

25. Investment in subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost

Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note)

Note:
repayment.

The following is a list of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014:

AIRIT
The Bank
2014 2013
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
3,913 3,913
(32,700) (25,287)
(28,787) (21,374)

Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

JBAESIRAT
B FEff RCESEREE AR Fra s E R
Place of
incorporation Interest
Name and operation Issued share capital held Principal activities
ERIAT ((RELA) ARAE & i dy 100% B PRA% B P de
100,000 #7T
Chiyu Banking Corporation Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Nominee service and
(Nominees) Limited HK$100,000 investment holding
FEEFARAT = degilibdh) 100% P PR S SR R 5%
2,800,000 7T THE
Seng Sun Development Company Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding and
Limited HK$2,800,000 leasing of properties to
group companies
iR IRAE = beilEah) 100%* e PEr
25T
Grace Charter Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%* Investment holding

*AIRITRI R AR

HK$2

* Shares held indirectly by the Bank
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

26. Investment properties

HEEE R AR T
The Group and the Bank

2014 2013

AT T

HK$°000 HK$'000

At 1 January 257,400 231,490

Additions - 356

Fair value gains (Note 12) 18,020 25,554
Reclassification to properties, plant and

equipment (Note 27) (45,300) -

At 31 December 230,120 257,400

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of
the leases as follows:

REEH AT
The Group and the Bank
2014 2013
AT ATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Held in Hong Kong
On long-term lease (over 50 years) 222,420 249,970
Held outside Hong Kong
On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 7,700 7,430
230,120 257,400

As at 31 December 2014, investment properties are included in the balance sheets at
valuation carried out at 31 December 2014 on the basis of their fair value by an
independent firm of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited. The fair value represents the price that would be received to sell each investment
property in an orderly transaction with market participants at the measurement date.
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27. Properties, plant and equipment

Net book value at
1 January 2014

Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

Depreciation for the year (Note 11)

Reclassification from investment
properties (Note 26)

Exchange difference

Net book value at
31 December 2014

At 31 December 2014

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book value at
31 December 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:

At 31 December 2014
At cost

At valuation

156

RIEE
The Group

B~ EE
B B S dEst

Equipment,

fixtures and
Premises fittings Total
BT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,247,698 27,252 1,274,950
12,373 23,478 35,851
84,445 - 84,445
(15,816) (7,435) (23,251)
45,300 - 45,300
- (213) (213)
1,374,000 43,082 1,417,082
1,374,000 132,083 1,506,083
- (89,001) (89,001)
1,374,000 43,082 1,417,082
- 132,083 132,083
1,374,000 - 1,374,000
1,374,000 132,083 1,506,083
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

REHE
The Group
B~ EE
FE B HET
Equipment,
fixtures and
Premises fittings Total
AT AT AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Net book value at
1 January 2013 1,086,138 27,554 1,113,692
Additions 2,293 5,678 7,971
Disposals - @) (2
Revaluation 173,645 - 173,645
Depreciation for the year (Note 11) (14,378) (6,202) (20,580)
Reclassification from investment
properties (Note 26) - - -
Exchange difference - 224 224
Net book value at
31 December 2013 1,247,698 27,252 1,274,950
At 31 December 2013
Cost or valuation 1,247,698 111,164 1,358,862
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment - (83,912) (83,912)
Net book value at
31 December 2013 1,247,698 27,252 1,274,950
The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
At 31 December 2013
At cost - 111,164 111,164
At valuation 1,247,698 - 1,247,698
1,247,698 111,164 1,358,862
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
AT
The Bank
R~ B
FE R st
Equipment,
fixtures and
Premises fittings Total
BRI BRI AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Net book value at
1 January 2014 1,230,898 27,252 1,258,150
Additions 12,373 23,478 35,851
Disposals - - -
Revaluation 82,929 - 82,929
Depreciation for the year (Note 11) (15,300) (7,435) (22,735)
Reclassification from investment
properties (Note 26) 45,300 - 45,300
Exchange difference - (213) (213)
Net book value at
31 December 2014 1,356,200 43,082 1,399,282
At 31 December 2014
Cost or valuation 1,356,200 132,083 1,488,283
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment - (89,001) (89,001)
Net book value at
31 December 2014 1,356,200 43,082 1,399,282
The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
At 31 December 2014
At cost - 132,083 132,083
At valuation 1,356,200 - 1,356,200
1,356,200 132,083 1,488,283
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
AT
The Bank
Bt - EE
BE B R S et
Equipment,
fixtures and
Premises fittings Total
BRI BRI AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Net book value at
1 January 2013 1,071,138 27,554 1,098,692
Additions 2,293 5,678 7,971
Disposals - ) ()
Revaluation 171,389 - 171,389
Depreciation for the year (Note 11) (13,922) (6,202) (20,124)
Reclassification from investment
properties (Note 26) - - -
Exchange difference - 224 224
Net book value at
31 December 2013 1,230,898 27,252 1,258,150
At 31 December 2013
Cost or valuation 1,230,898 111,164 1,342,062
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment - (83,912) (83,912)
Net book value at
31 December 2013 1,230,898 27,252 1,258,150
The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
At 31 December 2013
At cost - 111,164 111,164
At valuation 1,230,898 - 1,230,898
1,230,898 111,164 1,342,062
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27. W% ~ BB Rt 27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
(4&)

B 7 Z MR B SURIER A The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
FROPHTATR follows:
AEEE
The Group
2014 2013
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
EEBRA Held in Hong Kong
FIAFHSY (87 50 1) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 1,021,760 916,078
HHATHAY (10 422 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 317,300 299,100
EEBLINTE Held outside Hong Kong
FIAFHSY (87 50 1) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 32,000 29,680
HHHAfH4Y (10 2% 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 2,940 2,840
1,374,000 1,247,698
RERAT
The Bank
2014 2013
AT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEBRA Held in Hong Kong
HRHATHLY (8 50 47 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 1,021,760 916,078
HrIATHAY (10 4% 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 299,500 282,300
ERBLSMTA Held outside Hong Kong
HRHATHLY (8 50 47 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 32,000 29,680
HPHFHEY (10 4% 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 2,940 2,840
1,356,200 1,230,898
* 2014 4 12 H 31 H » %1 As at 31 December 2014, premises are included in the balance sheets at valuation
NEEEBERNZFE > Ty carried out at 31 December 2014 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of
BB PR — K chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited. The fair value
SERHERT (A N R A represents the price that would be received to sell each premise in an orderly transaction
[RAER 2014 4 12 H 31 with market participants at the measurement date.

H VA E R B P T 2
BEEAGE - APEIEERTE
& AR RACHIE I
THEASSEEHEE—H
FREERERUSHIERS
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were

recognised in the premises revaluation reserve as follows:

WA -
A
The Group
2014 2013
BRI AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Bl EEEMLEE B Increase in valuation credited to premises
el revaluation reserve 84,445 173,645
AERT
The Bank
2014 2013
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Bl EE R B Increase in valuation credited to premises
bl ] revaluation reserve 82,929 171,389

H2014 12 H31H &

As at 31 December 2014, the net book value of premises that would have been included

5 I B R A B R 2 5T in the Group’s balance sheet had the premises been carried at cost less accumulated
188 FOR(E R IIR - A% depreciation and impairment losses was HK$ 199,773,000 (2013: HK$143,711,000).
B EEABRANZFE

Z MR W R E B R B K
199,773,000 7T (2013 4 :
HEIE 143,711,000 7T) -

28. HitEE 28. Other assets

AAEHE REAT

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
AT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

JREHETH R P Accounts receivable and

prepayments 313,120 487,211 313,445 487,536
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29. Deposits from customers

30. HAMARIE R

31.

HAENHRIH
i

EANRE

42014412 F31H - A&
] e 7R SRAT 308 8 A AL A
7 B {i By # % 18,007,000
gt (2013 4 - & W
25,492,0007T. ) - A& H K,
AT R i PRI 5 A T
HZRESHERBBE
17,920,0005%; ( 20134F :
#%25,036,0007T ) AT
B W -

KEEH AT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
AT BT AT T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Demand deposits
and current
accounts
- corporate 4,238,709 2,189,626 4,258,621 2,210,027
- personal 439,468 446,871 439,468 446,871
4,678,177 2,636,497 4,698,089 2,656,898
Savings deposits
- corporate 3,176,812 3,748,433 3,178,634 3,750,255
- personal 13,005,473 12,896,459 13,005,473 12,896,459
16,182,285 16,644,892 16,184,107 16,646,714
Time, call and
notice deposits
- corporate 10,726,543 8,642,573 10,726,543 8,642,573
- personal 12,355,832 11,184,523 12,355,832 11,184,523
23,082,375 19,827,096 23,082,375 19,827,096
43,942,837 39,108,485 43,964,571 39,130,708
30. Other accounts and provisions
AEEHE N )
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
AT AETTT BB AT T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Other accounts payable 897,933 792,762 897,933 792,362
Provisions 23,657 24,063 23,657 24,063
921,590 816,825 921,590 816,425

31. Assets pledged as security

As at 31 December 2014, the liabilities of the Group and the Bank amounting to
HK$18,007,000 (2013: HK$25,492,000) were secured by bills. The amount of assets
pledged by the Group and the Bank to secure these liabilities was HK$17,920,000 (2013:

HK$25,036,000) included in “Trade bills”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

32. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the balance sheets,

and the movements during the year are as follows:

DUR EAE N Z E T

T

HR2014F1H1H

Bl ®R
(B 14)
fEECEA
Exaliiea
VEE 2 724

2014412 531 H

B2013FE1H1H

3L/ (HED) Wass
(P 14)

3L, (&) Hit
EAle

2013412 H 31 H

AEE
The Group
2014
DT o it .
GRE  BEEM | zi=| BERE  wRtEm 4EEt
Accelerated Other
tax  Premises Impairment  temporary
depreciation revaluation Losses allowance (ifferences Total
BT EB%TT  B%TT BT BT AT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
At 1 January 2014 7,392 181,224 (217) (27,428) (12,301) 148,670
Charged to
income statement
(Note 14) 1,612 6,274 84 382 67 8,419
Charged to other
comprehensive income - 11,903 10,707 22,610
Exchange difference - 368 368
At 31 December 2014 9,004 199,401 (133) (26,678) (1,527) 180,067
ALEHE
The Group
2013
hoEsT e - o HAt )
BAEH ALY &8 IR e e ] Yt
Accelerated Other
tax Premises Impairment temporary
depreciation _ revaluation Losses allowance differences Total
BT EETT BT AT BETT AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
At 1 January 2013 7,120 154,303 (288) (9,260) (2,654) 149,221
Charged/(credited) to
income statement
(Note 14) 272 115 71 (18,168) 37 (17,673)
Charged/(credited) to other
comprehensive income R 26.806 (9,684) 17.122
At 31 December 2013 7,392 181,224 (217) (27,428) (12,301) 148,670
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

32. Deferred taxation (continued)

At 1 January 2014

Charged to
income statement

Charged to other
comprehensive income
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2014

At 1 January 2013

Charged/(credited) to
income statement

Charged/(credited) to other
comprehensive income

At 31 December 2013

T
The Bank
2014
PRy . L .

Rl BREE BEEE R fast

Accelerated Other

tax Premises Impairment temporary
depreciation revaluation allowance differences Total
AT T BEETIT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
7,227 178,837 (27,428) (12,301) 146,335
1,614 6,274 382 67 8,337
- 11,727 - 10,707 22,434
- - 368 - 368
8,841 196,838 (26,678) (1,527) 177,474

RIRTT
The Bank
2013

I ] e
TR JREEE TREEHE WM Hast

Accelerated Other

tax Premises Impairment temporary
depreciation revaluation allowance differences Total
AT T BT T AT T AT BT T
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
6,952 152,225 (9,260) (2,654) 147,263
275 115 (18,168) 37 (17,741)
- 26,497 - (9,684) 16,813
7,227 178,837 (27,428) (12,301) 146,335
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32. Deferred taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the balance sheets:
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REH AT
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BT BT HEMETIT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Deferred tax assets (7,877) (8,488) (7,877) (8,488)
Deferred tax liabilities 187,944 157,158 185,351 154,823
180,067 148,670 177,474 146,335
REH
The Group
2014 2013
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than
twelve months (7,877) (8,488)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than
twelve months 189,471 169,459
181,594 160,971
AT
The Bank
2014 2013
BT HAETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than
twelve months (7,877) (8,488)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than
twelve months 186,878 167,124
179,001 158,636
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33. &%k

34.

EIE ¢
RS 100 JT ML

CRTRGUE
3,000,000 [ 5

RIEFY 2014 23 H 3 H
AREIE R (A EREDD

(%5 622 ) JAERARHT
ST FHEE - RS
135 ffk - AREATHIRAD IR
FHAHRE - HiEEHT
AT Z M SR T A
R & Z AR B HEFZ A 2
.

(G

A R AR IRAT 2 A4
EE T A 5 9 {58 0 <2 8 e

ETH G S R R
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33. Share capital

34.

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$100 each

Issued and fully paid:
3,000,000 ordinary shares

2014 2013
ARTIL AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
- 300,000
300,000 300,000

Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622), which commenced operation on
3 March 2014, the concept of authorised share capital no longer exists. In accordance with
section 135, the Bank’s shares no longer have a par value. There is no impact on the number
of shares in issue or the relative entitlement of any of the members of the Bank as a result of

this transition.

Reserves

The Group’s and the Bank’s reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior
years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and statement of

changes in equity respectively on pages 26 to 27 of the financial statements.
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35. &FEHEREENE  35. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(a) &EEEFIZERIRATE

BHEZRANER

Syl

e

TR (R
ft

BT E A [

EUEH 2 SRR (B
IR/ €D

JFEIH E s 3 lH 52
FRERTT R Hopth
TRIERVAS R~ S5

JFEIH E s 3 lH 52
TESRAT S HoAth e R
T IR S8

N
2 )

SR AR 28
AL )
g 2
ST R Lt ST

#
B A B
LB R Re 8
#
R

FrIg AT B2 R
A

HEEB B RS
LS
- BYFIE
- EFIE
- YR

taxation

Operating profit

Depreciation

Net (reversal)/charge of impairment
allowances

Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances

Advances written off net of recoveries

Change in balances with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity
over three months

Change in placements with banks and
other financial institutions with original
maturity over three months

Change in financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Change in derivative financial instruments

Change in advances and other accounts

Change in investment in securities

Change in other assets

Change in deposits and balances from
banks and other financial institutions

Change in deposits from customers
Change in other accounts and provisions

Effect of changes in exchange rates

Operating cash inflow before taxation

Cash flows from operating activities
included:
— Interest received
— Interest paid
— Dividend received
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(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash inflow before

2014 2013
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

775,052 746,736
23,251 20,580
(5,701) 40,430

- (197)

(32,800) (13,377)

671,325 500,550

(15,300) 2,397,333

238,167 (21,647)

7,398 36,569

(2,708,366) (1,196,644)

(3,756,903) (1,082,777)

174,092 (155,370)

(306,775) (182,136)
4,834,352 (275,197)

104,765 (336,327)

130,834 34,307

133,391 512,833

1,254,898 1,183,424
(357,623) (278,538)
9,360 7,988
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35. LFEHEHRERMEE 35. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)
(&)

OREFER I EEEES (b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
ot
2014 2013
BT T AT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEERsREFHEE 3 Cash and balances with banks and other
@B AN ERRIT R financial institutions with original maturity
it AR 4E 6 within three months 5,359,803 4,335,089
FEEIEAF 3 [MANZIE Placements with banks and other financial
SRAT Ry Eo 4 ml A > institutions with original maturity within
EHFE three months 699,433 1,920,300
FEFEIHEAF 3 AN Treasury bills with original maturity within
JEE % three months 749,975 599,972
FREHIEHE 3B Certificates of deposit with original maturity
FEss within three months - 711,771
6,809,211 7,567,132
36. BRIRBEE FRIE 36. Contingent liabilities and commitments
AR EFORIE S IRARE The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
AR SEFIRFNIE contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and
e rmdntd - HAgTEEEH is prepared with reference to the Completion Instructions for the HKMA return of capital
Az G ¥R R 4R E SRR adequacy ratio.
RESREREAEAN T
2014 2013
AT AMETIT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
B EEERIEH Direct credit substitutes 46,419 38,985
BAZZ DA BORAE Transaction-related contingencies 460,239 189,813
BAEE S5 R e HAth > iR A Trade-related and other contingencies 578,449 983,314
REBEIRAN GRS Commitments that are unconditionally
HEE cancellable without prior notice 4,834,347 4,925,249
HAthRYE > HEHIH Other commitments with an original maturity of
- LESPIT - up to one year 422,596 196,806
-1EDE - over one year 495,892 621,775
6,837,942 6,955,942
(B =i 4 e Credit risk-weighted amount 737,395 642,082
EE R IR BEERE (5 The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
173 (BA) A 5758 - 1 Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
BRI G F 2150 & characteristics of each type of contract.
BIAEK) 7 BAMRE -
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37. BARIE 37. Capital commitments
A AT RN The Group and the Bank have the following outstanding capital commitments not provided
WMBP B ERRE for in the financial statements:
EBEMT ¢
2014 2013
AT BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
LA R LB R B Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 4,978 584
EHUEEREY Authorised but not contracted for - 1,648
4,978 2,232
DA EBEARIERE 57 Ry The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
A Z BEREHE R Rk - PAR equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s and the Bank’s premises.
A R T 2 A A
TRRZRYE -
38. KBHHEXKE 38. Operating lease commitments
() fERARFEN (a) As lessee
B v 2 808 The Group and the Bank have commitments to make the following future minimum
HEEL  THIRASE lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases:
B R AR SRAT R
HEREMAZNZ
AR
2014 2013
BT AMETIT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt RS Land and buildings
- i 1A - not later than one year 27,766 25,834
-1FEMEESFERN - later than one year but not later than five
years 15,599 28,714
43,365 54,548
AT AR AT 2 & Certain non-cancellable operating leases included in the table above were subject to
=g EESRIRERE Sl renegotiation and rent adjustment with reference to market rates prevailing at specified
Tohife H A =~ B BEE agreed dates or according to the special condition as stipulated in the leases.
LIRHYRF AR RER BH T
{EAH AR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

38. Operating lease commitments (continued)

(b) As lessor

The Group and the Bank have contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:

2014 2013
BT BETT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Land and buildings

- not later than one year 4,292 6,324

- later than one year but not later than five
years 1,702 2,854
5,994 9,178

The Group and the Bank lease its investment properties (Note 26) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases typically for a period from one to three years. The
terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide
for rent adjustments according to the prevailing market conditions at the expiration of
the lease.

39. Litigation

The Group has no claims and counterclaims by various independent parties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

40. Segmental reporting

(a) Operating segments information

The Group divides its businesses into three operating segments. They are
Personal Banking, Corporate Banking and Treasury. The classification of
the Group’s operating segments is based on customer segment and
product type.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking
services including various deposit products, overdrafts, loans, trade related
products and other credit facilities, investment and insurance products, and
foreign currency and derivative products. Personal Banking mainly serves
retail customers while Corporate Banking mainly deals with corporate
customers. Treasury manages the funding and liquidity, and the interest
rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to proprietary
trades. “Others” mainly represents the Group’s holdings of premises,
investment properties and equity investments.

Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income, expenses, results and
capital expenditure is based on the Group’s accounting policies. The
segment information includes items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Inter-segment
funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism of the Group, which is primarily based on market rates with the
consideration of specific features of the product.

As the Group derives a majority of revenue from interest and the senior
management relies primarily on net interest income in managing the
business, interest income and expense for all reportable segments are
presented on a net basis.

In 2014, liquidity term premium was introduced into inter-segment funding.
No revision has been made to the comparative figures. However, if the
same mechanism was applied last year, it is estimated that the change in
net interest income of Personal Banking, Corporate Banking and Treasury
would not be considered as material.
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40. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) Operating segments information (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2014
TEASRHT ST Ba=c 5 FHitr /hat EHHEH Loy
Personal Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
b= T b= b 2 b 2 bi-awan b e
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Net interest income
- external (92,551) 476,450 517,075 - 900,974 - 900,974
- inter-segment 325,432 (48,293)  (277,139) - - - -
232,881 428,157 239,936 - 900,974 - 900,974
Net fee and commission
income/(expense) 184,320 65,921 (672) - 249,569 - 249,569
Net trading gain/(loss)
20,850 10,075 875 (9,650) 22,150 - 22,150
Net loss on financial
instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss - - (10,550) - (10,550) - (10,550)
Other operating income - 669 - 38,365 39,034 (22,459) 16,575
Net operating income before
impairment allowances 438,051 504,822 229,589 28,715 1,201,177 (22,459) 1,178,718
Net reversal of impairment
allowances 623 5,078 - - - 5,701 - 5,701
Net operating income 438,674 509,900 229,589 28,715 1,206,878 (22,459) 1,184,419
Operating expenses (263,119) (100,431) (8,489) (59,787) (431,826) 22,459 (409,367)
Operating profit/(loss) 175,555 409,469 221,100 (31,072) 775,052 - 775,052
Net gain from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties - - - 18,020 18,020 - 18,020
Net loss from disposal of
properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - - -
Profit/(loss) before taxation 175,555 409,469 221,100 (13,052) 793,072 - 793,072
Assets
Segment assets 8,190,707 22,478,608 19,858,523 1,638,414 52,166,252 - 52,166,252
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 33,959,121 10,866,445 761,497 289,049 45,876,112 - 45,876,112
Other information
Capital expenditure - 2,087 - 33,764 35,851 - 35,851
Depreciation 3,994 3,528 113 15,616 23,251 - 23,251
Amortisation of securities - - 32,313 - 32,313 - 32,313
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40. TEHRE (8) 40. Segmental reporting (continued)
(a) EBES (&) (a) Operating segments information (continued)
2013
ELASRTT TR T WAEERs Hthy N T (o
Personal Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
AT AT AT T AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
EERISUION Net interest income
- Ik - external 7,963 476,966 382,759 - 867,688 - 867,688
- P - inter-segment 246,791 (13,739)  (233,052) - - - -
254,754 463,227 149,707 - 867,688 - 867,688
TFIREE RS UA Netfee and commission
/. (ZHD) income/(expense) 181,192 80,810 (773) 27 261,256 - 261,256
GG Net trading gain/(loss)
(E5H8) 25,258 10,584 (3,411) (8,632) 23,799 - 23,799
FE R LIAHESME Net loss on financial
sEAIE G ZGR T instruments designated at fair
E5iE value through profit or loss - - (11,089) - (11,089) - (11,089)
HAECEA Other operating income : 673 - 34,991 35,664 (19,443) 16,221
IRECRESEHRTZSS  Net operating income before
=N impairment allowances 461,204 555,294 134,434 26,386 1,177,318 (19,443) 1,157,875
(BB S Net charge of impairment
allowances (416) (40,001) - - (40,417) - (40,417)
THEBRA Net operating income 460,788 515,293 134,434 26,386 1,136,901 (19,443) 1,117,458
QR Operating expenses (220,919) (84,717) (5641)  (78,888) (390,165) 19,443 (370,722)
BT (R Operating profit / (loss) 239,869 430,576 128,793 (52,502) 746,736 - 746,736
AL NHEF#E Net gain from fair value
25 adjustments on
investment properties - - - 25,554 25,554 - 25,554
HEPEE ~ 230 R Net loss from disposal of
2 TR properties, plant and
equipment - - - (2 () - (2
s,/ (BsHE)  Profit/(loss) before taxation 239,869 430,576 128,793 (26,950) 772,288 - 772,288
&E Assets
TERERE Segment assets 8,368,144 20,006,622 17,355,774 1,544,176 47,274,716 - 47,274,716
b=li=¢ Liabilities
TEiEE Segment liabilities 30,283,032 9,652,126 980,615 228,902 41,144,675 - 41,144,675
HAtrEee} Other information
BARMES Capital expenditure - 616 - 7,711 8,327 - 8,327
res Depreciation 3,614 2,720 22 14,224 20,580 - 20,580
AN Amortisation of securities - - 8,086 - 8,086 - 8,086
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40. TEHE (#) 40. Segmental reporting (continued)
(b) fEHrIHEIRE] > (b) By geographical area
UTERERE = The following information is presented based on the principal places of operations:
BB
2014 2013
AR FRHURIE -
R FRFERT HEHRTZ K,\Tiﬂ;ld
TREBIRA =yl B i
Net operating Net operating fi
income before Profit  income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowance taxation allowance taxation
BT BT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Ak Hong Kong 1,005,274 687,435 994,092 658,988
B A, Mainland of
China 173,444 105,637 163,783 113,300
&5t Total 1,178,718 793,072 1,157,875 772,288
2014 2013
HEE FEBEE dEE  JEREEE
Non-current Non-current
Total assets assets Total assets assets
BT AT BT AT IT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
Tk Hong Kong 48,976,611 1,638,965 43,948,536 1,523,498
Hp e Y 3 Mainland of
China 3,189,641 8,237 3,326,180 8,855
&at Total 52,166,252 1,647,202 47,274,716 1,532,353
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41. SR TR ZHEH

TR SEECE 2
T P A B R A
St T 1 S 2
TEH -

BHiE Assets

#7144 Rk Derivative financial
TH instruments

Hfth&mE Other assets

aaEt Total

=l Liabilities

#7445l Derivative financial
TH instruments

Hir&fE Other liabilities

st Total

41. Offsetting financial instruments

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements:

2014
REREBELBERTEHZ
gkl
Related amounts not set
N R REEAEEHR off in the balance sheet
CrEiehl B2 EREieR FIMNERTE BBz
BEGE BB ] ERTH BHeHn bz
Gross Gross amounts of  Net amounts of
amounts of recognised financial assets
recognised financial liabilities presented in the Cash
financial set off in the balance Financial collateral Net
assets balance sheet sheet instruments received amount
BT BT BT T BT T BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
15,808 - 15,808 (15,808) - -
484,224 (342,692) 141,532 - - 141,532
500,032 (342,692) 157,340 (15,808) - 141,532
2014
FREREELBERTEHZ
el
Rela_lted amounts not set
P REEAEEHR off in the balance sheet
ErRER ENCRsm FImH SR @%b
= Fi gt HEGE pX ERTH e Pt
Gross Gross amounts of Net amounts of
amounts of recognised financial liabilities
recognised financial assets presented in the Cash
financial set off in the balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities balance sheet sheet instruments pledged amount
BT AT BT BT ARETIT BETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
22,335 - 22,335 (15,808) - 6,527
351,191 (342,692) 8,499 - - 8,499
373,526 (342,692) 30,834 (15,808) - 15,026
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41. &RET EZ3ESY (&) 41. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

BE Assets
744 Fh Derivative financial
TEA instruments

H&#E Other assets

4zt Total

B‘fE Liabilities

114 4:Fh Derivative financial
TH instruments

Hith&{& Other liabilities

4Ezt Total

HAREE T AMSIMT
4 THZ G P HAE B4
fipa - (e AR B A B A
BREENEN JIFE—
ZyE T Z AR TR
TFERAEE -

2013

REEAMART REEAMGRRT

RAREEAFETRBZ

B & 85

Related amounts not set off
in the balance sheet

ChfElem K OfleR IR SR EE [tirei
AR =tk A EREITHE S X A
Gross Gross amounts of Net amounts of
amounts of recognised financial assets
recognised financial liabilities presented in the Cash
financial set off in the balance Financial collateral Net
assets balance sheet sheet instruments received amount
BT BT AT BT BT ABETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,005 - 1,005 (2,005) - -
547,141 (311,403) 235,738 - - 235,738
548,146 (311,403) 236,743 (1,005) - 235,738
2013
FANEBEABERPRE
I = %
Related amounts not set off
e e e - in the balance sheet
REEARRT REEABRT
ChEslaem W OElem IR SR & [Ekiciivd SR
=l ekt iz A ERTE B
Gross Gross amounts of Net amounts of
amounts of recognised financial liabilities
recognised financial assets set  presented in the Cash
financial  off in the balance balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet instruments pledged amount
BHTTE AT T BT BT BT BT
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
34,643 - 34,643 (1,005) - 33,638
318,585 (311,403) 7,182 - - 7,182
353,228 (311,403) 41,825 (1,005) - 40,820

For master netting agreements for OTC derivative transactions entered into by the Group
related amounts with the same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other

predetermined events occur.
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42 EBEEERBEEE 42, Loans to directors and officers

RS & (AFGRE) (5 Particulars of advances made to directors and officers of the Bank pursuant to section 78
622% ) [fF115F78(% » 1fi of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622) with reference to
SRS EE (AT section 161B of predecessor the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32) are as
Yy (£32E ) F£161B{E follows:

FIRLE > ASRITEE R
AR B te it 2 B

U

2014 2013
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

R M AR AE 2 F R Aggregate amount of relevant transactions
X5 H outstanding at year end 4,356 5,001

NENREERRZ S Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
= A transactions outstanding during the year 5,001 5,322
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43. FEZEMEBEALRS

FPEE N R R [ 5 e e 8 o B
BAREEAT (T ) HaE
b o ] R B A IR E S
& (" ) REETA LD
TEIERAT > EAREE T T o

() BEREAE BN EERZH
LA FEF TR 5

BAFNERLER

REE 2 FHER A R TR
P ERE 2 TR
TTHE] -

B 52 P AR (T 2 PR AT -
TR P % EEI B A T
PR EANE R SR T
SEHNEEBAAT -

DRE A S L A S B 1 k7 92
L -

REBEEEESPHEILEE
BETIRTREBE S > AfEE
SR BT S -

RE T BLrp BRI THEA TR 5
TREHENETSEE - 1t 2014 £
12 F 31 H - AEEAHREL
Fe FERT o BISRAT R A AR 57 A
by & Wg 4,577,638,000 T
(20134 3 5,393,446,000
JE) R HEWE 87,992,000 T
(2013 4 : i 573,717,000
JE) - BiE 2014 £ 12 A 31 H
IR R B ERTT R M
ST AR A A R ST
HER S I Ry B 148,314,000
7T (2013 4 : ##& 79,970,000
TE) Rl 729,000 7T (2013
¢ sl 464,000 7T) -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

43. Significant related party transactions

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government
through China Investment Corporation (“CIC”), its wholly-owned subsidiary
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (“Central Huijin”), and BOC in which Central Huijin
has controlling equity interests.

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies

General information of the parent companies:

The Group’s immediate holding company is BOCHK, which is in turn
controlled by BOC.

Central Huijin is the controlling entity of BOC, and it is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CIC which is a wholly state-owned company engaging in foreign
currency investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the
PRC.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal
course of business which include loans, investment securities and money
market transactions.

The majority of transactions with BOC arise from money market activities. As
at 31 December 2014, the related aggregate amounts due from and to BOC
of the Group were HK$ 4,577,638,000 (2013: HK$ 5,393,446,000) and HK$
87,992,000 (2013: HK$ 573,717,000) respectively. The aggregate amounts of
income and expenses of the Group arising from these transactions with BOC
for the year ended 31 December 2014 were HK$ 148,314,000 (2013: HK$
79,970,000) and HK$ 729,000 (2013: HK$ 464,000) respectively.
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43. FEEFREALIE (&) 43. Significant related party transactions (continued)

@)

(b)

BN R A EER 2 H
fATETAIRS (&)

KER 4y BLRE A B3 2 Hopt
HHIA B2 A& PRt 2014
£12 F 31 H > REBEHHRRIE
W B e 2,691,662,000 I
(2013 4£ : #ki#% 2,164,091,000
JC) - #%E 2014 4£ 12 H 31 H
1A P B RE O E) 2 2 ELA S
H R R T EAN
S HAREE By 38,967,000 T
(2013 4 : #:#E 24,927,000
JC) e

B AU ERS > BLEAREAE] R
BECY TP 2 oA 2 =]l 4 5
PN

BB - (CEE - I
o PR R LA R R B A
HIX 5

Hh N R S A ] [ 5 e e s o
R B AR B B2 - T
o E N B AR (B %5 e 1
BURFHdR - (ERDRRE - i
e LA R A o T B 4 B
PRPETHIR R HANEHE - A GEE
e S PG A v
AR ~ DS A B LAt e 2
HEGHETH R TER S -

B SRR EA R T
BIH

- B8 RRAHE RIEORFIREZ
70

- BRTIEISE Z IR 4R

- - E - G RIEEIRE

B A eI TR AT 81T 2 (R

%5

- fROLSNE - PR R AR &R
%

- PREMEREERS K

- WEALEE  OETE - &E
B R EB RS -

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

(b)

controlled by the parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent
companies arise from deposits from customers. As at 31 December 2014, the
related aggregate amount of the Group was HK$2,691,662,000 (2013:
HK$2,164,091,000). The aggregate amount of expenses of the Group arising
from these transactions with other companies controlled by the parent
companies for the year ended 31 December 2014 was HK$38,967,000 (2013:
HK$24,927,000).

Save as disclosed above, transactions with other parent companies and the
other companies controlled by the parent companies are not considered
material.

Transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates
and other state controlled entities

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC
Government through CIC and Central Huijin, which also directly and indirectly
controls a significant number of entities through its government authorities,
agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities. The Group enters into
banking transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and
other state controlled entities in the normal course of business at commercial
terms.

These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:

- lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;

- inter-bank balance taking and placing;

- sales, purchase, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other
state controlled entities;

- rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;

- provision of fiduciary activities; and
- purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunication and postage services.
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43. FEEFREALIE (&) 43. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(c) TEBEAR

FHEEEARBEELERER
PR REHE A RE ) R R AR
SHE - fRE R B R
Al BiEERREEEEA
& - AEEEIEEEB T G
ZEHEE A BFER A E
RIS EERE - IRAE
REE > AEENDTHEAR
TR HER A2 EH g
ANBSHAR A LETE
KA G ©

THESBABBEI2H31LH
AR T

ST b FAUR S0 R T A

(d) EiEmAFRIEGRR

14 2014 ££ 12 [ 31 H > A4R
1THE H 2R e v i —
P SRR HE T S 3 E A (VI JE
(ST 2 R B SRy P W
21,734,000 7T (2013 4F : 3
## 22,222,000 7T ) =

(c) Key management personne

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, including directors and senior management. The Group
accepts deposits from and grants loans and credit facilities to key
management personnel in the ordinary course of business. During both the
current and prior years, no material transaction was conducted with key
management personnel of the Bank and its holding companies, as well as
parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31
December is detailed as follows:

2014 2013
BT T IT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Salaries and other short-term employee
benefits 9,065 8,495

(d) Balances with subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate sums of amounts due to subsidiaries
of the Bank arising from transactions entered into during the normal course of
business at commercial terms are HK$21,734,000 (2013: HK$22,222,000).
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44. B8R 44. Currency concentrations

TERINHAEEAEEX
Z ~ JFEER G R AE
BT ES 2 ERIMEE
e > A2 EEEHE
F 30T IR R A SR
WL HPEERISRIM RS -

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising from
trading, non-trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to the
Completion Instructions for the prudential return “Foreign Currency Position of an
Authorised Institution” issued by the HKMA.

2014
BT ITHE

Equivalent in thousand of HK$
X WA /¢ Bt FERTT 0O AR¥W RMSMNE SR

New Others Total

us Swiss Euro Australian  Zealand foreign foreign

Dollars Francs Dollars Dollars Renminbicurrencies currencies

WE&EE Spot assets 14,360,593 6570 316544 1,141,173 393476 12,138,813 332,940 28,690,109

HEAR Spot liabilities (6,731,667)  (24,.822) (385,640) (1,083,815) (397,673) (11,762,183) (353,693 (20,739,493)

A Forward purchases 1,054,339 20951 119,730 477 12,038 13217 180,084 1,400,836

EHAE H Forward sales (8,377,220) (196)  (49,460)  (52,909) (6,383)  (435,783)  (158,793) (9,080,744)
(55 ) 854 Net long / (short)

position 306,045 2,503 1,174 4,926 1,458 (45,936) 538 270,708

SERE AR R Net structural position : - - - - 892,915 - 892915

2013
AT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

E5T BRARD H MBI WTEET ARE  Hnybg SN

New Others Total

us Swiss Japanese Australian Zealand foreign foreign

Dollars Francs Yen Dollars Dollars Renminbi_currencies _currencies

WE&ZE Spot assets 14,485,022 1,427 35021 1236632 364971 7318392 496305 23,937,770

HEAR Spot liabilities (5,694362)  (39,027)  (56,994) (1,167,148) (359,918) (7,382,808) (703,243 (15,403,500)

B A Forward purchases 661,831 38,405 179,633 2,075 796 108,469 212,580 1,203,789

EHAE Forward sales (9,140,645) (435)  (157,313)  (68,728) (6,265)  (99,981) (5,267) (9,478,634)
R FEH Net long / (short)

position 311,846 370 347 2,831 (416)  (55928) 375 250425

EREMEERTEE Net structural position - ; - - - 811550 - 811550
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45, EEFERE 45, Cross-border claims

PUR o3t 92 Fa RH S B The below analysis is prepared with reference to the Completion Instructions for the HKMA
i & FEERNIER return of cross-border claims. Cross-border claims are exposures to foreign counterparties
fERIMm 4R - PSR ERE Ry on which the ultimate risk lies, and are derived according to the location of the
GNAE Gy T 2 i A B R counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk. For a claim guaranteed by a
YERTHIE 53 i > W e iEae party situated in a country different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the
5y ¥ e st A JE g i country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is
1% A WE R A PTEM located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the country where its head office is
B ST e AN [ Il located. Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or
JoEL oz e RS B A DR N T more of the aggregate cross-border claims of the Group are shown as follows:

FEH - R R T 2 aoh
1T F R G =
SRAT 2 ST AT - A S
A {11 B 2 S sk H
e JE\ B RS % 1 S B (A
S 10%ECDA b (AL

FEL I
2014
RIT AdkiE HAth T
Public sector

Banks entities Others Total
AT AT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

gil - REFEE & Asia, other than

Hong Kong
- R A - Mainland of China 11,561,000 23,000 4,193,000 15,777,000
- HAth - Others 2,354,000 - 584,000 2,938,000
HEEt Total 13,915,000 23,000 4,777,000 18,715,000
2013
AT ASI - FAth HEEt
Public sector

Banks entities Others Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$'000

sl - NEREEE Asia, other than

Hong Kong

- HHE A - Mainland of China 10,401,000 28,000 3,647,000 14,076,000
- Hth - Others 3,247,000 - 711,000 3,958,000
daEt Total 13,648,000 28,000 4,358,000 18,034,000
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46. ?}Zﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁ’ﬂ?ﬂiﬁﬁ&@ﬁi

46. Non-bank Mainland exposures

HIERT RS H THIA M
B B\ AR AE Z o A7 Th 2
B A B R AR
RN S Z A B R B
PR U LAY - b

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank
counterparties and the type of direct exposures with reference to the Completion Instruction
for the HKMA return for non-bank Mainland exposures, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by the Bank only.

FAE G AR IRIT 2 P 3 JE
B RIS -
2014
BEAE HEAE
SRS RN RN
HH R JE B AR i
ltems in On-balance Off-balance  &&JEE=RE
HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
HEMETIT HEMETT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PR - RO EREAY Central government, central
g - HifE AT NEE government-owned entities and their
1 subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 5,078,737 97,678 5,176,415
HOTEUR ~ #OTEURFARY  Local governments, local
i - HifE AT NEE government-owned entities and their
1 subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 1,937,784 124,034 2,061,818
FEREEANEREEM TR PRC nationals residing in Mainland
NEE TR ~ HE A or other entities incorporated in
H R EEMRE Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 3,649,067 864,699 4,513,766
NEFEIE s —Igh gy Other entities of central government
JiF PR LA S not reported in item 1 above 4 142,674 - 142,674
REFEFE_LalcsE — I 758 Other entities of local governments not
I IR LA iR reported in item 2 above 5 ) ) )
NS REFEESMNE  PRC nationals residing outside
TR - AR Mainland or entities incorporated
(535 outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 1,340,875 309,733 1,650,608
HAixr ZEFmEmE&E  Other counterparties where the
AR T ESRA T A I exposures are considered to be
HEIE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 437,413 5,900 443,313
HEGT Total 8 12,586,550 1,402,044 13,988,594
HURCE G 1% 0T & e AR Total assets after provision 9 51,960,655
LEEABENNER &Y On-balance sheet exposures as
(EEEEHE I percentage of total assets 10 24.22%
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46. JESRTTRIPIIEBR R
% (&

BT ~ PRBUTR AR
terE -~ HiW@ A e R EaHE
13

HOTEN ~ #OTBUFRARY
ters -~ HiW@ A e R aHE
13

oh EFR S R B A AR
PEE RIS ~ IR
R EERE

T EFEAE RS —TH Y
JRF PR A A A

A ELEAE_EAIEE T T
JiF LAt A A

RS NE RS A NE
IS - AN
B8

HAAE 2 T T H R bR
B R ESRA T P M
Y

gzt

Yo

AL B IR A A R4 A

HEA RN R RE
E BRI IR

EEE B FEEHIIR > PUIFF
EBREZIRIPA -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

46. Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

2013
HEAR EEAMA
SRS RN RIMY
HE RREE  ERRE
ltems in On-balance  Off-balance  4EJE\ [z &
HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Central government, central
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 3,296,434 82,637 3,379,071
Local governments, local
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 1,017,145 243,162 1,260,307
PRC nationals residing in Mainland
or other entities incorporated in
Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 3,120,427 831,808 3,952,235
Other entities of central government
not reported in item 1 above 4 - - -
Other entities of local governments not
reported in item 2 above 5 - - -
PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland or entities incorporated
outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 2,024,522 593,082 2,617,604
Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures 7 455,122 - 455,122
Total 8 9,913,650 1,750,689 11,664,339
Total assets after provision 9 47,030,018
On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets 10 21.08%

The comparative amounts have been restated to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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47, Bt 47. Ultimate holding company
3 A S AT R 6] 75 e The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through
W ELEARETA China Investment Corporation, its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
)« H4eBiE S T b g (“Central Huijin”), and BOC in which Central Huijin has controlling equity interests.

EREAREEAT (TE
&) REESTA LG
ZHERTT  HAEEETT

P -
48. AR BIZ A 48. Approval of financial statements
KBNS 2015 £ 3 H The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
17 H4CEE e liE M on 17 March 2015.
i o
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A FE % Z #i 78/ # Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

1. 8 B KEEREK 1. Regulatory capital for credit, market and operational risks
NEEERA

oSSR - TSRS K ERE The bases of regulatory capital calculation for credit risk, market risk and operational risk are
st EESEANESEDFY  described in Note 4.4 to the Financial Statements.
FABSRFITEE 4.4 gl -

RO B ERI 55186 % 219 The supplementary financial information on pages 186 to 219 has been prepared on a
HUEEHRENE HERS combined basis for regulatory purposes. The basis of regulatory combination is set out in Note
B o LR A SRR E A 4.4(A) to the Financial Statements.

HHERMTEE4.4(A) -

TEEZ S0 FEHE The table below summarises the regulatory capital computed on the same combined basis for
Z(EE - S EREEEES  credit, market, and operational risks.

B -
2014 2013
BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
EEEE Credit risk 2,065,511 1,845,312
i Market risk 4,509 6,135
ERVEE G Operational risk 170,875 172,345
2,240,895 2,023,792

BREARITZERAEH KEAR  For details of capital management and capital ratios of the Bank, please refer to Note 4.4 to

CEREEN - 55 R EEMTEE  the Financial Statements.
4.4 -
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2. Capital requirements for credit risk

The tables below show the capital requirements for each class and subclass of credit risk

exposures as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules.

Capital required for exposures under the IRB approach

Corporate
Small-and-medium sized corporates
Other corporates
Bank
Banks
Securities firms
Retail
Residential mortgages
- Individuals
- Property-holding shell companies
Qualifying revolving retail
Other retail to individuals
Small business retail
Others
Cash items
Other items
Credit valuation adjustment

Total capital requirements for exposures under the IRB

approach

Capital required for exposures under the standardised

(credit risk) approach
On-balance sheet exposures
Sovereigns
Banks
Corporates
Regulatory retail
Residential mortgage loans
Other exposures which are not past due
Past due exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures other than securities
financing transactions and derivative contracts

Securities financing transactions and derivative

contracts

Total capital requirements for exposures under the

standardised (credit risk) approach

Total capital requirements for credit risk exposures

187

2014 2013
AT ST T
HK$’000 HK$'000
320,800 254,406
973,629 894,584
505,780 473,115
327 395
18,022 13,840
3,998 2,988

1 -

46,223 35,478
1,980 2,345
140,965 129,607
652 1,632
2,012,377 1,808,390
376 452

467 306
28,030 14,263
5,320 6,484
370 483
17,163 11,507

1 88

1,407 3,339
53,134 36,922
2,065,511 1,845,312
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3. NP EEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach
HEE R

3.1 AR ARG B bR R 3.1 Theinternal rating systems and risk components

=5

Rt EEEEAHE > K The Bank adopts the FIRB approach to calculate the regulatory capital requirements for
SRITH RER o (R SEFIERTT most of the corporate and bank exposures, and adopts the supervisory slotting criteria
A JoR o 4 {5 R BB A 350 approach to project finance exposures under “specialised lending”. The Bank adopts
SPARERREETEDE o BEPY retail IRB approach for retail exposures to individuals and small business. The following
M ErTE B A is the table showing the Bank’s different capital calculation approaches to each asset
B BEERGTEDE > BHE class and sub-classes of exposures (other than securitisation exposures).

AR SRR B K
B E AR
SRR - TRINHASRT
BEENBT R
bRt (Fragsr(bmEbRR
BN PR EASHR

T3k

RESE FAERRRE BEAREITE

Asset class Exposure sub-class Capital calculation approach
hise JElbee B R AT RE TIVEPIMEES CHEREE) BB AT L

Corporate exposures Specialised lending under supervisory slotting criteria | Supervisory Slotting Criteria Approach
approach (project finance)

SR S FEREA B P R AR ES T EA
Small-and-medium sized corporates FIRB Approach
FAtr b3
Other corporates
B 7 E R R e EITHEHE T (EEEE) STEE
Sovereign exposures Sovereigns Standardised (credit risk) Approach

J&E T ERe I A A AT
Sovereign foreign public sector entities

% B IR T

Multilateral development banks
SRAT bR RIT EREN B ERRERT RUA
Bank exposures Banks FIRB Approach

BH LA

Securities firms

NEREL (NEEBETERIEARM B ) e (FEER) STEE

Public sector entities (excluding sovereign foreign public|Standardised (credit risk) Approach
sector entities)

LE R R A EEEERK LENE T EL

Retail exposures Residential mortgages to individuals Retail IRB Approach

ZER N B EIHE AR

Residential mortgages to property-holding shell

companies

EEREREE

Qualifying revolving retail

HAth N Z

Other retail to individuals

PN

Small business retail
PR R K 9 rEE (EEER) HRE
Equity exposures Standardised (credit risk) Approach
Hopth bR A REIHE e E b R RUA
Other exposures Cash items Specific Risk-weight Approach

HAtHEH

Other items
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.1 AR L4t B JBbméEry, 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

oy (8D

(A) NSRS EEE R (A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship between internal
R 2 &R N 4 ratings and external ratings
B RERR%

ASRATEE AR ERRE
(NS P
PR S RITE S
RN B G R ERIR
fiti o PR {RSERISRITAH
afo FBARFRAE
J&E R W AEER AT Y
JEb > 2 E EPAR A
[ s N —BELY
I L BHER R B R T
HVRFEAC AN Z -

PERE N R
FE T st R LLE
TR AR ~ SRITA
TEABAVELN
F(PD) » UIREMAE
BN R R AT
E N EEEEAER
B R(LGD)FI
B EYE(EAD) -

ARIRIT P P B4R
ZERFHE T A N ERT
AT RUE T (30
ARVELTRENE - &
LIERAG TR —
FEHANHYEL R -
EEHONEISE SIS
TR ERY BASRP AR
T EI(EEAE

AL HY £ =N EY 57
B R RS
P E LT R

Bt -

FEHEE (%5 A B PR
BET - GEEE
EEPN Gy
HEE - EHEE
ESARGE I
FEEHEN: &R
R BTG > I
PR ETE FoBRSE N ZR DL
TEMAE R [R £C R R 1
TETHEALREN
RE TR -

The Bank’s internal rating system is a two dimensional rating system that provides
separate assessment of borrower and transaction characteristics. For corporate and
bank portfolios, the obligor rating dimension reflects exclusively the risk of borrower
default and the facility rating dimension reflects transaction specific factors that affect
the loss severity in the case of borrower default.

BOCHK developed statistical models in group level to provide own estimated
probability of default (“PD”) for its corporate, bank and retail borrowers, and loss given
default (“LGD”) and exposure at default (‘EAD”) for retail exposures under retail IRB
approach.

The Bank uses internal rating system to assess the borrower’s likelihood of default for
all IRB portfolios. PD estimates the risk of borrower default over a one-year period. A
borrower credit grade means a grouping of similar credit-worthiness to which
borrowers are assigned on the basis of specified and distinct set of rating criteria, from
which the average PD are derived for RWA calculation.

In the process of obligor rating assignment, variables of latest financial performance,
management quality, industry risks, group connection and negative warning signals of
each obligor are assessed as critical factors to predict borrower’s ability and
willingness to meet with the contractual obligations under different economic
conditions.
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.1 AEFRFER A R R AE R

3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

GIRNIRES Sk =
SIRE > (EHEES

JEAERIE FUEAYIH H
Rl R AE > o Ryd
8 I 22 &9 8 31 A L {1
BLOGH - HREE
WESRFaREAE A FA
HERDEME - %
EHEAE ~ KZ{EH
B0~ HE A e A A
HHIRILoY Ry ALY
R~ A b AR I
FELRE R -

or4HERE B E AEE
HH RN ZER AN )
EEHBER - 64
& 18 B 6 b 7K
& ~ HAEAZER
AR ER B R
JE\ Bz 7K A Y B 4 R
R BNBRENE
LY S AT F—
B R B E T A
B - B eERES
FUE > BTA (R SEAIER
THEER S HE

TSR (HiE
LHRERIERE) - B
TR FRELE LA
e E TR K
(EL) LIS R
HEITEAERHS -

oy (8D

(A) NSRS EEE R (A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship between internal
R 2 &R N 4 ratings and external ratings (continued)
BFER R (8D
AR T A K The obligors for corporate and bank, and retail PD pools are assigned into eight broad
T B ANERAA H 4 obligor ratings including seven grades for non-defaulted obligors with sub-divisions
B 8{EES A G A into 26 minor credit grades and one for defaulted obligors. In the supervisory slotting
FETEIEELIEB A criteria approach for the project finance exposures, there are four grades for
4R A H A5 2 266 (5 non-defaulted borrowers and one for defaulted borrowers in accordance with the
B4R AR L & 2 4R HKMA guidance. The estimates for retail IRB portfolios are pooled by nature of

obligors, facility types, collateral types and delinquency status into different PD, EAD
and LGD pools. This pooling process provides the basis of accurate and consistent
estimation for PD, LGD and EAD at the pool level for exposures arising from
residential mortgages to both individuals and property-holding shell companies,
qualifying revolving retail exposures and other retail exposures to individuals and
small business retail exposures. All credit transactions for corporates and banks are
assigned facility ratings (in terms of LGD) in accordance with the HKMA guidance.
LGD estimates multiplied by the PD estimates produce the expected loss (“EL”)
estimates, which are used to assess credit risk quantitatively.
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.1 PUEREPAR A R R B
oy (8D

(A) NEETRARGERR
PIERET R SRS MRV R

HrEmts (&)

E{E AR RS

3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship between internal
ratings and external ratings (continued)

For each internal rating, the equivalent external rating in terms of default risk is as

JE\Pg AR R RO M B B4R below:
HEAT:

RS R4 ERETR E R SRR E TR
Internal Credit Standard & Poor’s
Grades Definition of Internal Ratings Equivalent
1 B AR “1” 1 “27 Fostir{EryiE | The obligors in grades “1” and “2” have extremely AAA
2 YR - low default risk. AAT

%N BTSSR ke . The obligor’s capacity to meet its financial
commitment on the obligation is extremely AA
strong. AA-

3 BB AR 3" Fo{KELIE S - {H7£|The obligors in grade “3” have low default risk but A+
—ERRRE A RS 2 R T EE RS R4 |are somewhat susceptible to the adverse effects
SRR » BT (TS AIRE 1 of changes in circumstances and economic A

conditions.

However, the obligor’s capacity to meet its

financial commitment on the obligation is very A-
strong.

4 BB ANLH] 4" ForfHEEKAYESY |The obligors in grade “4” have relatively low BBB+
[\ BLERAETE B4Rk - ([Bage= R |default risk and are currently under adequate
LT R e 22 (LR T M55 L |Protection. : " BBB
TSR EIRE S - However, a_dverse economic gondltlons or

) changing circumstances are likely to lead to a
weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its BBB-
financial commitment on the obligation.

5 (& AR “5” FonhREEELJEE - 41| The obligors in grade “5” have medium default BB+
S AR A& TR A > HER R (risk which are less vulnerable to nonpayment
= . than other ﬁpecfulative obligors. 5B

g e T [ However, they face major ongoing uncertainties
;%Eg;i;k@i;igfgﬁ%gﬂiﬁ or exposure to adverse business, financial, or
7 A - SRR S FESTEX leconomic conditions which could lead to the BB-
{5 NMECBRE A R B TR s AT obligor’s inadequate capacity to meet its financial
commitment on the obligation.

6 BN “6” FTorEEFE 2R EE4Y |The obligors in grade “6” have significant to very B+
A B 25 5 IR p i - high default risk and are vulnerable to
REABHERANHEEIBTER ‘rll'?mgpc;agl?;gpélcurrently and in the near term have B
= s N 3 SaIN a4 Ve (1%

i{f ;%Z—ijg%?f E‘ﬁ%jz%‘lﬁ’ﬁi{i: the capacity to meet its financial commitment on
i{bﬂﬂmﬁjﬁbﬁiﬁ%ﬁ&x’%@{ﬂgjﬁ the obligation but adverse business, financial, or
HiE - economic conditions will very likely impair the B-
obligor’s capacity or willingness to meet its
financial commitment on the obligation.

7 BN “7" FortinsE4ElE H | The obligors in grade “7” have very high default CCC
H it w5 MR B e ; &7 AL [risk and are currently quite vulnerable to
BRTEGEE AR ESEE R ?onpa_yrl'nent. T_he obligo:js’ atl)lla_ility_to meet their
Py ~ . __pm=u |financial commitment and obligation are
i%ﬁg%ﬁ;ﬁﬁ%@g%*ﬁiﬁ% dependent upon favourable business, financial, ce
j: ek Tk FIREMEAIRTT | and economic conditions.

BRI - In the event of adverse business, financial, or
economic conditions, these obligors are not likely c
to have the capacity to meet its financial
commitment on the obligation.
8 BB AL 8" FTIETEL - Obligors rated “8” are in payment default. D
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.1 AR L4t B JBbméEry, 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
oy (8D
(B) AERMMERENAR

(B) Use of internal estimates
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HNEAEHEE TR
AR o AERAT
FEAE A Sn P At A B
b B BRI B R
g - MFFE (3R
T2 (EA) #AD
H(E R
FEFH A RIEEOR -

HR TR AR R
SR FRRE
AHIE S AE -
LB AT HE DR B 1
b it EE S 2 B B
HISRIT ~ RIELUREE
7 2 =] P £ (AT 9
fr - AIRATIEZ ERE
AT A A (S B
&ERIEMIR - WEF
B B g A IERIH R
HYRLHERSR -

Besides using PD estimates for regulatory capital calculation in corporate and bank
exposures, the Bank uses the PD together with the LGD and EAD estimates in the
credit approval, credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk information,
etc., for the purpose of strengthening the daily management on all credit related
matters.

(C) Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation

For those collaterals recognised under capital management, the Bank has
well-defined policies and procedures for collateral valuation and management which
are compliant with the operational requirements for recognised collateral of credit risk
mitigation as stated in the Banking (Capital) Rules.

For the credit exposures adopting FIRB approach for capital calculation purpose, the
recognised eligible guarantees include the guarantees provided by banks, corporates
and securities firms with a lower risk weights than the counterparty. The Bank takes
into account the credit risk mitigation effect of recognised collaterals through its
determination of the net credit exposures and the effective LGD.
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.1 AR L4t B JBbméEry, 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

oy (8D

C) EERRBERIE (C) Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation (continued)
EHERHETER (8
BN B N L SRR For retail IRB approach, the effect of the credit risk mitigation is incorporated into the
B EAHRNEES internal risk parameters of PD or LGD depending on the nature of the guarantees and
B A& HE - (5 SRR collaterals for calculating the risk exposures.
GRRHVIE S (R0
e EEE
SRS O S P
YA 6 b 2
o
RERTTAT (S & s The credit and market risk concentrations within the credit risk mitigation (recognised
ERETE (AEEAXR collateral and guarantees for capital calculation) used by the Bank are under a low
FHE AR AT A level.

HHER) HEER
i £ o A 7 A L

P PEERMEKE -

BEWmSH  FitE Up to the date of report, for capital calculation, except OTC derivative transactions
BN > BRT &R cleared by central counterparties and derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting
5 FAEE S agreements, the Bank has not used any other on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet
T THER G REH recognised netting for credit risk mitigation. The Bank also has not used any
SRR R RS recognised credit derivative contracts for credit risk mitigation.

BRI B

ASERAT M A A A AT

HoAth 35 7E & RN

HEAFRINE TS
Wt FAE s S
SEREETE - AERATR
R EME T EE
PIAETHEOERE
BRREETA -
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3. NERRPREZEETEET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.1 AR L4t B JBbméEry, 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
oy (8D
(D) W ST &% % & 12 &1

(D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems
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The Bank has established a comprehensive control mechanism to ensure the
integrity, accuracy and consistency of the rating systems including the processes for
using the risk components in the day-to-day business to assess credit risk.

All of IRB risk models are approved by the RC of the Board.

In order to achieve reasonably accurate risk ratings assignment, the Bank has
established a rating approval process which is independent of the sales and
marketing units. Since internal rating is one of the key inputs to credit decision
making, a control mechanism is put in place to ensure the integrity, accuracy and
consistency of the rating assignment. For the wholesale (corporate and bank) credit
portfolio, internal ratings are normally approved by credit officers who are functionally
separated from the sales and marketing units.

The rating assignment and risk quantification process of retail portfolio are highly
automated. As an integral part of the daily credit assessment process, the accuracy
and completeness of data input for automatic rating assignment are verified by units
independent from business development function.
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.1 PUEREPAR A R R B
oy (8D

(D) AEEFR R BIEH

3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems (continued)

b (8D
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The obligor rating is reviewed at least annually as required by the Bank’s credit risk
policy. When credit events occur to the obligor, rating review is triggered promptly in
accordance with the Bank’s credit risk policy.

Rating override is designed to allow the credit analyst to include any other relevant
credit information that has not yet been captured in the rating models. For reasons of
conservatism and prudential considerations, overrides are unlimited in terms of
downgrades but more restricted for upgrades. All upgrades will be limited to a
maximum of two sub-grades supported by a very narrowly pre-defined list of
appropriate reasons. All overrides need to be signed off by a higher level of credit
approval authority. The internal rating policy sets a trigger point of 10% overrides on
rating cases. The use of overrides and override reasons are analysed by BOCHK as
part of performance review on IRB rating models in group level.
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D
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3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems (continued)

The performance of internal rating system is put under ongoing periodic monitoring™.
The effectiveness of the internal rating system and processes are reviewed by
independent control functions. The model maintenance unit conducts assessment on
the discriminatory power, accuracy and stability of the rating systems while the
validation unit performs comprehensive review of the internal rating system. Internal
audit reviews the internal rating system and the operations of the related credit risk
control units. The results of the review are reported to the Board and senior
management regularly.

A model validation team of BOCHK which is independent from the model development
unit and rating assignment units, conducts periodic model validations using both
qualitative and quantitative analysis in group level. Model acceptance standards are
established by BOCHK to ensure the discriminatory power, accuracy and stability of
the rating systems meet regulatory and management requirements. Review of a rating
model will be triggered if the performance of the model deteriorates materially against
pre-determined tolerance limits.

(E) Approach for determining provisions

The approach in determining provisions is in line with the Bank’s accounting policies.
For details, please refer to Note 2.13 “Impairment of financial assets” to the Financial
Statements.

Note:
1. The model performance tracking and model validation are conducted by BOCHK in group level.
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.2 WESFFRERETRIAT
HUEBR I

TERIRAIRITERE L
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HIm e (RIEEER
RN R EERAFRIN
HYZLIEBRE) -

3.2 Exposures by IRB calculation approach

The tables below show the Bank’'s exposures other than securitisation exposures
(including the EAD of on-balance sheet exposures and off-balance sheet exposures) by
each IRB calculation approach.

1 Corporate
T Bank
B Retail
PN EEG 7N Residential
H{FETHHE mortgages to
HE individuals
and property-
holding shell
companies
BEEIEER Qualifying
e revolving retail
HAtn{E N EE Other retail to
individuals
B/ NpFE Small business
retail
Hth Others
QT Total

2014
RN B EEN ZERX

Ridez2s sEE FReREEAE e B Eb

st®%&  Supervisory EEE RERRE
Foundation Slotting Retail Specific 4R B RIS
IRB Criteria IRB  Risk-weight Total
Approach Approach Approach Approach exposures
AT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
24,844 575 - - - 24,844 575
17,692,427 - - - 17,692,427
- - 2,998,916 - 2,998,916
- - 1,667 - 1,667
- - 2,883,816 - 2,883,816
- - 392,941 - 392,941
- - - 2,125,891 2,125,891
42,537,002 - 6,277,340 2,125,891 50,940,233
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

HEERE (8D

3.2 WESFFRERETRIAT

HERRE (8D

s

ST

e

{ELA B2
LR
55

EREIER
HA A AZ &

4

M S

Corporate
Bank
Retail
Residential
mortgages to
individuals
and property-
holding shell
companies
Qualifying
revolving retail
Other retail to
individuals
Small business
retall
Others

Total

3.2 Exposures by IRB calculation approach (continued)

2013
ERENE BRI A TN

P REE AUBE R

sfHE  Supervisory SRR HEREIA
Foundation Slotting Retail Specific 4B e i A
IRB Criteria IRB Risk-weight Total
Approach Approach Approach Approach exposures
BT BT T BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
21,492,690 - - - 21,492,690
16,770,048 - - - 16,770,048
- - 3,125,851 - 3,125,851
- - 2,458,719 - 2,458,719
- - 446,514 - 446,514
- - - 2,232,997 2,232,997
38,262,738 - 6,031,084 2,232,997 46,526,819
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3. NERRPREZEETEET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.3 NI EA TR 3.3 Exposures subject to supervisory estimates under the IRB approach

ERE AR ERRRE

TRIIRASRITERA NI The table below shows the total EAD of the Bank’s exposures subject to supervisory
SR EA T R EE estimates under the use of IRB approach (including the specialised lending subject to
FE A BRI HRIE L B b K the supervisory slotting criteria approach).

1 (aEEEE AR
FETHEMMEHEE) -

2014 2013
AT AT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
i3 Corporate 24,844,575 21,492,690
T Bank 17,692,427 16,770,048
oAl Others 2,125,891 2,232,997
44,662,893 40,495,735
34 ZiEERBREETERE 3.4 Exposures covered by credit risk mitigation used
By i
(A) ZERol{EfARERYE (A) Exposures covered by recognised collateral
bR
IR TER The table below shows the Bank’s exposures under the use of FIRB approach (after
FLBEA AR AL HEE T the effect of any on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet recognised netting) which are
BUET > itz (5R covered by recognised collateral after the application of haircuts required under the
173 (BA) HA) Banking (Capital) Rules. These exposures exclude securities financing transactions
HIRLE 1F TR 52 and derivative contracts.
AT A G B Y fE e
RYE (CEtRETE
EAREENNEEA
BRI TR
ERRZEE) o IR b
HRYENE N GRS 5 Rl
BERGRTET RS
4.
2014 2013
AT AETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
3 Corporate 6,388,615 6,187,975
R Bank 5,401 5,844
6,394,016 6,193,819
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

HEERE (8D

34 ZEERREETAERE
R (&)

(B) BRI
vy

TRIPRASRITHIR

(IRTT3E (EA) M
) HYRETE 1F H 8
&2 R ORIFEY
[ A& (Bt RAE
MEEAERANNE
EER RSN AT
FEENSiNEZ DRNIe
JeR g AR HE A LR RS
MBS LITAET
HE4) -

3%
RIT

3.4 Exposures covered by credit risk mitigation used (continued)

(B) Exposures covered by recognised guarantees

The table below shows the Bank's exposures (after the effect of any on-balance
sheet or off-balance sheet recognised netting) which are covered by recognised
guarantees after the application of haircuts required under the Banking (Capital)
Rules. These exposures exclude securities financing transactions and derivative

contracts.
2014 2013
AT AT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Corporate 3,312,338 2,733,639
Bank 471,901 301,718
3,784,239 3,035,357
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.5 AEEHREE RS T

SR ST B R RV R B
Pl

3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach

TRIVRARITII2
SLH BB AN FRATE
HRIENDRE 9 I b FE EE A
JE g AR DA P B AR
R AT REL R
B -

The tables below detail the Bank’s total EAD of corporate and bank exposures by
exposure-weighted average risk-weight and exposure-weighted average PD for each
obligor grade as at 31 December.

DUT {28 KA 2 AU
bR R B SR Ent ke
FREHRAT - SRR

FOETHECRAYREE > A
AT (TR S &7
AETHEL -

The EAD and PD disclosed below in respect of corporate and bank exposures have taken
into account the effect of recognised collateral, recognised netting and recognised
guarantees. The Bank did not have any recognised credit derivative contracts.

RS AN EHRAE
# o HAEL91H -

For definition of each obligor grade, please refer to page 191.

(A) EEEEE (FE

(A) Corporate exposures (other than specialised lending under supervisory slotting

ERAEE SEEH criteria approach)
s EENEFIEAE
=)
2014
R A
R E R AR
Exposure- SERRRAIRGR
B E RS weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
WS EELRRT Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
BT % %
HK$’000
4R 1 Grade 1 - - -
&l 2 Grade 2 - - _
4K 3 Grade 3 3,227,729 22.64 0.06
K 4 Grade 4 8,150,394 44.39 0.24
4R AT 5 Grade 5 9,328,403 74.07 1.13
GIL Grade 6 4,018,998 93.47 5.39
K7 Grade 7 51,684 213.42 31.91
KR 8, 3ELY Grade 8/Default 67,367 206.88 100.00
24,844,575
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.5 NERREREEEEA T/ 3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach (continued)

S R ST R S VS
B (8D
(A) rERREEE (Fa (A) Corporate exposures (other than specialised lending under supervisory slotting
TR RS e criteria approach) (continued)
SRR EFIMEAE
2 (@
2013
R AR
SR A e R\ AR AE A
Exposure- S ELINER
AR R weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
IERE S Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
AT % %
HK$'000
4R 1 Grade 1 - - -
4R 2 Grade 2 - - -
4K 3 Grade 3 2,613,883 22.27 0.07
K 4 Grade 4 5,853,186 44.45 0.25
GRS Grade 5 10,402,255 70.97 1.09
4K 6 Grade 6 2,305,819 103.64 591
R 7 Grade 7 248,123 224.86 19.62
4R 8, iEL Grade 8/Default 69,424 51.47 100.00
21,492,690
(B) EEBEE (H (B) Corporate exposures (specialised lending under supervisory slotting criteria
EEOBERERZE approach)
HEFIMEES)
#2014 /£ 12 H 31 The Bank did not have any corporate exposures of specialised lending using
H » AR§R{7I0fEER supervisory slotting criteria approach as at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil). The
BB BRI EA supervisory rating grades and risk-weights of specialised lending are determined in
BRI EEN R accordance with section 158 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.
JEFERE (20134 ¢
fiw) - EPIMEAE EHYER
BT AR AR A R E B A
BRI (ST (A
) HHAI) 55158 i
HIRLEMEE
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.5 NERREREEEEA T/ 3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach (continued)

S R ST R S VS
B (8D
(C) $RfTRBERSE (C) Bank exposures
2014
JERR S IIE
o E b tEE R RIS IE
Exposure- PETRAIAR
BYEERE weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
RENEE G Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
BT T % %
HK$’000
&l 1 Grade 1 - - B}
4R 2 Grade 2 1,639,575 22.86 0.04
4R 3 Grade 3 12,835,613 30.79 0.07
KA 4 Grade 4 3,211,838 50.97 0.17
G Grade 5 5,401 71.42 0.51
GG Grade 6 - - B}
&R 7 Grade 7 i
4R 8, iEL Grade 8/Default -
17,692,427
2013
JE\ R HE Ok
R kg E JEE B AR e
Exposure- SRR
AR e weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
REHEC S Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
BT % %
HK$'000
&5l 1 Grade 1 - - .
Rl 2 Grade 2 1,402,146 23.37 0.04
A 3 Grade 3 12,176,337 29.63 0.06
44 Grade 4 3,173,903 51.49 0.16
&1 5 Grade 5 17,662 82.18 0.75
4551 6 Grade 6 - - .
&7 Grade 7 .
40 8 B4y Grade 8/Default -

16,770,048
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.6 NERREREEEHEEATZE 3.6 Risk assessment for retail exposures under IRB approach

R B AR R BT
THRIURPN12H31H# The tables below show breakdown of retail exposures on a pool basis by expected loss
THEARE H LA A E percentage (EL%) range as at 31 December:
R
RIS Residential mortgages
2014 2013
AT AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
5% 21% Up to 1% 2,990,388 3,113,392
>1% >1% 4,961 -
B Default 3,567 12,459
2,998,916 3,125,851
EEREREE Qualifying revolving retail
2014 2013
AT AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
5% E£10% Up to 10% 1,667 -
>10% >10% - -
L Default - )
1,667 -
HAnMEAZE Other retail to individuals
2014 2013
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
5% E2% Up to 2% 2,821,339 2,365,124
>2% >2% 46,926 92,939
HEY Default 15,551 656
2,883,816 2,458,719
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3. NERRPREZEETEET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.6

3.7

AR EESRATE
B TR B R A Y S B T i
(&

BE/NM

REEL%
>1%
iy

HIRER R MRERIAT

A AR RIS
TR - HIRERRES
RPN A
{18 B AR HE S I 4
HYHEE R CELFEHREH e (e
BIRFARE AR )

1B3#

T

BN &t AASifE et o)
e/

ERBIEREE

At A

ES=YN( S

13 R ERURKE S HIAY
D EHIA 2014 73
B E Sy SR BB B
BER/D

3.6 Risk assessment for retail exposures under IRB approach (continued)

Small business retail

2014 2013

AT AT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

Up to 1% 390,614 445,866
>1% 2,327 648
Default - -
392,941 446,514

3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates

The table below shows the actual losses broken down by class of risk exposure, which
represent the net charges (including write-offs and individually assessed impairment
allowances) made by each class of exposures under the internal ratings-based
approach for the year:

2014 2013

AT BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

Corporate (2,930) 4,774

Bank - -
Residential mortgages to individuals and

property-holding shell companies - -

Qualifying revolving retail - -

Other retail to individuals - -

Small business retail - -

(1,930) 4,774

Decrease in the loan impairment charge of corporate exposures was mainly due to the
decrease in the amount of new classified or impaired loans in 2014.
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

HEERE (8D

3.7 BIEER RMAMBEAIT
(&

A EBREERIT IR
TR - THIIRAEE
B AR B R e T
—EEHIN AT RERELYS (2L
HIfEHER -

i S

AT
(EPN- &5 ZNsifE e=tiieio]
e/

BRREREE
HAEAZ &
TE/NMEE

3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

The table below shows the expected loss broken down by class of risk exposure, which
is the estimated loss likely to be incurred arising from the potential default of the obligors
in respect of the exposure over a one-year period.

20135 12H 31 H 2012412 H 31 H

TREIRR THERR

Expected loss Expected loss

at 31 December at 31 December

2013 2012

BT T BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

Corporate 163,634 120,136

Bank 6,036 7,253
Residential mortgages to individuals and

property-holding shell companies 1,218 1,172

Qualifying revolving retail - -

Other retail to individuals 11,174 7,856

Small business retail 305 510

182,367 136,927
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.7

HIEEA R MRERIT
(&

TRELEENEIRED
RO fE RO RATS
Et -

3%

HRIT

{[EPN- &G A fE R cts st
= ed

GERIEREE

HAfE A

ZE/NBR3E

3%

IRIT

PN & AR e =t ]
Bk

GEMEREE

HAfE A

TE/NPE

3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

The tables below set out the actual default rate compared against the estimated PD of

the respective portfolio.

Corporate

Bank

Residential mortgages to individuals and
property-holding shell companies

Qualifying revolving retail

Other retail to individuals

Small business retail

Corporate

Bank

Residential mortgages to individuals and
property-holding shell companies

Qualifying revolving retail

Other retail to individuals

Small business retail
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2014 £ 2013 12H 31 H
EREEOR fEERELIRER
Actual default Estimated PD
rate during at 31 December
2014 2013

% %

0.32 1.40

- 0.23

0.10 0.24

- 1.33

0.08 0.62

0.49 1.04

2013 4E[H] 2012412 A 31 H
HPRELR (GRS RS
Actual default Estimated PD
rate during at 31 December
2013 2012

% %

0.63 1.06

- 0.23

0.10 0.31

- 1.33

0.07 0.79

- 0.86
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3. NERRPEREZEETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (8D

3.7

HIEEA R MRERIT
(&

FAHHER AT R BAIR A
R EET RN
B DI EHBHAVETE N
SERIEEHAERD - R
AI{EEPERHERER - BERRH
FERRE TRK ) AUE
FHEAER - FTHHIRR
FEEZEHEA B EENE
N R LRBTE A
Ko W RE PRI
{E S LR U AR T 8y
El{E S R E AR E
PR FERREOR © TIERRE
REBHNEEARIEES
AER R (T B e
(RS iy e A

HR RS R B
BEYREBABHE (3%
JE\fg R Bk F B H (Z
BRI AN ) i EEL
TR RS —(E &R By
RIS ELRAER
AEHERFER HFHEH—4EEIA
TR LM -

A - B OB B E e
BRI BT
B » FERT (T REREEE )
TR REE G ER
HEEHE SRR

= o

B A SRS FLE L

TRILEIRBLRORST -

3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

It should be noted that expected loss and actual loss are measured and calculated using
different methodologies compliant with relevant regulatory and accounting standards,
which therefore may not be directly comparable. The limitation arises mainly from the
fundamental differences in the definition of “loss”. The expected loss under Basel Accord
which estimates the economic loss arising from the potential default of the obligor by
taking into account the time value of money and including the direct and indirect costs
associated with the recoveries on the credit exposures during the workout process,
while actual loss is the net charge of individually assessed impairment allowances and
write-offs made during the year in accordance with the accounting standards.

The actual default rate is measured by using the number of obligors (for wholesale
exposures) or number of accounts (for retail exposures) defaulted whereas the
estimated probability of default is an estimate of the long run average default rate over
an economic cycle and is the estimated one-year forward-looking PD from the date of
rating assignment.

Hence, actual default rate in a particular year (“point-in-time”) will typically differ from the
estimated probability of default which is the “through-the-cycle” estimates as economies
move above or below the cyclical norms.

The estimated probability of default is more conservative than the actual default rate for
all asset classes.
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4. R (E8EE)

A THIEREE

4.1

4.2

HMER (= ERTAEHERE(ECAI)
FHRATER

RITRARIE (F
S SFRIEIL SN
{5 R Ry fichs - MEEAE
EEEEFHEER R
ELBE NIRRT TR
/N (B B R AR HE DL
R AT B2 bR
EREEREREE

- BIHE

- BRI

- BEREIRT

AFRATHE CERATSE (BAD)
A 26 4 S HERTE
JEREAE - (AN E & aY
TR TT AR SR
TTIRAVIE R AYE - ASRIT
S0 A RSN (S EETAE TR
TR A
2

EREBERE

HN A (SRR )
SEENEERRRE
Fran b R R £ 2R
AR I A R e
WO (AR RS - I
S > Pt I Ryidii(s
5 B R 9 O T 4
in o ASRITEEE AT LAY
FHEFE ($RT3E (B4
HAD) PaxEEatEmEGas
JeR\ oz 4 RS B K = 42
e (EERE) SHRUE
HEEEREBREEAS
SR - SEATHECR LR
Jee\ i HE B AE 2 S T
BETEEE  NBEA %
BEREIMTROVER R
FEERE A B R AEAE
B R R EFEIE AR
T B A MRS BRT A
ST RT3 - Ik
S EE G &R
TR AR AR
RS R AR T4

tE 4. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach

4.1 Use of ratings from External Credit Assessment Institutions (“ECAI”)

The Bank continues to adopt STC approach based on external credit rating to determine
the risk weight of the small residual credit exposures that was approved by HKMA to be
exempted from FIRB approach and the following asset classes of exposures:

- Sovereign
- Public sector entity
- Multilateral development bank

The Bank performs the ECAI issuer ratings mapping to its exposures in banking book in
accordance with Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules. The ECAIs recognised by the
Bank include Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch.

4.2 Credit risk mitigation

For credit exposures adopting STC approach, the main types of recognised collaterals
include cash deposits, debt securities and equities for non-past due exposures. In
addition, real estate collateral is also recognised for past due exposures. The treatment
of recognised collateral is compliant with the comprehensive approach for credit risk
mitigation as mentioned in the Banking (Capital) Rules. For credit exposures under STC
approach, the recognised guarantees for capital calculation include the guarantees
given by sovereigns, public sector entities, multilateral development banks, or banks and
those corporates with ECAI issuer ratings both exempted from FIRB approach for credit
exposures, that have lower risk weights than the counterparty. Besides, the recognised
netting for credit risk mitigation includes derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting
agreements.

209



4 A Ay
- C3
Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd

FIREB MM R A member of BOCHK Group

R FE A 2 f A # Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

W

4. % (EEREKE) 5+E 4. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach
AT EERE

4.3 BB bEEREIMELE 4.3 Credit risk exposures other than securitisation exposures under the standardised

(FERE) HEEATH (credit risk) approach
EEREERE
2014
BB wo AR
MBSy WERS
%%E‘Jﬁ’ Total Total
*
R BREE ) )ﬁ\mﬂ*&&ﬁ exposures exposures
] Exposures after CRM* Risk-weighted amount covered by covered by
Total TER RENR TEELR THESEE  recognised recognised
exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated collateral guarantees
BT HBWTR B¥TT BT BT BT A¥TT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
GEABEENEEEE On-balance sheet exposures
EHER Sovereigns 1,783,265 1,783,265 - 4,696 - - -
$RIT Banks 29,193 29,193 - 5,839 - - -
e Corporates 366,428 - 350,375 - 350,375 16,053 -
[ Regulatory retail 98,276 - 88,671 - 66,503 9,605 -
(FEfFEE Residential mortgage loans 9,258 - 9,258 - 4,629 - -
AN T o A P EL A B Other exposures which are
HRIE not past due 222,155 - 214,381 - 214,531 7,774 -
A E R Past due exposures 8 - 8 - 13 - -
HiEAEFRNER KIS Total for on-balance sheet
sk exposures 2,508,583 1,812,458 662,693 10,535 636,051 33,432 -
GiEafEFRINE &S Off-balance sheet exposures
FReE R E AL 5 AT Off-balance sheet exposures
ETEREXYMIE other than securities
EE A RSN & financing transactions and
¥ derivative contracts 19,934 - 19,934 - 17,585 - -
ARG R ATA Securities financing
TH&Y transactions and derivative
contracts 203,837 - 203,837 - - - -
HiEAMRINERRAYE  Total for off-balance sheet
k) exposures 223,771 - 223,771 - 17,585 - -
JEE A LR AIELEEE  Total for non-securitisation
exposures 2,732,354 1,812,458 886,464 10,535 653,636 33,432 -

1,250%]E [ EEE,  Exposures that are risk-weighted
IR LEEE at 1,250%
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4. % (EEREKE) 5+E 4. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach
AT EERE

4.3 BB bEEREIMELE 4.3 Credit risk exposures other than securitisation exposures under the standardised
(EERBR) sHEETH (credit risk) approach (continued)
EERBEE (8

2013
AT o ATHECR
e A EE S HEE Y
j‘j %EW?& ~ Total Total
JE\ K A R abiy Les exposures exposures
Y Exposures after CRM* Risk-weighted amount covered by covered by
Total TESEAR RYEREAR TESTAR AIEEYA) recognised recognised
exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated collateral guarantees
AT BT BT ABETT BTIT BTIT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HiEAEENEREEE On-balance sheet exposures
BAER Sovereigns 1,271,254 1,271,254 - 5,646 . - R
AT Banks 19,154 19,154 - 3,831 - - -
e Corporates 179,466 - 178,292 - 178,292 1,174 -
R Regulatory retail 126,753 - 108,072 - 81,054 18,681 -
(FEfFEE Residential mortgage loans 12,066 - 12,066 - 6,033 - -
AN T o A P EL A B Other exposures which are
HRIE not past due 152,228 - 143,692 - 143,842 8,536 -
A A Past due exposures 736 - 736 - 1,104 - -
HiEAEFRNER KIS Total for on-balance sheet
4R exposures 1,761,657 1,290,408 442,858 9,477 410,325 28,391 -
GiEafEFRINE &S Off-balance sheet exposures
FReE R E AL 5 AT Off-balance sheet exposures
ETEREXYMIE other than securities
EE A RSN & financing transactions and
¥ derivative contracts 45,085 - 45,085 - 41,733 - -
ARG R ATA Securities financing
THE&Y transactions and derivative
contracts - - - - R R R
BEaERIMNE &  Total for off-balance sheet
4EEE exposures 45,085 - 45,085 - 41,733 - -
JEB A BRI Total for non-securitisation
exposures 1,806,742 1,290,408 487,943 9,477 452,058 28,391 -

1,250%[E [ EjE  Exposures that are risk-weighted
IR LEEE at 1,250%

* Re{EEEEERERT  * Recognised credit risk mitigation satisfying the requirements and conditions set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules.
& (BRITE (X))
FRAN) STERVER R
[ESEEE
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5. X8 FEEEEMHER 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures

The Bank’s counterparty credit risk arising from derivative contracts and securities financing
transactions both in trading and banking book is subject to the same risk management
framework as mentioned in Note 4 to the Financial Statements. The Bank establishes credit
limit through formal credit approval procedures to control the pre-settlement credit risk arising
from derivative transactions and settlement limit to control the settlement risk arising from
foreign exchange-related transactions for counterparties in both the trading book and banking
book. The Bank monitors the risk exposure due to fluctuations in the market by using the
current exposure and the potential exposure value of the transactions. Exceptions or
excesses are timely and closely identified and monitored by RMD.

Credit equivalent amount and capital charge for the relevant counterparty credit exposures
are determined following the regulatory capital requirements. Currently, the Bank has adopted
the Current Exposure Method to measure the relevant credit equivalent amount, which
comprises current exposures and potential future exposures. The relevant counterparty
default risk capital charge is calculated under the FIRB/STC approach. In addition, the Bank
has adopted standardised credit valuation adjustment (“CVA”) method to calculate the
relevant counterparty CVA capital charge.

The Bank establishes prudent eligibility criteria and haircut policy of debt securities being
pledged as collateral for securities financing transactions.

The Bank formulates policy for classification of credit assets according to the PD of
counterparties and the period of overdue. If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss has been incurred, impairment allowance will be provided according to HKFRS and
regulatory requirements.

In controlling and monitoring of wrong-way risk (risk of existence of positive correlation
between the PD of a counterparty and credit exposures driven by mark-to-market value of the
underlying transactions), specific wrong-way risk transactions are generally not allowed.
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5. XGHFEEEEMER 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)
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5.1 Counterparty credit risk exposures under the internal ratings-based approach

The following table summarises the Bank’s exposures to counterparty credit risk arising
from securities financing transactions and derivative contracts calculated using the
Current Exposure Method. There is no effect of valid cross-product netting agreements on

these exposures.

Gross total positive fair value

Default risk exposures

Less: Value of recognised collateral
- debt securities
- others

Default risk exposures net of recognised
collateral

Default risk exposures by counterparty type

Corporates
Banks

Risk-weighted amounts by counterparty type

Corporates
Banks

Notional amounts of

protection

2014 2013
TTETEAY TETEEY
Derivative Derivative
contracts contracts
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
16,025 3,443
104,961 100,611
(61,612) (82)
43,349 100,529

32 91

43,317 100,520
43,349 100,611

32 76

12,284 28,513
12,316 28,589

recognised  credit
derivative contracts that provide credit

There were no outstanding securities financing transactions under the internal ratings-based

approach as at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).
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5. XGHFEEEEMER 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)
A& (&)

5.2 &% (EERIR) st8E 5.2 Counterparty credit risk exposures under the standardised (credit risk) approach

THXSHFEREER

R

T FAME Al A SR TR IR The following table summarises the Bank’s exposures to counterparty credit risk arising
17 JE\ B AR B T kst E B from derivative contracts calculated using the Current Exposure Method. There is no
BHFETITETESY effect of valid cross-product netting agreements on these exposures.

FrEE A A R HE - I H
RS E R AR S

TR -

2014 2013

TTETEAY TETEEY

Derivative Derivative

contracts contracts

BT HATIT

HK$’000 HK$'000

YETFEANE Gross total positive fair value 185,008 -

L JE By R B P Default risk exposures 205,060 -

b AR E i i Less: Value of recognised collateral

- B - debt securities - _

- HAth - others _ }
A E LG AT Default risk exposures net of recognised

ST R i collateral 205,060 -
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5. XEFEEEEAERN 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)
Rig (&)

5.2 & (EEEB) 8% 5.2 Counterparty credit risk exposures under the standardised (credit risk) approach

THXEHFEERE (continued)
EiE (8
2014 2013
TETHEEY TETEEY
Derivative Derivative
contracts contracts
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
DIAS B S R4 > i Default risk exposures by counterparty type
&) e B 4
EHER Sovereigns . ;
$RT Banks 1,748 }
(o Corporates ) _
BEEE Regulatory retail 203,312 B
A A E AR R Other exposures which are not past due
& exposures - _
A H A 3 Past due exposures _ _
205,060 -
DIAS B S R 45 2 L Risk-weighted amounts by counterparty type
B A
BERER Sovereigns ) )
$RAT Banks - )
¥ Corporates . .
BETE Regulatory retail - .
B A AN A bR Other exposures which are not past due
¥ exposures - -
AR R Past due exposures - _
R EEREE I (EE Notional amounts of recognised credit
PTE T ESNAERE derivative contracts that provide credit
% protection - _
2014412 H 31 H » There were no outstanding securities financing transactions under the standardised
FHEdE (EEElE) 5= (credit risk) approach as at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

AT A A e R 52 S5 R R
A (2013 £ ¢

4iE ) o
T
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6. Capital charge for market risk

Under the standardised (market risk)
approach
Foreign exchange exposures (net)
Interest rate exposures
- non-securitisation exposure
Commodity exposures
Equity exposures

Under the internal models approach
General foreign exchange and interest

rate exposures

Capital charge for market risk
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2014 2013
ARTIL AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
4,509 6,135
4,509 6,135
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6. TIZEEAER (&) 6. Capital charge for market risk (continued)

R (2011 £ESR9T3R (AR )
(fE3T) #AN) - Him e e
AARERTRAAZBEEEE
ALK o FRINHASRITIAA
AR RUAT R — RS E
bR B BRI T A
18 R 2R e ™ -

Market risk regulatory capital charge is calculated under the Banking (Capital) (Amendment)

Rules 2011 to incorporate capital charge for stressed VAR. The following table sets out the

IMM VAR and stressed VAR" for the general market risk exposure calculated under the IMM

approach of the Bank.

£ o s
R12A mEmiE SewE PR
31H Minimum Maximum  Average
Ay At 31 for the for the for the
Year December year year year
BT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
GNP B FIR g 2 N EREE =, IMM VAR for foreign exchange 2014 322 322 624 442
FHEAE RS E and interest rate risk
2013 324 324 1,201 864
SN B 2 N EEETEDE IMM VAR for foreign exchange 2014 322 322 624 442
BB risk
2013 322 322 1,221 849
FIZRE g 2 AEfE G EE IMM VAR for interest rate risk 2014 - - - -
JE\F
2013 37 36 101 83
SN R FIR JE s 2 = BRJE i Stressed VAR for foreign exchange 2014 1,193 1,088 1,244 1,153
{H and interest rate risk
2013 1,243 1,156 1,422 1,309
AN JE\ i > 7 JBR Jee i (L Stressed VAR  for  foreign 2014 1,188 1,088 1,238 1,152
exchange risk
2013 1,221 1,136 1,444 1,302
2R i 2 57 IR T i (L Stressed VAR for interest rate risk 2014 5 - 7 1
2013 55 54 95 63

i

Note:

1. TS EBEEEARNNEHFEZ 1. IMM VAR and stressed VAR measures used for market risk regulatory capital purposes are calculated to a

a5 e e 52 R e AL A
T 99% EE/KFPR 10 Kif
AR - R E R
R\ BT 705 RIS
B AR 12 (@A BT
RS2 SR AT

99% confidence level and use a 10-day holding period. The stressed VAR uses the same methodology as

the VAR model and is generated with inputs calibrated to the historical market data from a continuous

12-month period of significant financial stress relevant to the Group’s portfolio.
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6. TIZEEAER (&) 6. Capital charge for market risk (continued)

TEPIRNEEAETEVATE The graph below shows the regulatory back-testing result of the Bank’s market risk under IMM
APLTHEEROEEERA  approach.

SR -
2014 K [E] BEHTE
T Daily Backtesting in 2014
HE4$000
1,50000
1,00000
50000 1 | I
o il a0 B it ol g Mg i
1
-500.00
-Lomm 1 =) [ =) =] Ly — o - ['a)
= § 5§ § § = § §5§ & & § & § s § 5 5 & F
m— EETLHA, — RlfE{E
Aotual Favenues VAR

20134E4 K B BE IR

— Daily Backtesting in 2013
Letnoo |

1,000.00

500.00
000 WMMMWLMMMMJHWMMMJ“

™ — — (=) — (=) — ~ o~ v o — () o o0 ~ el
S g S 3 SE 8 g S S = 2 S = S N ® s =2
L RE{5ON — ERE

Actual Revenues VAR

2014 N [o] BE R A 45 B Rl There were 2 actual losses exceeding the VAR for the Bank in 2014 as shown in the
T RERITEIEAS BB E back-testing results. The exceptions of the back testing mainly resulted from unanticipated
R B S48 2 ZC - 51 market movement.

SN EEUE AR AT DAY

By ENPTIER,
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7. Capital charge for operational risk

2014 2013

BT AT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

Capital charge for operational risk 170,875 172,345

The Bank uses the standardised (operational risk) approach to calculate its operational risk
capital charge.

. Equity exposures in banking book

Equity holdings in other entities are accounted for in accordance with the underlying
intentions of holdings at the inception of acquisition. The classifications for equity holdings
taken for relationship and strategic purposes will be separated from those taken for other
purposes (including capital appreciation). Investments in equity shares which are intended to
be held on a continuing basis, but which do not comprise investments in associates, joint
venture or subsidiaries, are classified as available-for-sale securities and are reported in the
balance sheet as “Investment in securities”.

For equity exposures in banking book other than associates, joint venture or subsidiaries,
the Bank applies the same accounting treatment and valuation methodologies as detailed in
the Notes 2.8(4), 2.11, 2.12 and 2.13 to the Financial Statements, further details on their
valuation are outlined in Note 5.1 “Financial instruments measured at fair value” to the
Financial Statements. If additional investment is made subsequently such that an investee
becomes an associate, joint venture or subsidiary, then the investment is reclassified in
accordance with the Bank’s accounting policies.

Gains or losses related to equity exposures are summarised below:

2014 2013

BT T AT

HK$’000 HK$’000

Realised gains from sales - -
Unrealised gains on revaluation recognised in

reserves but not through income statement 3,646 3,185
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TTEEERR Chief Executive

EANTS TSE Siu Ling

[Ellftas:: Deputy General Manager
of i e CHAN Yiu Fai

i il FU Kim

BhERRERE Assistant General Manager
EE FUNG Chi Lap

PRESH, LAM Sung Pan

LS4 NG Sze Wai

=KL WONG Siu Man

B YIP Man Kai
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TTHEE

Branch Network

TG
BRANCH (Br.)

BHEE

HONG KONG ISLAND

T

Central Br.

JEA51T
North Point Br.

BT
Wanchai Br.

EESTT
Sheung Wan Br.

P

Western Br.

SR T
Quarry Bay Br.

BEBFIT
Aberdeen Br.

JuE
KOWL OON

LLH 1T
Hung Hom Br.

BUE T
Kwun Tong Br.

T T
Sham Shui Po Br.

MW T
San Po Kong Br.

SRR ST
Yau Ma Tei Br.

HLLET

Castle Peak Road Br.

SRS
Kowloon Bay Br.

LR (T
Tokwawan Br.

BELSTT
Tsz Wan Shan Br.

Hhik
ADDRESS

EAPIRERES 78 5%
No. 78 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, H.K.

I AL EiE 390-394 G T
G/F, No. 390-394 King's Road, North Paint, H.K..

EHE(TH e S 323-331 §i#th N C F1 D &f
Shop C & D, G/F, 323-331 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, H.K.

s PERE S AET 315-319 ST 3 SR
Shop 3, G/F, No. 315-319 Queen’s Road Central, Sheung Wan, H.K.

B £ AETE 443-445 ST 13 A

Shop 13, G/F, No. 443-445 Queen's Road West, Western District, H.K.

M RURILEE 967-967A SRt T
G/F, No. 967-967A King's Road, Quarry Bay, H.K.

FEEA(TAE 138-140 55 T
G/F, No. 138-140 Aberdeen Main Road, Aberdeen, H.K.

JURESTRR A L% 23-25 5 1
G/F, No. 23-25 Gillies Avenue South, Hung Hom, Kin.

JUREBUEE 398-402 St T A B fir
Unit A, G/F, No. 398-402 Kwun Tong Road, Kin.

JUREAKIS 755 A 235-237 it T
GI/F, No. 235-237 Laichikok Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

JUBERT R FE TRtk 61-63 St T
G/F, No. 61-63 Hong Keung Street, San Po Kong, Kin.

U EOE T 117-119 SRR
G/F, No. 117-119 Shanghai Street, Yaumatei, Klin.

FUBEZ /KBS 11138 226-228 Skt
G/F, No. 226-228 Castle Peak Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

JURE BRSBTS 10 Jz 10A 54

Shop 10 & 10A, G/F, Kai Lok House, Kai Yip Estate, Kowloon Bay, Kin.

JUBE TJIVEE 78-80W 5t 11-13 5
Shop 11-13, G/F, No. 78-80W To Kwa Wan Road, Kin.

JUBEZEZELIT0, 7 1 T03A i
Shop 703A, 7/F, Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre, Kin.
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TELEPHONE

2843 0187

2570 6381

2572 2823

2544 1678

2548 2298

2811 3131

2553 0603

2362 0051

2343 4174

2789 8668

2328 5691

2332 2533

2720 5187

2796 8968

2765 6118

2322 3313
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Branch Network (continued)

TG
BRANCH (Br.)

R
NEW TERRITORIES

BT

Tuen Mun Br.

ZEEALST
Kwai Hing Estate Br.

KRIFAFE 1T
Tai Po Tai Wo Estate Br

FESCRES T
Belvedere Garden Br.

EEST
Tsuen Wan Br.

YOHBERSE T
Shatin Sui Wo Court Br.

BT
Ma On Shan Br.

e
Sheung Tak Estate Br.

TR,
MAINLAND OF CHINA

& 1T

Xiamen Br.

EEIAT
Xiamen Jimei Sub-Br.

BT
Guanyinshan Sub-Br.

TEINSTT
Fuzhou Br.

Hhik
ADDRESS

P EW HAN

Shop N-125, Level 1, Zone N, H.A.N.D.S, On Ting Estate, Tuen Mun, N.T.

S L BT RS

Shop 1, G/F, Hing Yat House, Kwai Hing Estate, Kwai Chung, N.T.

.D.SNE 1f# N-125 &

N 1A

HFRIRR IR 2 Mt T 112-114 57

Shop 112-114, G/F, On Wo House, Tai Wo Estate, Tai Po, N.T.

BRI CE SR =

Shop 5A, G/F, Belvedere Square, Belvedere Garden Phase 3, Tsuen Wan,

N.T.

HIREESSH T SA SR

WS OIE I 131-135 gk T

G/F, No. 131-135 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T.

D HEERSEREARS

Shop F7, 1/F, Commercial Centre, Sui Wo Court, Shatin, N.T.

S EERUEATTEE

Shop 313, Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, Bayshore Towers, Ma On Shan, N.T.

BT S L I PR 1

Shop 238, 2/F, Sheung Tak Shopping Centre, Sheung Tak Estate,

Tseung Kwan O, N.T.

HPEEESEPIHERE 861 9% 1 111-113 Bt
Unit 111-113, 1/F, No. 861 Xiahe Road, Xiamen, Fujian Province, China

el tEE R

No.68-71, Lehai Bei Li, Jimei District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, China

Rt [ P SR PR S B ARG 170 5% 9 9 17 Jg 1702E J¢ 1703A =
Unit 1702E & 1703A, No. 9 Building, No. 170 Tapu East Road, Siming District,

% LI F7 SR

Bl 3 1 313 Bl

PG 2 1 238 BELE

gL 68-71 5

Xiamen, Fujian Province, China

TR RN T LIRS 210 SRENFERE 118

1/F, International Building, No. 210 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Province,

China
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TELEPHONE

3988 9508

2487 3332

2656 3386

2411 6789

3988 9518

2601 5888

2640 0733

2178 2278

(86-592) 585 7690

(86-592) 619 3300

(86-592) 599 0520

(86-591) 8781 0078



